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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FREREUARERE I mR D

On behalf of the board (the “Board”
(the”Directors”) of Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding

) of directors

Limited (the”Company”), | am pleased to present the annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

OVERALL REVIEW

In 2022, the Group recorded a revenue of HK$1,665,515,000
(2021: HK$1,416,409,000) and a gross profit of
HK$508,488,000 (2021: HK$322,651,000). The Group
recorded a profit for the year of HK$50,832,000 (2021: loss
of HK$55,972,000), which was mainly because of the general
aviation aircraft piston engine business recorded a profit for the
year of HK$60,874,000 (2021: loss of HK$48,108,000).

Basic earnings per share amounted to HK&0.55 (2021: loss
HKe 0.60). The return on equity, calculated on the basis of
profit attributable to owners of the Company as a percentage
of equity attributable to owners of the Company, was 1.8%
(2021: -2%).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Group has only one reportable operating
segment, the general aviation aircraft piston engine business,
which engages in the design, development and production of
general aviation aircraft piston engines and spare parts as well
as the provision of aftermarket services and support for piston
engines.

In 2022, the general aviation aircraft piston engine
business recognised a revenue of HK$1,665,515,000 (2021:
HK$1,416,409,000) and a gross profit of HK$508,488,000
(2021: HK$322,651,000), and recorded a profit for the year
of HK$60,874,000 (2021: loss of HK$48,108,000). The profit
was mainly attributable to the increase in the sales orders and
the products deliveries resulted in a significant growth in the
revenue and the corresponding gross profit this year, offsetting
the impact of the impairment of HK$101,142,000 on other
intangible assets.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

It is impossible to review the 2022 global economic overview
without addressing the proverbial elephant in all industries:
inflation. For decades, significant price growth eluded most
major markets. Then, suddenly, a surge in demand coming
out of the COVID-19 recession,
coupled with the Russia and Ukraine conflict,

individual saving increasing,
created
operational pressure on the global economic environment.

In 2022, the global economy headed into low growth. The
International Monetary Fund projected global gross domestic
product (“GDP") growth would slow down from 6% in 2021 to
an estimated 3.4% in 2022. Meanwhile, global inflation rose
from 4.7% in 2021 to 8.8% in 2022.

Notwithstanding the United States Fed funds rate raised by 425
basis points in 2022, the United States economy finished 2022
in solid shape even as questions persist over whether growth
will turn negative in the year ahead. Real GDP grew at a strong
annualized pace of 3.2% in the third quarter and was on track
for another 2.9% in the fourth quarter GDP at an annualized
pace. The demand for general aviation aircraft remained high
as the industry continued to strategically navigate the supply
chain challenges, fuel cost increase and workforce shortage.
According to the General Aviation Management Association
Report, 1,524 piston aircraft were delivered in 2022, an 8.2%
raise from the previous year.

In spite of the impacts of COVID,
inflation,

supply chain bottleneck,
labor shortage, fuel cost increase and machine
downtime, the Group continued navigating the blustery
headwind and reported a strong 2022 performance: revenue
increased by 17.6% from last year; profit and cash from

operating activities were hence significantly improved.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FREHREUREERE N RR I

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Goodwill

The Group's goodwill acquired through business combination
has been allocated to a cash-generating unit in USA (“USA
CGU") and a cash-generating unit in Germany (”“Germany
CGU"). As at 31 December 2022, the entire amount of the
goodwill related to the Germany CGU was HK$13,439,000
(2021: HK$14,163,000).
Germany CGU was performed with the support of Kroll, LLC,

The impairment assessment of

an independent professionally qualified valuer.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no
impairment loss was recognised.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets consist of development programs

in progress, trademarks, product technology, licence and
completed programs, customer relationships and others. As at
31 December 2022, the Group's other intangible assets were

HK$1,387,327,000 (2021: HK$1,564,078,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the impairment loss
of HK$101,142,000 was recognised for development programs
in progress. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
impairments losses of HK$1,307,000 and HK$5,121,000
were recognised for trademarks and customer relationships
respectively.

RiFSEIRE
T

FEEZEREBEHNBzHECOESE
EEMNETELE T (ERFEELEET))
&@HME%EI%EU@HE%FE%

7T RZTE__E+"_F=+—H' &
@Hﬁiéiﬁﬁﬁ%m%ﬁmgﬁﬁﬁ
13,439,000 7T (ZFZ—4F 1 14,163,000
BT EEREELBTNRETLEEE

Y EXSERMEERKroll, LLCAYWHEBITETT
By e
BE_E__HFRIBE_—HF+°-A=+—

HIEFE WiEESREERE-

Hithmp & &

HMEFEEQRETHERESS -HE
EaEii-BMRERETHAE - ERAGRKRE
HoR B Z_F+A=+—H &x&HE
MEMEFEEA1,387,327,0008 7T (ZF
—4F 1 1,564,078,000# 7T) °

BE_ZTZ__F#+_RA=+—HLEEE"
FEBRETHERBAIBRRBAEEE
101,142,000 L - B E 2 - —F+Z
B=+—BLEFE xEBDAEEAN

BERMGEDEEEE1,307,0008 Tk
5,121,000 75 °



Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited

KEMERIERERAR
Annual Report 2022 —Z& — " FFHR

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

A joint venture and an associate

During the year, the Group recorded a share of losses of
an associate in an aggregate of HK$8,390,000 (2021:
HK$4,130,000). The dilution of the Group's equity interest in an
associate constitutes a gain on deemed disposal of an associate
of HK$3,852,000 (2021: HK$11,700,000).

On 30 November 2020, the Group entered into a share
purchase agreement with a purchaser, an independent third-
party, pursuant to which the purchaser agreed to acquire
the Group’s equity interest held in a joint venture with a
consideration of RMB11,500,000. The disposal was completed
on 28 April 2022. During the year, the Group recorded a
disposal gain of a joint venture of HK$6,515,000.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses consist of salaries and wages, product
liability expenses, engineering expenses, legal and professional
expenses and other general expenses. During the year, the
Group recorded administrative expenses of HK$293,665,000

(2021: HK$298,862,000).
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FREHREUREERE N RR I

LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has consistently maintained sufficient working
capital. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had current
assets of HK$1,509,210,000 (2021: HK$1,290,759,000),
including cash and bank balances and bank deposits with
original maturity over three months in an aggregate of
HK$824,752,000 (2021: HK$623,119,000). The Group's current
liabilities as at 31 December 2022 were HK$422,783,000
(2021: HK$390,863,000).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total equity amounted
to HK$2,818,891,000 (2021: HK$2,784,461,000), comprising
issued capital of HK$930,337,000 (2021: HK$930,337,000)
and reserves of HK$1,888,554,000 (2021: HK$1,854,124,000).
The Group’s interest-bearing debts included lease liabilities
of HK$294,099,000 (2021: HK$311,018,000).
gearing ratio, calculated on the basis of the interest-bearing
debts as a percentage of total equity plus the interest-bearing
debts, was 9.4% (2021: 10.0%).

The Group's

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021,
pledged to secure the Group's bank facilities.

there were no assets

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

As most of the Group’s business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in the functional
currencies of the operating units, the Group’s exposure to

foreign currency risk was minimal.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save for the transactions described elsewhere in this report, the
Group had no material acquisitions or disposals during the year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022,
significant contingent liabilities (2021: Nil).

the Group did not have any

ENVIRONMENTAL AND REGULATORY
COMPLIANCE

Environmental protection and the effective use of natural
resources have gradually become an important concept in
modern economic growth. The Group has been keeping track
of the major trends in environmental protection around the
world and has been making an effort to integrate the concept
of environmental protection in its operations. Based on new
technology and management approach, the Group strictly
controls its environmental impact and resource usage such
that cleaner production featuring lower pollution and lower
emissions thus sustainable development can be achieved.

The Group strictly complies with all applicable laws and
regulations released by the relevant authorities which are
material to us. Throughout the year 2022, there was no non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on the Group.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FREHREUREERE N RR I

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2022, there were 534 (2021: 510)
employees in the Group. The employees’ wages and salaries
amounted to HK$209,678,000 (2021: HK$208,768,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2022. The Group recognises
the importance of good relationship with employees. The
Directors believe that the working environment and benefits
offered to employees have contributed to building good staff
relations and retention. The Group's remuneration policies are
formulated based on the performance of individual employees
and market conditions and are reviewed regularly. The Group
also provides other staff benefits including medical and life
insurance, and grants discretionary incentive bonuses and
share options to eligible staff based on their performance and
contributions to the Group.

OUTLOOK

The International Monetary Fund projected global GDP growth
will slow from 3.4% in 2022 to 2.9% in 2023. Meanwhile,
global inflation is forecasted to decrease from 8.8% in 2022
to 6.6% in 2023 and to 4.3% in 2024. However, economists
expect a full reopening of the Chinese economy would be “the
biggest positive” that markets could expect in 2023.

Global economic activity continues to decelerate sharply
because of synchronized monetary policy tightening to
contain high inflation, less favorable financial conditions, and
disruptions from the Russian and Ukraine conflict. According to
the latest Global Economic Prospects report, global growth will
slow down. The outlook has several downside risks, including
the possibility of higher inflation, even tighter monetary policy,
financial stress, and rising geopolitical tensions.

1 & Re M B =R

RIEZZF+ZBE=+—H x&EEHRFAE
BES34% (ZEZ—F :5104) - HEZ
E_HF+ZR=+—HLEFE - EEIE
K ¥ & %4209,678,0008 T (B - —4F .
208,768,000 7T) - AEEERAEBERTF
REFRFZ -EE5RA ARBREREEWNT
FIRERGEHN BHEIRTE THEA KRR
BET -AEENHFMERDBESETIHN
RRETBERGELERETET c AE
ERiRHEMENEEEERAZTRE S MU
E##ZEHNEEZREAMAESAEREHZE
B BeEREERTHBEMRBITTAKRE
Bt

B
EEREEESASTERKERNEEEEE
ERN B _FRE3A%REE_S_=F

M29% - BIERIFR > B2 EBERBENR -
T _FR88% TR E_E _=FMH6.6%" i
A _NFHETHREL 3% RMm &K

BREHTHEKCENEZEERFE S =

FHIBHNERAFIE -
ZERBEHSERMAEBWENEEER
K?’F'JE’J@mMaiR UhBERNS 2@ER

N 2KEHEHEBERNERE BER
HMHNEKEERERS  EMEEERERF
iR RERRABEET TTRAR  BRER
BRIAEE s B BERE— D RE - RE NN
MiGEUE KRB BMAE



Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited

KEMERIERERAR
Annual Report 2022 —Z& — " FFHR

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In 2022, the Group significantly improved engine delivery
lead time from 87 days to 35 days for major specs. The Group
still have a solid aftermarket spare parts backlog that will be
fulfilled till the fourth quarter of 2023. the Group’s strategy
across the market sectors continually focuses on providing
a reliable quality product while delivering an outstanding
“Continental Experience” via exceptional customer service
and great value to our customers. Hence, after 2022's “Zero
or Hero” theme, the Group started the strategy of “Think Big,
To Be Great”

four delivery results: orders,

in 2023. The Group will continuously focus on
revenue, profit and cash. These
key strategic priorities will vigorously create the Group's future
growth opportunities.

World Class Manufacturing Facility — Blue Marlin
Project

Through 2022,
installation of 90% of new equipment (28 of 31) and 61%

the Group successfully completed the

of new equipment (19 of 31) started producing. The Group
expects all of the new equipment projected to be installed by
the first quarter of 2023 and expects such equipment to be in
full production capacity by the end of the second quarter of
2023.

In January 2023, the Group launched World Class
Manufacturing (“WCM") campaign for growing faster and
stronger. The Group will use WCM to create an overriding
goal and an underlying mindset for achieving the best
manufacturing results via the 10 technical pillars: safety, cost
deployment, focused improvement, autonomous maintenance,
professional maintenance, quality control, logistics and supply
chain, early product and equipment management, people
development and environmental. In addition, the Group will use
the WCM system to eliminate manufacturing waste and reduce
its cost moving forward.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FEREUREERB G R O

Research and Development

Regardless of challenges on constraints of research and
development resources (raw material supply and engineers
pool), the Group achieved the milestones of increasing CD300
time between replacement (“TBR”) to 2,000 hours and
increasing the CD170 TBR to 1,800 hours in 2022.

Additionally, the Group finalized the latest GTSIO520 engine’s
Federal Aviation Administration certification and the European
Aviation Safety Agency validation, and our airframe partners
and the market have enthusiastically accepted our product
development. Other spotlights include:

1. Diamond DA50RG with the CD300, including the TBR

increase. The DA50 is market ready for the next decade.

2. Tecnam P2012 with twin GTSIO520 engines, replaced
the competitor’'s FADEC-controlled engines.

3. Tecnam P2010TDI with the CD170 TBR increase. The
P2010 Jet-A variant will be a competitor for all small
aircraft (C172, DA4O0, etc.).

4. Related aftermarket sales.

e
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Enterprise Resource Planning

To facilitate business growth, the Group has been implementing
new Enterprise Resource Planning (“ERP”) globally since the
first quarter of 2022. The new ERP systems will provide robust
platforms to better manage our manufacturing processes and
operational costs, and assist in business growth, supply chain
streamlining, inventory, and reporting processes. The Group

expect to complete the new ERP in 2023.

In a nutshell, the Group had a recorded-high operating profit
and cash flow in 2022. However, the surge in inflation, the
Russia and Ukraine conflict and the implication of interest rate
hikes, utility and other operating cost increases will bring a
considerable degree of uncertainty to the global economy and
the General Aviation industry. In 2023, the Group will pursue
World Class Professionalism and World Class Manufacturing to
navigate the challenges to enable the Group to grow faster and
stronger.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my appreciation
to my fellow Directors and all our staff for their support, hard
work and dedication.

By order of the Board of
Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited

Huang Yongfeng
Chairman
Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EREREEREZEE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Yongfeng, aged 48, has been an executive Director
and a member of nomination committee of the Company
(the “Nomination Committee”) since January 2021 and the
chairman of the Company from 1 April 2022. He obtained
a Master degree in management engineering from Beihang
University and an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree from China Europe International Business School.
Mr. Huang is currently the deputy general manager of AVIC
International Holding Corporation (“AVIC International”)
and the director of AVIC International (H
("AVIC International (HK) Group”).
the chairman and general manager of AVIC International
Holding (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd.,
AVIC International, the deputy general manager, the general

K) Group Limited
He previously served as

the general manager assistant of

manager assistant and the manager of corporate strategy
and management department of AVIC Shenzhen Company
Limited, the chairman of Castic-SMP Machinery Corp Ltd and
the board secretary of AVIC International Holdings Limited.
Further, he was also previously a chairman of FIYTA Precision
Technology Company Limited (“FIYTA Precision Technology”)
and a director of each of China Merchants Property Operation
& Service Company Limited (formerly known as AVIC Sunda
Holding Company Limited) (“China Merchants POS"),
Rainbow Department Store Company Limited and Tianma
Microelectronics Company Limited (“Tianma”), the shares of
which are listed and traded on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
Mr. Huang has extensive experience in financial management,
investment and financing management, mergers, and
acquisitions, as well as aviation manufacturing and aviation
operation areas. He is also a chairman of three subsidiaries of
the Group.

Ms. Jiao Yan, aged 56, has been an executive Director since
August 2021.
Peking University. She is currently the board secretary and

She obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Law from

the general counsel of AVIC International. Ms. Jiao previously
served as a director of regulations, the deputy general counsel
and the minister of audit and legal department of AVIC
International.
Group.

She is also a director of a subsidiary of the
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Mr. Yu Xiaodong, aged 50, has been an executive Director
since August 2018 and a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Chief Executive Officer from 1 April 2022.
He obtained a Master's Degree in International Trade from
University of International Business and Economics in 1997. He
previously served as the project manager of AVIC International,
the assistant general manager of AVIC International
Harbin Company* (R EAT),
management vice director of the international cooperation

the operations
department of AVIC International, the organisational
performance director of the human resources department of
AVIC International,
resources department of AVIC International and the general

the vice general manager of the human

manager of the auditing department of AVIC International. He
is also the director of six subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Zhao Yang, aged 52, has been an executive Director and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company since August
2019. He has resigned as the Chief Executive Officer on 1 April
2022 and an executive Director on 3 April 2023 respectively.
Mr. Zhao has served as the manager of the capital operation
department of AVIC International since April 2022. Mr. Zhao
previously served as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.
He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Finance from Nankai University
and EMBA degree from China Europe International Business
School. Mr. Zhao is a senior economist. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Zhao held senior management positions in different
companies, of which two are Shenzhen listed companies.
Mr. Zhao has over 25 years of experience in accounting and

finance.

EEREEREZEE

FERELE S0 BZE—N\FNBHE
HOTEERAE__FNA—BREEE
MEEEREREAQATTHAESR - FRER
—nntﬁ%ﬁ%%mﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁ
TE 21 o 1 B ERIEB KIE - P HE
RIS EABWE - PMEKER S EIE
FEERRGE PHMERASDERIBERE
BWEREE S PHERAE R RI B LI
BRSSP ALE  FRETAKRE
ERENB AR ZESE-

BEAE 25 BEZE—NFEN\AREHER
TEEREA QBT % HaEEE DR
TEITFNB—HBELAABTEARKK
TEC-FNMB-H#HARTESR ML
BEZE__FNUARTENRTIMBEREELRE
EWBR-BEELEBRTIALARTNYFEERE-
HEEREERAZEME T 240 KPP EE
MR T2 FBEMBA > il 23 15 AR A ES B © 7E 10 28
AEBZH O BAESRSIERARAEITSR
BEBRZE EhmEAARI LT AB - #iE
EEH AT E A AERA2FRE

13



14

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
KEMERKIZERERAE
Annual Report 2022 — &~ —HF4FELR

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEEREZREE

Mr. Li Peiyin, aged 36, has been appointed as an executive
Director on 1 April 2022. He obtained a Bachelor’s Degree
in Accounting from Yantai University, China, in July 2007, a
Master’s Degree in Accounting from Xiamen University, China,
in June 2010 and a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from Missouri State University, the United States of America, in
July 2015. He has been a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since April 2014. Mr. Li has more
than 11 years of experience in corporate financial management.
Mr. Li has been working at the finance department of AVIC
International since August 2010 and he is currently the head
of the finance department there. Moreover, Mr. Li has been
acting as the director of Rainbow Digital Commercial Company
Limited (“Rainbow Digital”), the shares of which are listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002419.S2),
since February 2021, FIYTA Precision Technology, the shares of
which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
000026.5Z), since February 2021, Shennan Circuit Company
Limited (“Shennan Circuit”), the shares of which are listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002916.5Z), since
April 2021 and Tianma, the shares of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000050.S7), since July
2022. He is also a director of a subsidiary of the Group.
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Mr. Zhang Zhibiao, aged 49, has been appointed as an
executive Director on 3 April 2023. He obtained a master's
degree in business administration from Nankai University, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and a bachelor degree
from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics, the PRC. Mr.
Zhang is currently a director and chief executive officer of AVIC
International (HK) Group and a director of Tacko International
Limited. Mr. Zhang served as an executive Director from August
2018 to August 2021.
FIYTA Precision Technology from February 2021 to September
2021
2022, a director of Tianma from February 2021 to November
2021, a director and general manager of Rainbow Digital
from November 2021 to April 2022 and a director of China
Merchants POS from September 2017 to December 2019, the
shares of which are all listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Mr. Zhang was previously a director of

, a director of Shennan Circuit from April 2021 to April

Mr. Zhang was also previously an executive director of AVIC
Joy Holdings (HK) Limited, the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 260) from
July 2017 to September 2020. Mr. Zhang also served as the
head of the operations management department, the head of
the planning and development department, the head of the
comprehensive management department, the deputy head of
the strategic development department, the office manager of
international aviation business office and the deputy office
manager of the capital operations office of AVIC International.
Prior to joining AVIC International, Mr. Zhang served as
the president assistant of AVIC Securities Company Limited
(formerly known as JIEM#ESFBEREELE (SouthChina
Securities Company Limited)) and the head of LRI ZE
FT (SouthChina Financial Research Institute). Mr. Zhang has
over 25 years of experience in areas of management, aviation
business, strategic development, industry research, securities,
investment and initial public offerings.
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EREREEREZEE
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chow Wai Kam, Jp, aged 75, has been a non-executive
Director since June 2015. He obtained a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Architectural Studies and a Bachelor of Architecture
degree from the University of Hong Kong in November 1970
and November 1972, respectively. He has been an Authorised
Person (List of Architects) and a Registered Architect since July
1976 and January 1991, respectively. He was also admitted as
a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Architects since August
2001. He is currently an executive director of CK Asset Holdings
Limited (“"CKAH"), a company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Chow joined the Hutchison Group in July
1995 and was the group managing director of the property
and hotels divisions of the Hutchison Group since 2000. He is
now the group managing director of Hutchison Property Group
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of CKAH. He has over 40
years of experience in project management and architectural
design for various developments, including hotel, residential,
commercial, industrial and school projects in Hong Kong, the
Mainland China and overseas.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David, /5, s85, aged 79, has been an
independent non-executive Director since May 1999. He is also
a member of the Nomination Committee and the chairman
of each of the audit committee of the Company (the "Audit
Committee”) and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Chu
received his Master of Business Administration degree from
Harvard University after degrees in Electrical Engineering and
Management at Northeastern University and was awarded an
honorary Doctor of Public Service degree from Northeastern
University. He worked for a number of sizeable international
corporations such as Bank of America, General Electric Co.
and Jardine Matheson & Company Limited. Mr. Chu is an
independent non-executive director of Chuang’s Consortium
International Limited, and was an independent non-executive
director of Zhuhai Holdings Investment Group Limited until
June 2021, all being listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange.
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Mr. Li Ka Fai, David, aged 68, has been an independent non-
executive Director since December 2007. He is also a member
of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of Science honours degree in Chemistry
and Administration. He is the senior advisor of SHINEWING
(HK) CPA Limited. Mr. Li is also a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, UK. He is an independent
non-executive director of China Merchants Port Holdings
Company Limited, China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings
Limited, Cosmopolitan International Holdings Limited, Goldlion
Holdings Limited, Shanghai Industrial Urban Development
Group Limited, and Wai Yuen Tong Medicine Holdings
Limited, and was an independent non-executive director of CR
Construction Group Holdings Limited until June 2021, all being
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Zhang Ping, aged 58, has been an independent non-
executive Director since May 2017. He is also a chairman and
member of the Nomination Committee and the member of
Audit Committee. He received a doctoral degree in Economics
from Chinese Academy of Social Science Graduate School (-
Bt g R EZRMIEER) . Mr. Zhang started working at the
Institute of Economics under Chinese Academy of Social Science
(Fh B & R 22 B &8 BT 25 FR) since July 1988. He once led
and organized key national research project on economics. He
published several essays based on theory research and surveys.
His major research fields are the growth of China economy and
macroeconomic policies. Mr. Zhang was an independent non-
executive director of AVIC IHL until December 2014 and an
independent director of Minsheng Tonghui Asset Management
Co., Ltd (REBEEEEIEABRAE) until December 2021,

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lin Jining, aged 52, joined the Group in June 2018 as
deputy chief financial officer and is responsible for the Group's
corporate finance, accounting and treasury functions. He
holds a Bachelor’s degree in accounting and economic from
University of Xiamen. Mr. Lin held senior management positions
in different companies. He has over 25 years of experience in
accounting and finance and international aviation business.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining good standards of
corporate governance practices by emphasising transparency,
accountability and responsibility to its shareholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company applied
the principles of, and complied with all the code provisions
and, where applicable, the recommended best practices of the
“Corporate Governance Code” (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company will periodically review and improve its corporate
governance practices with reference to the latest development
of corporate governance.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the Company's
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
A reminder is served by the Company to each Director twice
annually of the black out period that Director cannot deal in
the securities and derivatives (if any) of the Company.

The Directors are required to notify the chief executive
officer (who is also a Director) and receive a dated written
acknowledgement before dealing in the securities and
derivatives (if any) of the Company. In the case of the chief
executive officer himself, he must notify the chairman and
receive a dated written acknowledgement before any dealing.
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Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Company has also established a written guideline no less
exacting than the Model Code for securities transactions by
relevant employees (including any employee of the Company
or director or employee of a subsidiary who, because of his
office or employment in the Company or a subsidiary, is likely
to possess inside information in relation to the securities of the
Company). No incidence of non-compliance was noted by the
Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by the Board which has the
responsibility for leadership and control of the Company. The
Directors are collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising the Company's
affairs.

Currently, the Board comprises five executive Directors, and
one non-executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors. An independent non-executive Director has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as prescribed by the Listing
Rules. 8 out of 9 Directors served the full year for the year
ended 31 December 2022. The composition of the Board and
the biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages
12 to 17 of this annual report. Save as disclosed in this annual
report, there is no relationship (including financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship) between Board
members.
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Notwithstanding any contractual or other terms on which
any Director may be appointed or engaged at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years. The Directors to
retire in every year shall be those who have been longest in
office since their last election but as between persons who
became Directors on the same day those to retire shall (unless
they otherwise agree between themselves) be determined by
lot. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election. A new
Director appointed by the Board after the preceding annual
general meeting shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual
vacancy) or until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company (in the case of an addition to the existing Board)
and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

The Nomination Committee will carefully consider the
qualifications and experience of each candidate, before making
evaluation and submitting its recommendations to the Board
on the candidates for the appointment of new Directors, re-
election of Directors and filling any vacancy in the Board. After
the Board approves the proposal in relation to the nomination
of candidates for Directors, the proposal will be submitted
to the shareholders’ general meeting for consideration and
approval.

BEECBRRRBFERG LAEAERNES
RENFRIEMERREZEINER K
=NZ—HNESE (B EESFNAHETE=0)
NEE ERBABA DR =022 —HNAR)
ARERET ISBUEFEEVS=FARME
—R-BEREANEFERB L —TEEU
REMRENES HRE-AEENES
AIRLHMBAARE BRIFEEZHEED
E) BREEFCEREEEA-NLERR
BEAEREBEESTTZEIHMES  KIER
EXQNB TERRAE MBEMBERE)
EREALTD TERRBFAE WAEME
BEEFEMNE) UTEEREARSRLERE
HEfEe

RLZEGHBUEFHEEANTIRERR
KERFEEZRE BEENZEMEST EEE
ENEBEFTHRAEFHAB TAES
ERXEZ - EFTRBERESTHREAN
REBRR BXRRAGEZME



Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited

&

KEMERIERERAR
Annual Report 2022 —Z& — " FFHR

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain
diversity on the Board in order to maintaining a competitive
advantage of the Board. The Company seeks to achieve board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to the talents, skills, regional and
industry experience, background, gender and other qualities.
The Board will consider and if appropriate, set measurable
objectives to implement the Policy and review such objectives to
ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives. The Board will review the
Policy, from time to time, to ensure its continued effectiveness.

The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors
its financial performance and maintains effective oversight
over the management. The Board members are fully committed
to their roles and have acted in good faith to maximize the
shareholders’ value in the long run, and have aligned the
Group's goals and directions with the prevailing economic and
market conditions.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions under the requirements of the CG
Code. The major role and functions of the Board regarding its
corporate governance include:

1. to develop and review the Company's policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;
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4.

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees of
the Company and Directors; and

to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this report.

The following is a summary of the work of the Board in respect

of corporate governance matters during the year ended 31
December 2022:

performed corporate governance duties under the CG
Code;

reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices;

reviewed the continuing connected transactions of the
Group;

reviewed the compliance with the CG Code; and
reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and

internal control systems of the Company through the
Audit Committee.

The senior management of the Company is delegated

with responsibilities in the day-to-day management and

administration of the Company and makes operational and

business decisions within the control and delegation framework

of the Company.
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The Company has issued formal letters of appointment for
Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their
appointment.

The Company had arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal actions against its Directors and officers. The
Company reviews the extent of insurance cover each year.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary who is responsible for ensuring that board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are
followed; and also regularly updates the Board on governance
and regulatory matters. Any Director, in the furtherance of
his or her duties, may take independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances through the chairman at the expense
of the Company. The availability of professional advice extends
to the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees.

Minutes of Board meetings were taken by the company
secretary and, together with any supporting Board papers,
are available to all Board members. During the year ended
31 December 2022, five Board meetings were held by the
Company.
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The attendance record of Directors at Board meetings and other
Committee meetings as well as general meetings during the ERNEFEFTITERHEMES
IREAGHE RN TR

year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the table below:

Number of meetings or meetings attended/held

EENBE_E__F+_B=+—HLHF

TEEUK

Number of general
meetings attended/held

HE/ BTERAGERY HE/ BIIREAERY
Remuneration Nomination Audit
Board Committee Committee Committee Annual Special
Director BE EXg HMWEEE RLEZEY BHKEEE BE Al
Executive Directors HITEF
Lai Weixuan* BRE* 33 22 - - = 0/0
Huang Yongfeng BB (XF)

(Chairman) 5/5 - 1mh - 11 0/0
Jiao Yan =¥ 5/5 - - - 11 0/0
Yu Xiaodong FER 5/5 1/1 - - 11 0/0
Zhao Yang fizkz 5/5 - - - 1/1 0/0
Li Peiyin FIEE" 212 - - - 1/1 0/0
Non-executive Director ~ FEHTEE
Chow Wai Kam BEE 5/5 - - = 17 0/0
Independent BUFRTEE

Non-executive Directors
Chu Yu Lin, David Fal 5/5 33 11 4/4 17 0/0
Li Ka Fai, David ERE 5/5 3/3 - 4/4 11 0/0
Zhang Ping R 5/5 - 11 4/4 0/1 0/0
g Mr. Lai Weixuan has resigned on 1 April 2022. i BESAEN S _FMNA—H#E-

g Mr. Li Peiyin has been appointed as executive Director on 1 April  # EREEEGENR S _FENA—BESES
2022. HITESE-

During the year ended 31 December 2022, a meeting was held
by the Chairman with the Non-executive Directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors) without presence of the
executive Directors. Save for the annual general meeting, no

special general meeting was held during the year 2022. BITRREHI ARG -

RE8EE_E__F+_-_HA=+—HLHEE
N TEEIERITEES (BIEBIUIERTES)
ARBEHRTEFHENBRTRTT—XE

FoRRREBEAGIN RS- _FRNRE



&

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
KEMERKIZERERAE
Annual Report 2022 — 5~ —F4ETR

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERERS

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL EEEINIREERR

DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed director was given a comprehensive, S4HEZTINEZEZTEALATE2E EXERE2
formal and tailored induction training to ensure that he/she EMs&RBIFEBL > LUEE Rttt 55 2 0
is fully aware of his/her responsibilities under statute and BARBEERERZEE EHREAEZERE
common law, the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory fMESEIRE FHIRES -

requirements.

All directors were encouraged to participate in continuous X®AGHEIEREFL2HFTEIERRE &
professional development to develop and refresh their BRI FHEHMM A - REESREMEND
knowledge and skills. According to the records provided by the ##>BER T - —_FREBZLUTEN
Directors, the Directors received the following training during

the year 2022:

Type of continuous professional
development programmes

FEEXEREER

Reading materials Attending briefing
and updates sessions/seminars
Director £F REME RERER HESNE HIg
Executive Directors HITEE
Lai Weixuan* BRE* v v
Huang Yongfeng =EIE 4 4
Jiao Yan i v/ 4
Yu Xiaodong TR v v
Zhao Yang i v v
Li Peiyin* FEE v v/
Non-executive Director FFHITESE
Chow Wai Kam BE% v/ v
Independent Non-executive Directors 1 IF#HiTEFH
Chu Yu Lin, David KAk v/ v
Li Ka Fai, David FRE v v
Zhang Ping R v v
E Mr. Lai Weixuan has resigned on 1 April 2022. * BESEENR - _FNMB—H{fo
& Mr. Li Peiyin has been appointed as executive Director on 1 April  # EREEEGENR S _FENAE—BEEZES
2022. HiTES-
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the role of the
chairman is separated from that of the chief executive officer.
Currently, the chairman and the chief executive officer of
the Company are Mr. Huang Yongfeng and Mr. Yu Xiaodong
respectively.

The chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring the effectiveness of the Board in all aspects of its role
and for setting its agenda and taking into account any matters
proposed by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda.
Agendas and accompanying Board papers are circulated where
possible at least three days before the time of a Board meeting.
The chairman is also responsible for making sure all Directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings. The
chief executive officer is delegated with the authorities to
manage the business of the Group in all aspects effectively.

The division of responsibilities between the chairman and the
chief executive officer has been clearly established and set out
in writing.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors bring a wide range of skills and
experience to the Group. They serve the important function of
providing adequate checks and balances for safeguarding the
interests of shareholders and the Company as a whole. The
Company had received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his Independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considered
that the independent non-executive Directors are independent
in character and judgment and fulfill the independence
guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one
executive Director, Mr. Yu Xiaodong, and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David
(as chairman) and Mr. Li Ka Fai, David. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the Company's policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration. The role, authority
and duties of the Remuneration Committee are clearly set out
in its terms of reference.

Three meetings were held during the year 2022 to review and
recommend the remuneration package of all Directors to Board.
The attendance of each member is set out in the table above
under section headed "BOARD OF DIRECTORS".

The primary goal of the remuneration policy on executive
remuneration packages is to enable the Company to retain
and motivate executive Directors by linking their compensation
with performance as measured against corporate objectives.
Under the policy, no director or any of his associates is allowed
in deciding his own remuneration. During the year 2022,
the Remuneration Committee has adopted the model “to
determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management”.

EEEAHRS
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Details of remuneration of members of senior management of

the Company by band for the year ended 31 December 2022
are set out below:

—E__HF+__A=+—HLEEE &
NEEESBZMEERIHIWT

Number of
individuals
Remuneration = AE
HK$500,000 to HK$1,000,000 500,000/ 752 1,000,000 71 4

Details of Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix
16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 10 and 11 to the
financial statements respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established
in compliance with rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the
purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Group’s financial reporting process, risk management
and internal control systems and the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal audit function. It currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chu Yu Lin,
David (as chairman), Mr. Li Ka Fai, David and Mr. Zhang Ping.
The Audit Committee met four times during the year 2022 to
assess the ability of external auditor and review the interim
and final results, the interim and annual reports, the external
auditor's engagement letter and fee, the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, the effectiveness
of the Group’'s internal audit function and the continuing
connected transactions. The attendance of each member is set
out in the table above under the section headed “BOARD OF
DIRECTORS”. The duties of the Audit Committee are clearly set
out in its terms of reference.

Full minutes of meetings are kept and sent to all members of
the Board. Matters raised at the meetings were reported back
to the Board so that due consideration was given as to the
action to be taken.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has a Nomination Committee which was
established in compliance with rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules
and code provisions B.3.1 to B.3.4 of the CG Code for the
purposes of reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes, identifying candidates with suitable qualifications
as directors, selecting and making recommendations to the
Board, assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors, and making recommendations to the Board
on matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors. It currently
comprises one executive Director, Mr. Huang Yongfeng, and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Zhang
Ping (as chairman) and Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David. The duties of
the Nomination Committee are clearly set out in its terms of

reference.

One meeting was held during the year 2022 to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and
making recommendations to the Board regarding appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors. The attendance of each member is set out
in the table above under the section headed “"BOARD OF

DIRECTORS".
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BOARD NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee shall endeavor to find individuals
of high integrity who have a solid record of accomplishment in
their chosen fields and who possess the qualifications, qualities
and skills to effectively represent the best interests of the Group
and its shareholders. Candidates will be selected for their ability
to exercise good judgment, and to provide practical insights
and diverse perspectives. Candidates also will be assessed in
the context of the then-current composition of the Board,
the operating requirements of the Group. In conducting this
assessment, the Nomination Committee will, in connection with
its assessment and recommendation of candidates for director,
consider diversity (including, but not limited to, gender, race,
ethnicity, age, experience and skills) and such other factors as
it deems appropriate given the then current and anticipated
future needs of the Board and the Company, and to maintain
a balance of perspectives, qualifications, qualities and skills on
the Board.

The Nomination Committee considered the following
qualifications at a minimum to be required of any Board
members in recommending to the Board potential new board
members, or the continued service of existing members:

the highest professional and personal ethics;

o broad experience in business;

o ability to provide insights and practical wisdom based on
their experience and expertise;

o commitment to enhancing shareholder value;

o sufficient time to effectively carry out their duties;

o compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and
o ability to develop a good working relationship with other

Board members and contribute to the Board’s working
relationship with senior management of the Group.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu are the auditors of the Group. The
services provided by them include audit and non-audit. Fees for
auditing and non-auditing (including interim review and other
professional services) services for the year ended 31 December
2022 amount to HK$4,364,000 and HK$1,319,000 respectively.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors are responsible for monitoring the preparation of
financial statements of each financial period and ensuring those
financial statements provide a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for the
relevant financial period. In preparing the financial statements,
the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies
and applied them consistently, adopted Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, made a prudent and reasonable
judgment and estimation, and, prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The Company has timely announced and published its financial
results in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The auditors are responsible for forming an independent
opinion, based on their audit, on those financial statements
and to report their opinion solely to the members of the
Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”), and
for no other purpose.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting
responsibilities is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report of
this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’'s risk
management and internal control systems and for reviewing
their effectiveness through the Audit Committee. These
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement, losses or fraud. Procedures have been
designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or
disposition, for maintaining proper accounting records; and for
the reliability of financial information used within the business
or for publication. Procedures have also been designed for
compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, were conducted by the internal audit section of the
Group from time to time. The results and recommendations
were reported to the Audit Committee and thereafter to the
Board. The adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions
had also been reviewed by the Board and Audit Committee.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, internal audit
section of the Group evaluated the effectiveness and adequacy
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
by adopting an integrated risk assessment approach, and the
review report was presented to the Audit Committee and
the Board for review in March 2023. No material deficiency
was identified. Improvements in internal control and risk
management measures to enhance the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and to mitigate risks of
the Group will be adopted by The Board. The Board considered
that the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
were adequate and effective and the Company had complied
with the provisions on risk management and internal control of
the CG Code. The Board confirms that systems and procedures
are in place to identify, control and report on significant risks
involved in achieving the Company's strategic objectives.
Exposures to these risks are monitored by the Board with the
support of Audit Committee, internal audit section and senior
management.
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The Company has implemented Corporate Disclosure Policy,
which set out the reporting procedures for the handling and
dissemination of inside information.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Kwok Chi Ho, the company secretary of the Company, is
an employee of the Company and responsible directly to the
Board. He has complied with all the qualification, experience
and training requirement under the Listing Rules.

The company secretary reports to the chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The updated memorandum of association and bye-laws of
the Company had been posted on the Company's website at
www.cath.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s designated website
at www.hkexnews.hk. During the year 2022, the amended
and restated memorandum of association and bye-laws of the
Company was adopted pursuant to a special resolution passed
on 27 May 2022.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening of a special general meeting by
shareholders

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, shareholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to require a special
general meeting of the Company to be called by the Board.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
registered office of the Company (the "Registered Office”),
which is presently situated at Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda, and may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.
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If the Board does not within twenty-one days from the date
of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the
said date.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, either any number of
shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date
of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the
requisition relates; or not less than one hundred shareholders,
can request the Company in writing to (a) give to shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the next annual general meeting
notice of any resolution which may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to
shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting
sent to them any statement of not more than one thousand
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the requisitionists must be
deposited at the Registered Office with a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses, not less
than six weeks before the meeting in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution; and not less than one week
before the meeting in the case of any other requisition.
Provided that if, an annual general meeting is called for a date
six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall
be deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes
thereof.
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Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director

Regarding the procedures for proposing a person for election as
a Director, please refer to the procedures made available under
section Corporate Governance of the Company's website at
www.cath.com.hk.

Procedures for directing shareholder’s enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose
contact details are as follows:

Unit B, 15th Floor, United Centre
95 Queensway, Hong Kong
Fax: (852) 2915 0867

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
general meetings of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to fair disclosure, comprehensive
and transparent reporting. Effective communication with
shareholders has always been one of the Company's priorities.
Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to
shareholders in a timely manner through various formal
channels, which include interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars.

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication
policy which is subject to review on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness.
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General meetings of the Company provide good opportunities
for direct communications between the Board and its
shareholders. The Chairman of the Board, all other
Directors and senior management endeavor to attend any
general meeting of the Company and answer queries from
shareholders. Separate resolution is proposed for each issue by
the chairman of the meeting at each general meeting. Notice
of general meeting is served together with the circular to the
shareholders at least twenty-one clear days before an annual
general meeting and at least fourteen clear days before a
meeting other than an annual general meeting.

Detailed procedures for conducting a poll are to be explained
by the chairman of the meeting at the commencement of
the general meeting. Any questions raised from shareholders
regarding voting by way of a poll may also be answered by the
chairman of the meeting.

The 2022 annual general meeting of the Company was held
on 27 May 2022. At the meeting, a separate resolution was
proposed by the chairman of the meeting in respect of each
separate issue, including re-election of retiring directors, and
voted by way of poll. The Company announced the results of
the poll in the manner prescribed under the Listing Rules. All
Directors attended the 2022 annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT

The Group is pleased to present this environmental, social
and governance (“ESG") report, which describes our EGS
development and performance in 2022, to respond to
stakeholders’ expectations and concerns about the Group’s
sustainable development.

The Board of Directors assumes the responsibility for the
sustainable development of the Group, and leads the Group
to undertake social responsibility. The Board believes measures
such as emission reduction, prudent use of resources,
addressing climate change, improvement of occupational
safety and health, and focus on quality will help the Group
achieve its missions and goals. The Board is of the opinion
that laying emphasis on ESG management can reduce related
risks, enhance the Group’s capability to comply with relevant
laws and regulations, improve corporate brand image, promote
the sustainable development of enterprise business and
increase the revenue of the Company. The Board considers that
strengthened staff training, improved equipment and facilities
as well as enhanced environmental support at the operating
site will contribute to continuous progress.

The Board will actively participate in relevant training to
understand the latest developments in ESG issues, and consider
inviting relevant experts to participate in board meetings, if
applicable, to help the Board gain relevant experience. We
have established working groups within our primary operating
units to set ESG goals and regularly review the effectiveness of
the plans. The working groups report to the Board biannually
or annually. By formulating strategies, the Board gives clear
guidance to the operating units on plans and goals, and
regularly reviews the effectiveness of the plans. The Board
regularly examines strategies and plans, and reviews the ESG
report to ensure that the Group's development and disclosure
standards meet the expectations of stakeholders.
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RIF- G RERHRS

ESG-related risk management is critical to the Board. Through
communication with different stakeholders and comprehensive
understanding of our business, the Board has made a basic
assessment of all relevant risks and considered incorporating
relevant risks into its risk management and internal control
systems to promote comprehensive risk management within
the Group. In particular, the Group focuses on risks related
to the management of air pollutants and greenhouse gas
emissions, enhanced capacity to address climate change,
employment systems, occupational safety and health, products
that safeguard customers’ health and safety and quality
control of production materials. In terms of addressing climate
change, the Group believes that climate change may lead to
infrastructure damage caused by extreme weather events such
as super typhoons. At the policy and legal level, the Group
may need to allocate time and resources to deal with revised
laws and regulations on climate change. At the scientific
and technological level, the Group may face the challenge of
accelerating technological upgrading to cope with the trend of
climate change. At the market level, the Group may need to
step up efforts to meet customers’ growing concerns on climate
change by prioritizing the provision of more environment-
oriented products.

The Board believes that our focus on product quality, proper
management of relevant supply chain risks and assurance of
occupational health and safety are particularly beneficial for the
Group to achieve its goal of establishing an excellent corporate
image. Therefore, the Group regularly assesses our product
quality and occupational safety statistics against predetermined
goals, as these goals and assessments are effective indicators of
production capacity and operational control.
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As society is building a consensus on sustainable development,
the Group will respond more quickly to address market changes
and demands. Looking back over the past year, the Covid-19
has enabled the Group to strengthen the occupational,
health and safety measures for its staff. This has enabled
the Group to resume operations quickly and meet market
demand beforehand. Suppliers have also recognized our ESG
performance and are willing to offer more concessions. Looking
ahead, the global economic slowdown, high energy and
raw material prices, supply chain constraints, and continued
geopolitical conflicts will affect the Group’s ESG strategies
and objectives for the coming year. However, the Group firmly
believes that the execution of ESG management will help us
handle the challenges of high energy and raw material prices
and supply chain constraints and steadily move toward an
environmentally-friendly economy.

ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group is pleased to present this environmental, social
"ESG Report”), which details the
Group’s policies, measures, and performance on environmental,

and governance report (the

social and governance issues. By reporting to stakeholders,
the Group has disclosed its measures and performance on
sustainable development issues in a transparent manner
and increased public confidence; helping stakeholders
better understand the Group’s sustainability progress and

development direction at the same time.

SCOPE OF REPORTING

This ESG report specifies the Group’s environmental, social and
governance performance for the fiscal year 2022 (1 January
to 31 December 2022), which is consistent with that of the
annual report of the Group. The Group planned and prepared
this report based on the materiality principle. Unless otherwise
stated, this report covers the general aviation piston engine
business in the United States which represents the majority of
the Group’s environmental and social impact.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
GUIDELINES AND REPORTING

The Group's environmental, social and governance guidelines
are designed to continually improve the transparency and
responsibility of information disclosure. Therefore, the ESG
Report is released annually by the Group for public review. In
addition, the Group is committed to creating long-term value
for stakeholders in line with the interest of the environment
in which it operates, while driving the business growth and
sustainable development of the Group. As such, the Group
has formulated its sustainable development policies which
cover the Group’s activities in the environmental, employment,
business integrity, and social aspects. The Group will strive to
incorporate such principles into its practice and governance,
and is committed to contributing to the sustainable
development of society and the environment.

The Board is responsible for reviewing and assessing the
Group's environmental, social and governance risks. The Board
strives to contribute to sustainability. By formulating well-
defined environmental, social and governance policies, the
Board can identify and mitigate relevant risks, and ensure the
solid implementation of relevant policies and guidelines.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

This report is prepared and presented with reference to the
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Reporting Guide
set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules:

1. Materiality: the threshold at which ESG issues become
sufficiently important to investors and other stakeholders
that they should be reported. Accordingly, this report
covers the principal business of the Group.

2. Quantitative: KPIs need to be measurable. Targets can
be set to reduce a particular impact. In this way, the
effectiveness of ESG policies and management systems
can be evaluated and validated. Quantitative information
should be accompanied by a narrative, explaining its
purpose, impact, and giving comparative data where
appropriate. Accordingly, KPIs are presented in this
report pursuant to the reporting guide.

3. Balance: this report should provide an unbiased picture
of the issuer's performance. The report should avoid
selection, omission, or presentation format that may
inappropriately influence a decision or judgment by the
report reader.

4. Consistency: this report uses consistent methodologies
to allow for meaningful comparisons of ESG data over
time. Any changes to the statistical methods used should
also be stated in the report.
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STAKEHOLDERS PARTICIPATION AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Feedback from stakeholders not only helps the Group
comprehensively and impartially evaluate its ESG performance,
but also enables the Group to continuously improve its
performance based on the feedback. As such, the Group
regularly communicates with stakeholders in an open, honest
and proactive manner through a variety of channels, including
interim reports, annual reports, announcements and circulars.
During the reporting period, the Group continued to maintain
an open dialogue with stakeholders to review and update
the areas identified as important to the Group’s business
operations. This can help the Group develop sustainability plans
in line with its business strategy.

Stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment are
among the key reporting principles for preparing a quality ESG
report. Therefore, the Group determines the topics of business
importance through stakeholder engagement and materiality
assessment, and accordingly gives them priority in the relevant
section of the report.

The Group conducted an online stakeholder survey from
October 2022 to November 2022 and invited external
stakeholders such as customers and suppliers as well as internal
stakeholders including the Group's directors and employees
spanning from senior management, management personnel
and general employees to participate in the survey to rate
the reporting issues set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide according to their perceived
materiality to the Group or the stakeholder groups they
represent.

The materiality of each reporting issue was then determined by
consolidating the materiality levels rated by all the participants.
The materiality rating for each stakeholder category is the
average of all respondents within that stakeholder category.
The overall materiality rating across multiple stakeholder
categories is the average of the materiality ratings for each
category.
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To clearly illustrate the results, a materiality matrix containing ZA/EFRMRALER TXEU—EEEME
the materiality ratings on each issue as rated by the Group's MREEBMEBSMEMZTMHE (BIEEITMIH
directors and other stakeholders, including employees and ZF#F4HE) HEEZEFAHETFTNEEEF RN
external stakeholders, is shown below. The materiality matrix HTHHR - EEMHEEEBAFSEZENEE
clearly illustrates the results by classifying the materiality ratings %4 (C12)5) HEBESHMAAE EMEH
(from 1 to 5) of the Group's directors and other stakeholders on  FZH#E1TEI > LUE B MMRBEE R N EE S
each issue. The issues at the top right of the materiality matrix %EfEA FANZERAEBMBSMNEMFTHD
are considered as important by the Group’s directors and other HfAEREo
stakeholders.

Materiality matrix
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Indicator 1&:
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We received feedback from all stakeholder categories FFIEAERFTPNFIAEFMNDEERNZBWE

participating in our survey. B7 anti-corruption was determined

TEEBIRABERNESRMEB T

as the most important issue in both stakeholder engagement (L HWHEEAREEMNZE  FIAESGHBEE
and materiality assessment. All ESG issues were rated as W EAEE > ERMALREECRTEA
important, while A4 climate change was rated as slightly EHMEZREo

important.

The table below outlines the most important ESG issues FXREETARFNHERMRENEZTENE

identified by different stakeholders.

Stakeholder group
F{n & 455

Employees
8T

Customers

=R

Suppliers
HERE

B EREREE

Most important issues
REEEE

B2 Health and safety
B2 %2

B3 Development and training

B32% = B BT

B5 Supply chain management

BSfHFE i & 12

B2 Health and safety
B2 %2

B4 Labour standards
B4%5 T %8|

B6 Product responsibility
B6EMmEE

To address the concerns of relevant stakeholders, the Group has AHOEARRFONENGRR RENBEEH

disclosed the policies and measures implemented for relevant B ESEERERITHE T BER G

stakeholders in the corresponding sections of the report. il
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group is committed to implementing a series of
environmental management methods to control waste
gas and greenhouse gas emissions, water and pollution,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
By implementing targeted management regulations
to reduce the impact of daily business activities on
the environment, the Group strives to achieve a green
production model with low emissions and low pollution,
and aligns its business model with the development
trend of low-carbon economy, thus paving the way for
the Group's transition to low-carbon economy in the
future.

1. GAS EMISSIONS AND WASTE

(a) GREENHOUSE GAS AND AIR
MANAGEMENT

Based on its established environmental
protection policies, the Group has
formulated internal environmental
guidelines to systematically
integrate emission management into
daily operations. To promote the
implementation of environmental
protection guidelines, the Group
has established the environmental
management committee, and the human
resources director, plant facility manager,
environment and occupational safety
and health manager, and environmental
engineer maintain close communication
with various stakeholders to balance
different opinions.
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The Group takes active and effective
measures to comply with government
laws and regulations and its business units
have obtained emission permits issued by
the relevant authorities. The Group sets
emission targets for its core production
processes in accordance with the terms
of emission permits issued by the relevant
authorities and strives to apply appropriate
reprocessing equipment to all machinery
and installations. The Group has installed
pollutant control devices in factory
painting rooms, sand spray mills, sand
blasting machines and treatment tanks to
effectively control and reduce the emission
of carbon monoxide, volatile organic
compounds, particulate matters and
other harmful air pollutants, and regularly
monitors air quality.

The Group’'s air emissions mainly come
from its general aviation piston engine
business, which involves air pollutants
from transportation and testing of engines.
The air emissions include nitrogen oxides

RIF- G RERHRS
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(NOx), sulphur oxides (SOx) and particulate SEYI(NOX) ~ | 1Y)
matters. (SOx) Bz FERMI#) ©
Emission Unit (kg)
BER B E (F=)

2022 2021

g —F

Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) A 1EHI(NOX) 1,938.76 1,905.09
Sulphur oxides (SOx) i & 1E4(SOx) 48.25 45.36
Particulate matters BRI 1,830.56 1,632.98

Table 1 — Total Emissions during the Reporting
Period
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The Group also seeks to reduce
greenhouse gas and exhaust emissions by
incorporating greenhouse gas and exhaust
management as part of its operational
decision-making by setting carbon
emission targets for its core production
processes in accordance with the terms
of emission permits issued by the relevant
authorities. The Group’s environmental
management system guides the review of
any new equipment or equipment changes
that may be a source of carbon emissions
to ensure that potential carbon emissions
do not exceed the stated target. The
Group’s greenhouse gas emissions come
from aircraft plant operations, including
fuel consumption in the testing of aircraft
engines. The business units have taken
multiple measures to reduce greenhouse
gas emissions and air pollutants, one of
which is to cut greenhouse gas emissions
by reducing electricity consumption.
To reduce power consumption in the
office, the Group prioritize using low-
power electrical appliances or products,
and avoids using unnecessary high-
power equipment. For example, the
Group preferably chooses LED or low-
wattage, high-luminance lighting systems.
The Group also reviews its internal
policies and practices regularly, updates
them appropriately to keep pace with
international environmental protection
trends, and implements environmental
protection initiatives in a timely manner.
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Scope of Emissions
greenhouse (Tonnes of carbon Intensity
gas emission dioxide equivalent) (Emissions per employee)
HimE BE
RERBEHHREE UL E E51) e 8I)
2022 2021 2022 2021
-l £ ZEZZ BT —F
Scope 1 #E1
Direct emissions BEEIN 2,730.92  2,837.14 7.00 7.45
Scope 2 gE2
Energy indirect emissions AER B HER 5.77 5.59 0.01 0.01
Scope 3 #E3
Other indirect emissions HEBEER 94.27 102.07 0.24 0.27
Total 4t 2,830.96 2,944.80 7.25 7.73
Note: The calculations were based on the Mzt : SHETLERB A
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs EMHNIRRAEEN
issued by the Stock Exchange, 2006 IPCC ER|ERE-ZF
Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas ZRFIPCCARBE
Inventories, IPCC Sixth Assessment Report, R FEEREm IPCC
and latest grid emission factors. Scope ERARAERE =
1 includes consumption of aviation fuel, MEREKRRA T -8
unleaded petrol, liquefied petroleum gas, ENSEMERE &
kerosene, diesel, natural gas, acetylene, #AH S RIEAHERN
and carbon dioxide extinguisher, and SR SR R AR
fugitive emission of refrigerants. Scope IR B Z /AL IR K
2 includes electricity power purchased EHHE URE R
from power companies. Scope 3 includes B B 2b 3% HE 7 o # [E
disposed paper and air mileage of 2EERENATE
employees. BEEN -HEICIEE
EFMRBIRTE
2o
Table 2 — Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions during ®2- WHREHAWB=EREE

the Reporting Period
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(b)

Waste Management

The Group conducts a waste assessment
process to assess the discharge status of
newly added machinery or processes by
assessing their exhaust gas, water, solid
waste, special waste, non-hazardous waste
and hazardous waste. The Group adheres
to the 4R waste management principle
and strives to properly treat and dispose of
waste generated from its business activities
through use reduction, waste reuse,
recycling and alternative use. The Group
aims to reduce waste by 1% on the basis
of the waste data of the past two years
and follows up the waste data quarterly.

The Group classifies hazardous and non-
hazardous waste for disposal in the factory,
and the hazardous waste is handed over
to qualified hazardous waste collectors for
disposal so as to meet the requirements of
local laws and regulations. The hazardous
waste collectors commissioned by the
Group have all obtained hazardous
waste transportation permit from the
U.S. Department of Transportation. The
Group increases its downstream recycling
potential by classifying waste where
feasible and disposes of non-recyclable
waste in accordance with laws and
regulations to reduce the impact on the
environment.

(k)
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Intensity
(Emissions per

employee)
Waste Volume (Tonnes) BE
EEEM HEEE () e 8I)

2022 2021 2022 2021
s g% ZE-C BT %
Total hazardous waste ~ BEEBEEYESE 18.50 21.20 0.05 0.06
Total non-hazardous REEEVEE
waste 148.74 135.61 0.38 0.36
Table 3 - Waste Generated during the Reporting R3I- BREPRNFELEE
Period )
During the reporting period, the Group RSN AEEERK
strictly complied with the relevant ETEBENRFREANN
environmental laws such as Resource BRREAMEE XB
Conservation and Recovery Act and there A7 EREIRRBREE
was no case of prosecution against the I T AE AR 2R U 28 o
Group for violation of environmental laws.
USE OF RESOURCES 2. ERER

The Group’s internal environmental guidelines
follow the principles of green production,
energy conservation and emission reduction,
and systematically incorporate resource
management into its daily operations. In order
to enhance energy efficiency and reduce
paper and water consumption for practicing
environmental philosophy, the Group actively
monitors and manages the efficiency of resource
use by implementing a number of measures
to conserve resources and achieve low carbon
processes, emission reduction and energy saving
in our operations. Details of energy and water
consumption are discussed in the sections below.
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(a)

Resources

The Group also attaches great importance
to energy management and focuses on
reducing total electricity consumption in
kWh by 1% per year to make effective
use of power resources. The Group
will reduce electricity consumption by
integrating old facilities buildings into new
buildings, and gives preference to the use
of energy-efficient equipment, including
energy-saving lighting fixtures, with a
view to reducing energy consumption
in the long run. The Group conducts
lean management and waste reduction
management to encourage employees
to redesign the use of resources from
many aspects, effectively reuse products
or materials, prolong the life cycle of
resources, reduce the use of resources and
generate less waste, thereby achieving
the long-term vision of zero emission.
Meanwhile, the Group manages the
workspace using the “5S” management
scheme, which focuses on five areas: sort,
set, shine, standardise, and sustain, as the
core model, in order to improve operation
efficiency.
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Water Consumption

Sustainable and responsible use of
water resources is a major global issue,
and excessive demand and overuse of
water can cause serious regional water
shortage. In view of this, the Group’s
operation units have in place wastewater
treatment equipment. Through wastewater
minimization plans and neutralization,
chromate reduction, and alkaline
chlorination of cyanide, the Group ensures
that the emissions meet relevant standards
and water is reused and aims to reduce
the amount of treatable wastewater by
1% per year. The Group has no problem in
obtaining water sources fit for use.

(b)

K

AFEREEEMER
KERZ—E2IKE#
EE MBE T RKFER
Bl A5 B E M & MW
BRKBE-FEERFERK
ItE > BB (R B EE KR
BRE BB DB KE
B~ A0 OR B8 S B
R ARt ERES
1t BEIEBRTEE
BHoSKEBUBLERS
B EESFERHED1%
HPIERIBEE /K o R EEH 1T
R ESBENIKERA
Al R B R o

53



Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
KEMERKIZERERAE
Annual Report 2022 — &~ —HF4FELR

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RI-HERERRS

During the reporting period, the resources RSN AEERAR
directly consumed by the Group for SENEZHEERY
operations are as follows: T
Intensity
(Consumption per
employee)
Consumption BE
Resources Unit HEE (H#2/8I)
Bl Bl 2022 2021 2022 2021
—Z-Z g IZE”C T -F
Energy
AER
Electricity ‘000 kWh 14.41 13.97 0.04 0.04
BN FTETRE
Fuel oil ‘000 kWh 2,621.76 1,329.66 6.72 3.49
Jeagi FTETRE
Fuel gas ‘000 kWh 9,556.24 10,650.01 24.50 27.95
k=) FTETRE
Total energy ‘000 kWh 12,192.41 11,993.64 31.26 31.48
AERAE St TETRE
Other resources
Ht&ER
Water cubic metre 30,760.00 20,822.00 78.87 54.65
K I FHK
Note: The unit of energy figures is translated MisE : BEREBBE2ETRMEH
into kWh based on the lower heat value. BREATRE MR
Fuel oil includes aviation fuel, unleaded HEEMZEWME &
gasoline, kerosene, and diesel. Fuel gas SR N JE T B S0 o
includes liquefied petroleum gas and MEBERLERR
natural gas. RRIAR o
Table 4 — Total Consumption of Resources during ®A- REPANERHFE

the Reporting Period we
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Consumption

Packaging material FHE
used for finished products  Unit 2022 2021
S m B EME B i —E-= B
Packaging material tonne

used for finished products 178.01 170.11

HplmEEME L

Table 5 — Total Consumption of Packaging Material
Used for Finished Products during the
Reporting Period

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

The Group is dedicated to implementing a series
of effective measures to avoid and mitigating
the impact on the environment and surrounding
areas, including reducing noise, emissions and
indoor air pollution. The Group has engaged
qualified environmental consultants to review its
environmental projects regularly. For example, the
Group ensures that the factory is in compliance
with the Resource Conservation and Recycling
Act (RCRA), the Air Emissions Permit, and the
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
(NPDES) permit.

During the reporting period, the Group did not
have any major environmental accidents.
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4.

CLIMATE CHANGE

The Group is mainly engaged in the general
aviation aircraft piston engine business, with
its main operations located in Alabama, USA.
The Group has identified and assessed the
physical risks of climate change, and has put
in place measures to ensure that the Group's
infrastructure can effectively cope with extreme
weather to mitigate the impact on the Group’s
operations. Meanwhile, the Group is in strict
compliance with the relevant extreme weather
guidelines issued by the government to protect
the safety of its staff. The Group will regularly
review its climate change policies to ensure that
they are timely and effective.

B. SOCIAL

1.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group deeply believes that employees have
an important impact on the quality of its products
and services. Employees are the driving force for
the sustainable development of a company and
the foundation of a successful enterprise. The
Group strives to maintain a diverse, inclusive,
just, fair, healthy and safe working environment,
actively builds a harmonious relationship with
employees to gather talents and jointly promotes
the long-term sustainable development of the
Group's business.
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Equal Opportunities Policy

The Group is convinced that providing
employees with equal opportunities
can improve employees’ satisfaction
and motivation, attract outstanding
talents, and promote the Group’s
business development. The Group
formulates relevant recruitment and
promotion procedures to ensure that no
discrimination whatsoever exists in the
hiring and promotion process. Therefore,
human resources decisions are made
based on the capabilities, knowledge
and experience of job applicants and
employees related to the open positions
irrespective of factors such as gender, age,
race, family status, religious belief and
disability.

Compensation System

The Group has a set of comprehensive
human resources management policies
to serve as the basis of human resources
management. The policies include
compensation and benefits, working hours
and holidays, recruitment and selection,
performance management, promotion,
employment termination, training and
development, and other related areas.
The Group regularly reviews remuneration
packages to attract and retain top talent
with a fair and competitive remuneration
package incorporating basic salary, social
security insurance and other fringe
benefits. The Group evaluates and sets
remuneration levels taking into account a
number of factors, including employees’
work ability, the Group’s performance,
and compensation levels in the market.
Furthermore, the Group fully considers
sharing with employees the value they
have created in tandem with the Group's
performance growth, maintaining its
attractiveness in the labour market.
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During the reporting period, the Group
did not have any cases of violation of
relevant employment laws and regulations,
including labour laws, nor did it receive

any complaints related to recruitment.

RSN AEETEERE
REFEIEANEBERREER
FOERBES TR BB E R
B EF(EZE -

Number of employees

BT A#

2022 2021
By gender 4 51
Male B4 299 299
Female 7% 91 82
Total Hat 390 381
By employee category EELEE
Full-time 28 380 367
Part-time E i 10 14
Total 4B 5t 390 381
By age group FHMER
18-30 18-307% 81 67
31-45 31-455% 109 113
46-60 46-6075% 133 139
Over 61 615t E 67 62
Total 4Bt 390 381
By region (&
United States E[= 390 381
Total “a st 390 381

Table 6 — Breakdown of Total Employees by
Gender, Employee Category, Age Group,

and Region

x6- WEHRRER R
BEE - FHEN X
tEd N ESEH
BR 4R



Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited

KEMERIERERAR
Annual Report 2022 —Z& — " FFHR

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIF- G RERHRS

Turnover rate

TKEEE
2022 2021
—E-= —E- &
By gender R
Male B 18% 18%
Female 7 25% 26%
By age group FHMER)
18-30 18-307% 33% 37%
31-45 31-455% 27% 20%
46-60 46-607% 11% 16%
over 61 61m L 9% 8%
By region h &
United States EE 20% 20%

Table 7 — Breakdown of Employee Turnover Rate
by Gender, Age Group, and Region

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

The occupational health and safety of employees
is of paramount importance to the Group.
A Safety Committee, comprising personnel
manager, safety manager, fire-prevention
officer and workshop routine officers, has been
established by the Group and is responsible for
the occupational health and safety affairs of
the Group. The committee is responsible for
developing safety management measures in
compliance with laws, making recommendations
to internal departments in accordance with
government standards and regulations, and
holding regular meetings to review occupational
health and safety issues raised by members. The
Group requires all employees to attend monthly
safety meetings covering the latest information
on occupational health and safety, internal safety
policies and safety incident reviews.
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The Group has established a risk assessment
mechanism that consists of a series of measures
including risk identification, analysis, evaluation,
treatment, monitoring and reviewing to reduce
risks which are not deemed to be under
acceptable limits. The Group has identified high-
risk positions and implemented occupational
health and safety measures accordingly to
protect the safety of employees. The Group
requires employees to strictly comply with the
formulated safety policy and guidelines which
specify workflows, various safety measures and
guidance as well as employees’ responsibilities
for their health and safety in the workplace.
The Group also incorporates safety performance
into its annual performance evaluation, striving
to effectively promote occupational health and
safety. The Group has also developed measures
for drug abuse prevention. Through the Employee
Assistance Plan, professionals are engaged to
provide local employees with training, diagnosis,
and consultation on drug and alcohol abuse
problems, and to provide professional advice and
guidance for employees.

No work-related fatalities occurred in the past
three years including the reporting period, and
the total number of lost days due to work injury
during the reporting period is 117 days. During
the reporting period, the Group has no cases
of violation of laws and regulations related to
occupational safety and health, including the
Occupational Safety and Health Act.
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The future success of the Group depends on
professional and efficient employees. The Group
leads its employees to develop their potential
through employee development and training,
while underpinning the growth of its business in
line with its objectives. The Group encourages
employees to participate in personal development
and job-related training courses through the
formulation of employee training policies. The
Group has also established the Educational
Assistance Plan which provides eligible employees
with subsidies for internal and external training
related to their work. The Group believes
such arrangement can effectively facilitate
communication and team spirit, improve technical
skills and managerial capability, as well as
encouraging employees for further development.

The Group also has a complete training system,
which sets out the management responsibilities
of the training directors of each department,
and provides corresponding learning and training
courses for staff to continuously enhance their
work-related knowledge and skills. The Group
provides induction training for new employees
in daily operations, and assigns experienced
employees as mentors to newcomers to provide
guidance on their work. The Group follows
up policy training progress of new employees
through the UltiPro human resources system to
ensure that they have a thorough understanding
of the Group's policies.

RE-HEREGRS
BRRIE

FEBRRHNRINBEBEES
MHNET - rEBEREEREMN
EIISIEREEEREEE  FRE
GREENER BEAEER
EBRER-AEEBBHEETL
BB B E T 2 HE A%
R 82 T FAERERYIEEIERAZ - &
EETEIUHBEDFE B
TERZETIRMHE TFIER
ZABRINEIFNER) c AEE
HEEBMZHEANIRESRR
REEBH RERMRERE
BN BB EEEMEE
BEERRE—DER-

FEBXNRATENEIER
ERTHEMAIEIEEADN
EERE AEIRMERERN
BEREIRE UFEBRE
TR ITER M AE - AEER
AEEERmfARE TRH
ABEI BAERNESRET
MABB TREE BR(EHIS
BoAEBMXFAUItIProANE
RAMRENE TR BRE
AIRNEE  BENE IHERK
REFRMDT e

61



Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
REMERIEREBRAR
Annual Report 2022 —& _— _FF

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RI-HERERRS

Training rate and average training hours of MREERAN > ZERN B THER
employees during the reporting period by gender MBI HEIXRZINF
and employee category are as follows: HRFEWT

Training rate

EAlE
2022 2021
- T —F
Gender ratio among S2MBNNETEHF
employees trained BB E TR
Male B 77% 78%
Female geglid 23% 22%
Employee category ratio SN E TR g
among employees trained BT HRE 28 EF
Senior management EREERE 5% 6%
Middle management RAREIEREE 10% 12%
General employee —mRET 85% 82%
Percentage of employees SMmiENNE THEK
trained to all employees BALE 100% 100%
Note: The percentage of employees trained is calculated M5 ZNREEEBDLENAEMUS
by using the total number of employees trained as MBNNETREERDE
the denominator. =
Table 8 — Training Rate of Employees by Gender and R - HEMREZMEBRBTER

Employee Category during the Reporting Period BHH 8 TEI%R
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Average training hours
completed per employee
SHESSTHZIIN TR
2022 2021
—E-- B
Gender TR
Male S 4.5 4.6
Female Z 4.5 4.0
Employee category BTHER
Senior management EREERE 4.5 4.2
Middle management RIREEE 4.5 5.0
General employee —mRET 4.5 4.4
All employees FrEEE 4.5 4.5
Table 9 — Average Training Hours of Employees by Gender RI- HREHNEMERNKRETHER
and Employee Category during the Reporting BB T HIIEFHRE
Period
LABOUR STANDARDS 4. YT AR
(a)  Prohibition of Child Labour and Forced (@ BIUEFAETHN#ZEZFT

Labour

The Group is firmly against child labour
and forced labour, and prohibits the
employment of any child labour and forced
labour in any operations and services.
Before hiring any candidates, the Group
will check the age-related documents
to verify their age. All employees of the
Group must reach the statutory minimum
working age.
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The Group adheres to the principle of
fair and voluntary recruitment, strictly
forbids forced or fraudulent recruitment,
ensures that all employees work on a
voluntary basis, and prohibits coercive
means including withholding of documents
and other undesirable methods. Where
employees are required to work overtime
in the production process, the Group
will formulate overtime arrangements
with the employee representatives and
employees, and the working hours will
not exceed the maximum legal limits.
Moreover, management personnel will not
force employees to carry out work with
significant safety and health risks or illicit
work.

During the reporting period, the Group
found neither cases of incompliance
with relevant laws and regulations on
employment, including labour laws, nor
incidents in violation of the laws and
regulations on labour standards.
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group maintains the quality and safety of
products and services through cooperation with
business partners, and places emphasis on the
promotion of communication and partnership
with business partners on a continuous basis.
During the reporting period, the Group had a
total of 211 active suppliers, all located in the
United States. The Group carries out supplier
selection and evaluation process based on quality
and price with reference to internal guidance
and comprehensive supplier management on all
the active suppliers to regulate the engagement
of suppliers. The Group also conducts regular
assessments on suppliers’ overall capabilities,
asset position, nature of business, industry
reputation, product quality, delivery of goods and
compliance with laws and regulations. The Group
only selects high-quality suppliers that meet
regulatory requirements, and will require suppliers
to obtain third-party certification to promote
the improvement and promotion of suppliers.
The Group further uses the Solumina Supplier
Rating System Software to manage and certify
suppliers to achieve the best product quality and
management.
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In order to review the environmental protection
and process certification of suppliers, the
Group will arrange inspectors to conduct on-
site visits to evaluate the production capacity
and quality of suppliers, evaluate the production
capacity, technical level, quality assurance ability
and supply capacity of suppliers according to
the actual needs, and review the safety and
environmental management qualifications, so
as to ensure that suppliers meet the relevant
requirements in terms of quality assurance, safety
and environmental responsibility. Furthermore, in
order to promote the procurement of more eco-
friendly products, the Group regularly reviews the
solid and hazardous waste performance indicators
of suppliers to understand the environmental
impact of their products, and develops more
environmental indicators to identify more eco-
friendly products in the procurement process.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
(a)  Quality Assurance, Advertising and Label

In order to ensure that the products meet
the quality and safety requirements,
the Group implements strict control
over quality management. The Group
develops different policies and guidelines
at the design, planning and production
stages, covering every step of the product
production and delivery process. Before
delivering products to customers, the
products must go through internal quality
procedures stipulated by the Group to
ensure that their quality standards not
only comply with laws and regulations of
the Federal Aviation Administration but
also meet the quality requirements of the
Group.
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The Group will continuously strive to
ensure that its products meet regulatory
requirements and customer expectations,
regularly assess its internal production
processes to ensure customer satisfaction
and compliance with the requirements
of the Federal Aviation Administration,
and ensure that its advertising and labels
are accurate. If a product is found to
have any quality problems or other safety
hazards, the Group will immediately stop
selling it, promptly announce product
recall in line with the relevant mechanism,
notify relevant companies and institutions
to stop selling and using it, recall sold
items, and if necessary, immediately stop
production, and report the product recall
and its management to the local regulatory
authority.

During the reporting period, the Group
had no products recalled for safety and
health concerns.

RIF- G RERHRS
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(b)  Protection of Intellectual Property Rights
and Customer Information

In terms of safeguarding and protecting
intellectual property rights, the Group will
only select products provided by legitimate
manufacturers or suppliers to prevent
pirated goods from using its sales channels
to enter the market. Furthermore, the
Information Management Department of
the Group monitors the use of software to
ensure all software used is licensed, and
conducts regular inspections to ensure that
no unlicensed software is being used in
the computers of the Group. In terms of
customer data protection, all orders and
data of the Group’s customers are handled
and saved by dedicated personnel, and
no other employees are allowed to access
them, thus ensuring the protection of
customer data.

The Group abided by relevant product
liability and privacy laws, such as the
Consumer Data Privacy and Security Act,
and there was no case of prosecution
against the Group for violation of laws
related to product responsibility and
privacy protection.

INTEGRITY

The Group is committed to promoting honest
business and fair competition, and has developed
comprehensive risk management code and
internal control code, including setting out
relevant policies in the employee handbook and
guiding employees to comply with the code of
conduct. The code of conduct clearly defines how
to deal with conflicts of interest and interests
such as gifts, so as to ensure that all staff uphold
the highest ethical, personal and professional
integrity.
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The Group has established and implemented
an internal integrity system to strengthen the
integrity of employees in management practices,
and engaged a third-party agency to audit its
financial statements each year. The Group has
clearly defined misconduct such as bribery,
corruption, embezzlement, insider trading
and theft of Group assets in the employee
handbook. The Group is entitled to terminate the
employment contract with any employee who
is bribed with money, gifts or commission, and
reserves the right to take further actions against
such person, in order to avoid bribery, fraud and
other criminal offences.

The Group has formulated an effective whistle-
blowing procedure for employees, management
personnel and directors to report any misconduct
and dishonest conduct, and ensured that
employees can report matters of concern through
various channels in an absolutely confidential
manner. Where a case is substantiated after
investigation, the Group will take appropriate
corrective measures and disciplinary actions
against any persons involved. If it involves any
criminal offence, the Group will hand over the
case to the competent authority.

All new employees are required to complete
ethics training, while directors have to regularly
attend corruption prevention training to refresh
their knowledge. Directors and employees
received nearly 400 hours of corruption
prevention training during the reporting period.
The training materials include the latest anti-
fraud information and summaries of major fraud
cases and responses in various industries, and are
compiled in view of the Group’s conditions.

RIF- G RERHRS
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During the reporting period, the Group found
neither corruption incidents nor violations of
relevant laws and regulations, including the
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act.

8. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

An enterprise and the community are inseparable
as a whole and an enterprise’s development
is also inseparable from the support and
recognition of the community. The Group deeply
understands the importance of making positive
contributions to the community where it operates
and considers community benefits as one of its
social responsibilities. The Group encourages its
employees to participate in charity and social
services, aiming to become a good corporate
citizen, better undertake its social responsibilities
and contribute to the community.

The Group will continue to regularly review
its objectives and orientation for community
investment, and supervise community investment,
sponsorship and donation activities and the
relevant approval policies.

During the reporting period, the Group engaged
in 212 hours of volunteer work and over
US$160,000 in various community volunteer
activities, including donating blood, supporting
food banks to help the disadvantaged and
donating toys to inspire children in the district.

OUTLOOK

Going forward, the Group will, where appropriate, conduct
reviews on and make amendments to its disclosure aspects
in response to the needs of various laws, Listing Rules and
internal management. The Group will also continue to carry
out more measures beneficial to the environment, society
and governance in its business operations to live up to its
commitment to the environment and society.
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GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE OF THE 3]
STOCK EXCHANGE

A Environmental Chapter
4 L

ASPECT A.1 Emissions A1

FiE A1 e

KPI'A.1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data A1

FEIRAA PEm ) e 48 K 4B RA BE I BUR

KPI A.1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity A1

B A2 BERBRIENERTE

KPI A.1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity A1l

EE A3 FFEEEEREYRERTE

KPI A.1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity Al

BIR A4 FMELBRZEREVEERTE

KPI' A.1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve A1

them.
B ANS HAMPRET MBI E B R R A EDE L B RFT RIS B
KPI A.1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are Al

handled, and a description of waste reduction target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.
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A Environmental Chapter
IR =1: 1]

ASPECT A.2 Use of Resources A2

FE A2 BRER

KPI A.2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and A2
intensity

B A2 REMESNEER NEEEREEEREE

KPI' A.2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity A2

ERA2.2 BFEKERTE

KPI' A.2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken A2
to achieve them.

EE A23 HAPRET I AEREA N m B R KB EDE LB RIS

KPI A.2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that A2
is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken
to achieve them.
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KPI' A.2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products, with A2
reference to per unit produced

EE A2.5 Ny mPTRAEEMENEEREFESMGLE

ASPECT A.3 Environment and Natural Resources A3

FEA3 RIERRXAER

KPI'A.3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the There was no accident

environment and natural resources and the actions taken to

that had significant
impacts on the
environment and
natural resources during

manage them

the period
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T ENITH BERNEATENEHR
ASPECT A.4 Climate Change A4
FHE A4 RIZEZME
KPI A.4.1 Description of significant climate-related issues that have Ad
affected and may affect the issuer, and the corresponding
actions
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B Social Chapter
e =3:1]

ASPECT B.1 Employment B1

75 & B.1 & 1%

KPI'B.1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and B1
geographical region

#51% B.1.1 R BEEL FRAFNRMEE DHNEESAEH

KPI B.1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical B1
region

512 B.1.2 R ER AR &R B DRV EE ML R

ASPECT B.2 Health and Safety B2

5 E B.2 fRREAZZ

KPI B.2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of B2
the past three years (including the reporting year).

1542 8.2.1 BEZE (QEEREE SERTTUHNARKLE

KPI B.2.2 Lost days due to work-related injury B2

151 B.2.2 HIERAIFERH

KPI B.2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, B2
how they are implemented and monitored

1512 B.2.3 HMPT RN E R EE T 2 U RERRAITRERFE

ASPECT B.3 Development and Training B3

FEB.3 BRREN

KPI' B.3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee B3
category

512 B.3.1 BRI REESEFEDNZINEEB DL

KPI B.3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender B3
and employee category
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B Social Chapter

g =1
ASPECT B.4 Labour Standards B4
7@ B.4 TR
KPI B.4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid B4

child and forced labour

1512 B.4.1 T B E A e LU B T R sl T
KPI B.4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate violation practices when There was no violation

1512 B.4.2

ASPECT B.5

J5HE B.5

KPI'B.5.1

518 B.5.1

KPI'B.5.2

$51Z B.5.2

KPI'B.5.3

$51Z B.5.3

KPI B.5.4

}EZ B.5.4

discovered

M B IRE R B REHIRA RIS T REX By S B

Supply Chain Management
HEEEIE
Number of suppliers by geographical region

@B o R HERHE

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number
of suppliers on which the practices are being implemented,
how they are implemented and monitored

HAERMERHREENEN mERNTERAEANHERHE -
URBRIEFNRITRER G A

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social
risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented
and monitored.

EARAARHIERSERINRERTERARIEG  UkHE
BBITRERFE

Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and
how they are implemented and monitored.
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B Social Chapter
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ASPECT B.6 Product Responsibility B6
& B.6 EmEE
KPI B.6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for  B6

}51Z B.6.1

KPI B.6.2

$51% B.6.2

KPI B.6.3

}51Z B.6.3

KPI B.6.4

}E1Z B.6.4

KPI B.6.5

1512 B.6.5

safety and health reasons

EENEEZERBHTAZEEEEERMARKMNE 2L

Number of products and service related complaints received and There were 1,320
how they are dealt with feedback items in total

and all of them were
followed up by special
personnel in accordance
with established
complaint procedures
during the period

BRERNERKRBNEFEE URBEHE G E HREE1,320BER R
ReEM EBMLHEA
RIERERFIEFIRE
BRI

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting B6

intellectual property rights
o B 4 5B R (R PR R o8 EE HE B A RV 1B A1

Description of quality assurance process and product recall B6
procedures
HhEESRTBREKRERBKRER

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, B6
how they are implemented and monitored
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B Social Chapter
g =1
ASPECT B.7 Anti-corruption B7
FEB.7 R&5
KPI' B.7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices There was no legal

$51Z B.7.1

KPI B.7.2
fE1Z B.7.2
KPI B.7.3
}51Z B.7.3
ASPECT B.8
75 B.8

KPI B.8.1

$51% B.8.1

KPI B.8.2
1512 B.8.2

brought against the issuer or its employees during the
reporting period and the outcomes of the cases

RERPAAHETANEEESRHIL EEEESHAEMF
=SSN

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored

BB RBRED  URERRITRER A

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and
staff.
HARNEERETRENRESEI

Community Investment
HERSE
Focus areas of contribution

HEEREE

Resources contributed to the focus area

EEIRNEMBHBER

case regarding corrupt
practices during the
period
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required
by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap 622 of the
laws of Hong Kong), including a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties faced by the Group and an indication of
likely future development in the Group’s business, can be found
in the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 2 to 11 of this annual report which
forms part of this directors’ report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
the Group's financial position at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 96 to 257 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”), pursuant to which the Company may declare and
distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company to

allow the shareholders to share the Company’s profits.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account, inter
alia, the following factors:

(1) the Group's actual and expected financial results;
(2) the Group's working capital requirements,

capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

(3) the Group's liquidity position; and
(4) any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

The payment of dividend is subject to the compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, including the laws of Bermuda
and the Company’s bye-laws. The Board will continue to review
the Dividend Policy from time to time.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements, is set
out on page 258 of this annual report. This summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the Company’s share capital
during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company did not have any
distributable reserves calculated in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The
Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
HK$1,857,729,000, may be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS FEMHBERER
The percentages of the Group's purchases attributable to the HAEBTFEHERAGAIERZFEETD
Group's major suppliers are as follows: BT
2022 2021
- BT —fF
% %
Percentage of purchases: LRBREA DL
From the largest supplier RERAKEERS 5 8

The percentages of the Group’s sales attributable to the Group’s
major customers are as follows:

AEBTERPAGAEEZHET DN
Lk

2022 2021
% %

Percentage of sales: HIHER DL -
To the largest customer RERAER 32 32
To the five largest customers KEREKRER 71 71
Except for the continuing connected transactions as disclosed in  BR{E FTEIEZEA JEE R R FHEMEBEX 5118

the section entitled “NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS “ below, none of the Directors or any of their
close associates or any shareholders (which, to the knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any interest in the Group's five largest
suppliers and customers.
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The Board during the year and up to the date of this report
comprises:

Executive Directors:

Huang Yongfeng

Yu Xiaodong

Jiao Yan

Zhang Zhibiao (appointed on 3 April 2023)
Zhao Yang (resigned on 3 April 2023)

Li Peiyin

Non-executive Director:

Chow Wai Kam

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Chu Yu Lin, David
Li Ka Fai, David
Zhang Ping

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Yu Xiaodong,
Mr. Li Ka Fai, David and Mr. Zhang Ping will retire by rotation.
Mr. Zhang Zhibiao, the executive Director who was appointed
by the Board on 3 April 2023, shall hold office only until the
next following general meeting of the Company. All of them,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received an annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors of his
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules on the
Stock Exchange. The Company, as at the date of this report,
still considered all the independent non-executive Directors as
independent.
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Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 12 to 17 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of employees (including Directors and senior
management of the Group) is determined with reference to
their qualification, expertise and experience in the industry,
competence, duties and responsibilities within the Group,
the performance and profitability of the Group as well as
the market benchmark and the prevailing market conditions.
Employees shall also be eligible to receive a discretionary year-
end incentive bonus, which shall be determined by the Group
at its absolute discretion taking into account, inter alia, the
Group’s operating performance, market conditions in which
the Group operates and the individual’s performance, payable
at such time as the Group may consider appropriate, and
discretionary share options.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Director or entities connected with the Directors had

a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any

transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company's holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party

during or at the end of the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Except for certain Directors who had non-beneficial interests
in certain subsidiaries of the Company held for the benefits of
the Company, as at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company had an interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFO")) (a) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO; or (b) as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section of “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures” above and in the section of “Share
option scheme” below, during the year no rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company had been granted to any of the Directors or
their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age;
no such rights had been exercised by them; and none of
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting held on 28 May 2014, the
Company adopted a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
to contribute to the business development and growth of
the Group and to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre
employees and attract or retain human resources that are
valuable to the Group. The share option scheme is valid and
effective for a period of 10 years from the date of its adoption.
Further details of the share option scheme are disclosed in note
37 to the consolidated financial statements.

Since the adoption of the share option scheme, no options
have been granted, exercised, lapsed, cancelled or outstanding
thereunder as at 31 December 2022.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the following interests of 5% or
more of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded
in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company

pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions:

Name of shareholders

R E

Tacko International Limited (“Tacko")

AVIC International (HK) Group Limited
("AVIC International (HK) Group”)

RHERR (B8 £EBERAR
(TR (B8 £8))

AVIC International (HK) Group

REIRR (58 £ 8

AVIC International

o A BRI PR

Aviation Industry Corporation of China, Ltd

("AVIC")

PEMETEERERAS (MMPMITE))

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
KEMERKIZERERAE
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wa

Capacity and
nature of
interest

B KkiEmtE

Beneficial owner

BE@mEAA

Beneficial owner

EmEBA

Through a controlled

corporation
Bl —EREE

Through a controlled

corporation
BB —EREE

Through a controlled

corporation
e —EREEE

A — s — —

)

Number of
ordinary

shares

held
FrfsEEiR & B

1,895,559,000

2,421,341,390

4,316,900,390

4,316,900,390

4,316,900,390
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Percentage of
the Company'’s
issued share
capital as at
31 December
2022
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20.37

26.03

46.40

46.40

46.40
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According to notices of disclosure of interests filed with
the Company, Tacko is a wholly-owned subsidiary of AVIC
International (HK) Group, which in turn is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of AVIC International. AVIC International is a non-
wholly-owned subsidiary of AVIC (91.14% interest controlled
by AVIC as at 31 December 2022). Accordingly, each of AVIC
International (HK) Group, AVIC International and AVIC is

deemed to be interested in the shares held by Tacko.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no person
had any interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company had the following continuing
connected transaction, certain details of which are disclosed in
compliance with the requirements of Charter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Sale services of engines, engines parts and related
services

On 25 October 2021,
framework agreement with China Aviation Industry General
Aircraft Co., Ltd.
Group will sell engines, engine parts and related services to

the Company entered into a 2021 sale

("China Aviation”), pursuant to which the

China Aviation and/or its associates (excluding the Group)
for use in new aircraft manufacture and for the sale of parts
into the aftermarket for maintenance, repair and overhaul for
a term from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024. Further
details were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 25 October 2021 and the circular of the Company dated
17 November 2021.

The continuing connected transaction of the Company is
included in the disclosure of related party transactions in note
43 to the consolidated financial statements.
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The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions pursuant to Rule
14A.55 of the Listing Rules, and had confirmed that the
continuing connected transaction had been entered into:

(M in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3) according to the terms of the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.

The total amounts of the sale income disclosed above during
the year under review have not exceeded the annual cap
amounts of US$38.3 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$301 million).

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the Company’s external auditors,
were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information, and with reference to Practice Note
740 (Revised) Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will issue their unqualified letter
containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the non-
exempt continuing connected transactions disclosed above in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter will be provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.
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Save as disclosed above, there is no related party transaction
or continuing related party transaction set out in note 43
to the financial statements that falls into the category of
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction that
needs to be disclosed under the Listing Rules. The Directors
confirmed that the Company had complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, the following Director had interests in the
following businesses conducted through the company named
below which are considered to compete or be likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group, as defined in the Listing Rules:

Name of Director

EEHS

Name of company

YNCIEZY EmtE

Nature of interest

bR LIRS BIEE MBI N RS M B R
7= MY 5243891 I B8 Bk 75 32 57 345 AR R gt 77 52
ZEBR EHRUBETARTFRENBERS N
FERERZ EFMIEARNBET LD
MRABIAAT ZFRE T LU EE -

/|

EENHREMER L2ED

FR TIEREBTHARRARFE TINES
MED MZFEFRBLHRAUTERKR
PHEAAEBENEBARFANEAERENMH

BH#E

Nature of competing business

MEEBMHE

Chow Wai Kam
BE%

CK Asset Holdings Limited

RIBXEEARLF RITES

The Board is of the view that the Group is capable of carrying
on its business independently of, and at arm’s length from the
Excluded Businesses. When making decisions on the businesses
of the Excluded Businesses of the Group, Mr. Chow, in the
performance of his duties as Director, has acted and will
continue to act in the best interest of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the
year 2022.

Executive director -

Property development and
investment (“Excluded
Businesses”)
MEZERREE
(TEABRZETS])

EXFERRTERAENBIUIMKEREH
MR ERRET T EEMEIRRE
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

On 9 April 2020, Ernst & Young has resigned as the auditors
of the Company. Following the resignation of Ernst & Young as
auditors of the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has been
appointed as the auditors of the Company on 9 April 2020 to
fill the vacancy. Save as disclosed above, there were no other
changes in auditors of the Company in any of the preceding
three years.

The financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022 have been audited by Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu who shall retire and will not be re-appointed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited

Huang Yongfeng
Chairman

Hong Kong
31 March 2023
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CONTINENTAL AEROSPACE TECHNOLOGIES HOLDING LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 96 to 257, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional
judgment, was of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. This
matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on this matter.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (continued)

R#EtEE (@

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

MEEHFEE

BANSEA N AHRAREAFTHETRE

BIRERHFRIE M EREERE

Impairment of other intangible assets with finite useful lives

We identified the impairment of other intangible
assets with finite useful lives as a key audit matter as
they are quantitatively significant to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole.
HRERERAFRNEMBETLEEHLGEMBRE
BREABTEERSR AMAREBERMMNRBERESE
Ig o

The other intangible assets with finite useful
lives amounting to HK$1,279,143,000 as at 31
December 2022 accounted for 34% of the total
assets of the Group as at that date. At the end of
each reporting period, the management reviews
the carrying amounts of its other intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there
is any indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). The management concluded there is
no impairment of other intangible assets with finite
useful lives during the year ended 31 December
2022. Details are set out in notes 3.2 and 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment of other
intangible assets with finite useful lives included:
BB ERMERERERNEMBETLEERNENT
NESTEFEE !

o Understanding and evaluating the
management’s process for identifying the
existence of impairment indicators of the
other intangible assets with finite useful lives;
and

. THRETHEEEHNARERAFRNEM
BILEEFTRESTFRNER &

° Evaluating, with the involvement of our
internal specialists, management’s assessment
based on the relevant financial information
and market available information to determine
whether there is any indication that these
assets may be suffered an impairment loss.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
ERVR R GRS
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matter communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine the matter that was of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matter. We describe the matter in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Hung Suk Fan.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS 4 &8 &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE-_“HF+_H=+—HIEE
2022 2021
—E-C TET—F
NOTES HKS’'000 HK$'000
k=3 FAET FAET
(Restated)
(&8 5)
Revenue Wz 5 1,665,515 1,416,409
Cost of sales and services $HE B R 75 B 4 (1,157,027) (1,093,758)
Gross profit EZYil 508,488 322,651
Other income H A 5 13,630 63,350
Impairment losses under expected credit FEEEEFEER T2
loss model, net of reversal B E 18 0 kR #EEE 5 (5,954) 4,337
Other gains and losses HHH & E1E 5 7,979 1,966
Impairment of property, plant and ME - -mEREEUK
equipment and other intangible assets ~ EthE A2 & E W (E 13/17 (101,142) (11,956)
Selling and distribution expenses HERZHER (41,361) (59,022)
Administrative expenses THEEER (293,665) (298,862)
Research and development costs i 25 BY 4 (38,244) (28,564)
Share of results of an associate TMEBENE EE (8,390) (4,130)
Finance costs TR 7 (14,076) (14,560)
Profit (loss) before tax MR EEF (8518) 27,265 (24,790)
Income tax credit (expense) FrisiRik® BEx) 8 23,567 (31,182)
Profit (loss) for the year REFF (E518) 9 50,832 (55,972)
Earnings (loss) per share attributable ZRTFFEEELESIE
to owners of the Company BF (F518)
Basic =N 12 HKO0.55 cents (HKO0.60 cents)

0.553&11

(0.607 L)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mAkEHMEERmR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Eizi_giii—f—:)ﬂ =+—BHLEEFE

2022 2021
—E-C B
NOTE HKS’'000 HK$°000
k23 FET FAET
Profit (loss) for the year TEHHN (F518) 50,832 (55,972)
Other comprehensive (expense) Hihzm (Fd) K=
income
ltems that may be reclassified Efﬁ?ﬁ REEEMOEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BmzIEE
Exchange differences arising on MBBINEBELZ
translation of foreign operations BE 2 =28 (31,087) (12,542)
Reclassification of cumulative HE—FBa=2/a’Bl
translation reserve upon disposal R MERHEBEENDE
of a joint venture 7,596 -
(23,491) (12,542)
Item that will not be reclassified BAEEHMDEERERY
to profit or loss: Be:
Actuarial gains on defined benefit ERERA BB ENE
plans, net of tax (0K IER) 36 7,089 6,835
Other comprehensive expense TEHMEESZH
for the year, net of tax (30RIRIER) (16,402) (5,707)
Total comprehensive income EREmKE (ZH) 423
(expense) for the year 34,430 (61,679)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2022 R -_E - _&F+_F=+—H

4o A

MBRRR

2022 2021
—E-C 5
NOTES HKS'000 HK$'000
b= FET FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Mz -BER&E 13 602,498 458,727
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 14 264,010 289,033
Investment property B d—Lv/ES 15 - 123,800
Goodwill [k 16 13,439 14,163
Other intangible assets HthmE&EE 17 1,387,327 1,564,078
Interest in an associate RN o 18 14,409 20,371
Interest in a joint venture REERBZEGE 19 - =
Financial assets at fair value through 2 AF{EF AR Z B
profit or loss BE 20 1,950 1,938
Equity investment designated at fair B AFEFAEMEEU
value through other comprehensive w2 RAKE
income 21 390 389
Deferred tax assets RILIRIEE = 35 6,615 =
Total non-current assets EREEERE 2,290,638 2,472,499
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories =8 22 522,183 492,972
Loan to an associate m#EATIRENER 18 6,937 7,121
Loan to a joint venture mEEREEENER 19 = 7
Trade receivables FEUL B 5 IR TR 23 96,739 117,435
Prepayments, deposits and other FEMRIE 12 R HE MBI
receivables BRFX 24 31,001 24,282
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FEUL[E Z M B A ST IE 25 27,598 25,823
Bank deposits IRITHER 26 245,849 =
Cash and cash equivalents e RIBEEEEBY 26 578,903 623,119
Total current assets MENEEMRE 1,509,210 1,290,759
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At 31 December 2022 R-_E__F+_F=+—H

2022 2021
—E- —_EFE__—
NOTES HKS'000 HK$'000
K&t FET FAET
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaE
Trade payables ENEZRT 27 138,233 133,422
Other payables and accruals HutE R B & B 28 131,851 99,980
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary NIEEN IV EYNCI B 29 5,580 =
Amounts due to intermediate holding FE{F 5 BIIZ G A T 7k I8
companies 29 25,739 27,495
Tax payable P& R IE 46,200 40,003
Contract liabilities BHEE 30 16,941 8,139
Provisions BiE 31 50,841 75,291
Lease liabilities HEas 32 7,398 6,533
Total current liabilities B ERE 422,783 390,863
Net current assets MENEEFE 1,086,427 899,896
3,377,065 3,372,395
EQUITY i
Share capital [N 33 930,337 930,337
Reserves HE 1,888,554 1,854,124
Total equity HmiEE 2,818,891 2,784,461
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JEREAR
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEEE 35 175,891 211,518
Contract liabilities SHEE 30 36,127 29,253
Provisions B 31 55,825 32,394
Lease liabilities HEas 32 286,701 304,485
Defined benefit plan obligations ERERAFEIEE 36 3,630 10,284
Total non-current liabilities ERBBERE 558,174 587,934
3,377,065 3,372,395
The consolidated financial statements on pages 96 to 257 were H N EIEHEF257BE 2GS BREEH

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
31 March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

Huang Yongfeng
HEIE
DIRECTOR

EFE

Yu Xiaodong
FBER
DIRECTOR
EE

EEgN T _=ZF=-B=+—H#LAEERE
BT THAUATATRARE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY {2 &z B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE-_“HF+_H=+—HIEE

Share
Share premium
capital account

R R RER

HK$'000 HK$°000
FAET FET
At 1 January 2021 RZIEZ—-F—HF—H 930,337 1,857,729
Loss for the year KEFHE = S
Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year: ZAEEMEE (ZH) G
Exchange differences arising on translation of MEBIEBELT VERER
foreign operations = S
Actuarial gains on defined benefit plans, net of tax € ZB/EF) T BB E I
(0kiRER) - _
Total comprehensive expense for the year KEZHESTHAE - -
At 31 December 2021 RZE_—#+"A=+—H 930,337 1,857,729
At 1 January 2022 RZE-_F#—HF—H 930,337 1,857,729
Profit for the year KEHF - -
Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year: AEEMPE (ZH) W
Exchange differences arising on translation of MEBIEBELEVERER
foreign operations = =
Reclassification of cumulative translation reserve HE—BEERABRH RS
upon disposal of a joint venture MEREERDE = =
Actuarial gains on defined benefit plans, net of tax €@t EIBEE I E
(npiRER) = =

Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year A&EZ2E () Wz 42

8
At 31 December 2022 A _E__F+-A=1+—H 930,337 1,857,729
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 4&Z & mE B3R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE - FE+-_H=+—HILFE

Fair value

reserve of

equity

investments

designated

at fair value

Asset through other
revaluation comprehensive Reserve Translation Retained Total
reserve income fund reserve profits equity

BATEFA

Hi2EKWTEZ

BEEEZ
BEEMLREE NRTEEHE HES bE R Baf e
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET FET FHET FET

(note 34)
(Hfit34)

130,615 (224,452) 183 (3,376) 155,104 2,846,140
- - - - (55,972) (55,972)
- - - (12,542) - (12,542)
- - - - 6,835 6,835
- - - (12,542) (49,137) (61,679)
130,615 (224,452) 183 (15,918) 105,967 2,784,461
130,615 (224,452) 183 (15,918) 105,967 2,784,461
= = = = 50,832 50,832
= = = (31,087) = (31,087)
= = = 7,596 = 7,596
= = = = 7,089 7,089
= = = (23,491) 57,921 34,430

130,615 (224,452) 183 (39,409) 163,888 2,818,891
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 48 IRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE-_“HF+_H=+—HIEE

2022 2021
ZEZCF ZE—F
HKS'000 HK$°000
TET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& EEHZIRERE
Profit (loss) before tax BRIENER (5518) 27,265 (24,790)
Adjustments for: HE
Finance costs MY 14,076 14,560
Share of results of an associate DMEBENB 2 ER 8,390 4,130
Bank interest income RTFEUWA (9,137) (3,586)
Bank borrowings forgiven under Paycheck REFHERE 2
Protection Program ("PPP") (FREREET2))
HRZIBIEE ~ (57,559)
Interest income on loan to BEERERENERZ
an associate FIEWA (391) (448)
Interest income on loan to A5EAERMENERZ
a joint venture FIEWA - (285)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME -BREMRHEZ
plant and equipment B 315 7,866
Write-down of inventories FERME 11,557 8,197
Impairment of property, plant and equipment ~ #J% « BEFIRE UK
and other intangible assets HinEFEERE 101,142 11,956
Depreciation of property, plant and ME-BENREZ
equipment e 32,992 46,015
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CHESBEZINE 14,194 15,834
Amortisation of other intangible assets HtEBEFEE 2B 83,807 87,094
Impairment losses under expected credit loss  FEUT & 5 Bk ZU TEHA
model on trade receivables, net of reversal EEBEERETZ
RIERS R NERE 1,347 426
Impairment losses under expected credit loss — ELf1FE U &R 2R TEHA
model on other receivables, net of reversal EEBEERETZ
RIERS R NERE 4,600 (2,931)
Impairment losses under expected credit loss A& EATRENEZRN
model on loan to a joint venture, net of RHEERBERETZ
reversal HEBE NRERD 7 (1,832)
Fair value (gain) loss on an investment REMEZ ATE
property (78 B8 (700) 4,400
Gain on deemed disposal of BAALEMERBZHE
an associate (3,852) (11,790)
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HESE AR ZFE (6,515) =
Fair value gain on other financial liabilities HittmBaBRz A FEHNH - (12,525)
Loss on disposal of other intangible assets HEHMELEEZBR 326 S
Gain on early termination of lease RAKLLEHEEZFHE (10) =
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE - FE+-_H=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—E-C B —F
HKS'000 HK$000
FAET FET
Operating cash flows before movements in NiFEEESEHAN
working capital RERERE 279,413 84,732
Increase in inventories FEEM (67,724) (59,905)
Decrease in trade receivables e & 5 8RR 14,394 4,826
Increase in amounts due from fellow FE U [5) % MY 8 2 B R IB G AT
subsidiaries (1,614) (10,035)
(Increase) decrease in prepayments, deposits ~ FEAT A 9 E R EMFELL
and other receivables BRFGE ) A (10,337) 23,769
Increase in trade payables e B ZERFRIEM 12,264 25,284
Increase (decrease) in other payables and HitERRD R EER
accruals 2 Geb) 53,250 (16,839)
Increase (decrease) in provisions BEEm L) 1,897 (30,251)
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities AHaEEm Gl 18,394 (9,491)
Increase in defined benefit plan obligations TERREAE A EEEM 343 346
Cash generated from operations EEEL VRS 300,280 12,436
Interest paid BHFE (14,001) (14,268)
Tax paid BRE (8,535) (11,924)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ReFHEL (BR) 2
ACTIVITIES RBE38 277,744 (13,756)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZ#HzHE&RE
Placement of bank deposits with original ERERHABB=EAKN
maturity over three months RITHEN (495,606) =
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEAME -BENREER
equipment (53,630) (43,375)
Additions of other intangible assets AMEMEFEE (24,580) (25,245)
Withdrawal of bank deposits with original EREHAABBE=EAN
maturity over three months RITEMN 249,757 =
Bank interest received BUWIRTTH B 5,651 3,586
Proceeds on disposal of items of property, HENE BENREEE
plant and equipment PS8 317 2,827
Receipt of repayment of a loan to a joint WEREEABREN
venture BRMZEB™R = 3,176
Receipt of repayment of a loan to an associate U 2 A B & /A Bl 1R HEHY
EmziEmM = 2,935
Interest received on loan to an associate W B F B E A B IR R
BRZzAE - 1,908
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETHERZRTPE (318,091) (54,188)

103



Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
KEMERKIZERERAE
104 Annual Report 2022 —& — — F %R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 48 IRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE-_“HF+_H=+—HIEE

2022 2021
—E-C —E_—F
NOTE HKS'000 HK$000
=3 FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RiEZEIZHERE 41
Principal portion of lease payments AEMRZAE IR (6,189) (7,217)
Repayment to an intermediate holding AR EERABER
company (522) -
Advance from a fellow subsidiary EEY 1= PNCIE: 5,580 =
Advance from an intermediate holding R ABBRR
company = 1,039
Repayment of bank borrowings BERIBTEM = (195,343)
Repayment of other financial liabilities BRAMMBERE = (35,372)
Interest paid BRHE - (159)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES BB EEFRAZIREFH (1,131) (237,052)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReERREEERVFE
EQUIVALENTS (41,478) (304,996)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—B—HBZRERREEE
AT 1 JANUARY 623,119 914,072
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net ~ EXEHF L3 (2,738) 14,043
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+ZR=+—BzZHER
AT 31 DECEMBER HE&EEE 578,903 623,119
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & BA 5 sR R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE - FE+-_H=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
(the “Company”) is a public limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda and its shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The directors of the
Company regard Aviation Industry Corporation of China,
Ltd. (incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC")) as its ultimate parent. The registered office of
the Company is located at Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31
Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM 10, Bermuda. The head
office and principal place of business is located at Unit B,
15th Floor, United Centre, 95 Queensway, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) were mainly involved in the general aviation
aircraft piston engine business.

—AgE X

Continental Aerospace Technologies
Holding Limited KPEMZERIZIERA
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MEIz2ARBRRE  ERORE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & BA 78R RMisE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE-_“HF+_H=+—HIEE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
Group’s annual period beginning on 1 January 2022 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

EREEMBHREER ((FEH
BIREEER) Z185T

RAFERFERNERRBH RS
R ZIE5T

REFE  xEEEMEREGHH
BEERERBHEBGHALE (&
BEEAE)) BHLNEERNRZ
T F-A-HORRNFEERMBR
HEMBN T EBUMHFREERNZE
EA

ERAMBRE  HISERIES

RSB35
(EH

EBNBREE T —F
AlE163% 2 AA=+HE
CH Covid-19%& 1%

MEEEEEE

EBGHER  YE-BREM

Fleg BT KRBT
R®RATZ
PSR I8

EBGERN BRSO
BITHZEET  BIOEHNZRE

EBMBREE SEVBRS

Al Z 5T EH T )N\F
EREBFY
FENE

REFREREBMBRSENNE
ST ENAEBRRENRBEFER
ZHBRARERRR, /IR EERE
MBREANMBEZKBEENERTE-



Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited

&

AEMERIZERARAT
Annual Report 2022 Z2 = ZF 3R 107

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & BA 5 sR R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE - FE+-_H=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 (including the Insurance Contracts’
October 2020 and February

2022 Amendments to

HKFRS 17)

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Assets between an

Investor and its Associate

or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKFRS 16  Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-
current and related
amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5

(2020)°

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

and HKFRS Practice

Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants®

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies’

Definition of Accounting
Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction’

2.
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2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

l Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024.

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of all other new and amendments to
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax
assets in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 /ncome
Taxes so that it no longer applies to transactions that,
on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

As disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group applies HKAS 12 requirements to
the relevant assets and liabilities separately. Temporary
differences on initial recognition of the relevant assets
and liabilities are not recognised due to application of
the initial recognition exemption.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction (continued)

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group
will recognise a deferred tax asset (to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary difference can be
utilised) and a deferred tax liability for all deductible and
taxable temporary differences associated with the right-
of-use assets and the lease liabilities.

The amendments are effective for the Group’s annual
reporting period beginning on 1 January 2023. As at
31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities which are subject to
the amendments amounted to HK$256,167,000 and
HK$294,099,000 respectively. The Group is still in
process of assessing the full impact of the application of
the amendments.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made
by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The directors of the Company have, at the time of
approving the consolidated financial statements,
a reasonable expectation that the Group has
adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they
continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain property and financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the
fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 /mpairment
of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (continued)

For financial instruments and investment property
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs are to be used
to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial
recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described
as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than
quoted prices included within Level 1, that
are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for
the asset or liability.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZoMBHRRZEREEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SR &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 32 EAEFHEK

Basis of consolidation HEEE

The consolidated financial statements incorporate FEMBRExBERARTRAE

the financial statements of the Company and NEIEFIzERULERB R

entities controlled by the Company and its BN BHRER - N TIERT

subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the B RARBE B IZEHIHE .

Company:

. has power over the investee; . AHEREARTHER

7

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable . A2HEFKE R EE
returns from its involvement with the MAZ &0 R &R
investee; and REREBTEDR; &

. has the ability to use its power to affect its . BENERENEZED
returns. o

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls MEERBRRIE EXRS =

an investee if facts and circumstances indicate EEG#RXEP—BERZLIE

that there are changes to one or more of the AR AXAEEREEGHESTMA

three elements of control listed above. ZEHIWEERE]

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the WMEABSZ&a ARNRAER

Group obtains control over the subsidiary and NEEHNEBEARZEF#iE

ceases when the Group loses control of the R MR AEBKLXEBRENEB

subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of NE)Z PRI RE&IE BAfgm

a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the EORFERMMBESEENER

year are included in the consolidated statement BlzWARMAZTBAERER

of profit or loss from the date the Group gains BEf#EzHESAGEER

control until the date when the Group ceases to R BEAEETHESARMW

control the subsidiary. BrElzHBLE-

When necessary, adjustments are made to the RN ER LB AR 2 B R

financial statements of subsidiaries to bring RETHABUBREZETE

their accounting policies in line with the Group's REAREF G HE Ko

accounting policies.

113



114

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
KEMERKIZERERAE
Annual Report 2022 — &~ —HF4FELR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & BA 78R RMisE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE-_“HF+_H=+—HIEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group’'s cash-
generating units (“CGUs”) (or group of CGUs)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, which represent the lowest level
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an
operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently when there is indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU
(or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the
end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to
the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of CGUs).
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Goodwill (continued)

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of
the CGU within the group of CGUs, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of
an operation within the CGU (or a CGU within a
group of CGUs), the amount of goodwill disposed
of is measured on the basis of the relative values
of the operation (or the CGU) disposed of and
the portion of the CGU (or the group of CGUs)
retained.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate and a joint venture is
described below.

Investments in an associate and a joint venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture
(continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of an
associate and a joint venture are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, an investment in an associate
or a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint
venture. Changes in net assets of the associate/
joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for
unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate or a
joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that
associate or joint venture (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate or
joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate or joint
venture.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture
(continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture
is accounted for using the equity method from
the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of
the investment in an associate or a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or
a joint venture may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS
36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated
to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture
(continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over
a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate or joint venture and the retained
interest is a financial asset within the scope
of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that
date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture
and the fair value of any retained interest and any
proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest
in the associate or joint venture is included in
the determination of the gain or loss on disposal
of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate or joint venture on the
same basis as would be required if that associate
or joint venture had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate or joint venture would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon
disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate
or joint venture.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture
(continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate
or a joint venture of the Group, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture
that are not related to the Group.

Changes in the Group’s interests in an associate
and a joint venture

When the Group reduces its ownership interest
in an associate or a joint venture but the Group
continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the
gain or loss that had previously been recognised
in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following

criteria is met:

the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

the Group’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the
distinct good or service.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(a) Sale of aircraft engines and spare parts

Revenue from the sale of aircraft engines
and spare parts is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the aircraft engines and spare
parts.

(b) Provision of repair and maintenance
services for aircraft engines

Revenue from the provision of repair and
maintenance services for aircraft engines is
recognised over time in the period in which
the services are rendered.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer
that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of
that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

A contract asset and a contract liability relating
to the same contract are accounted for and
presented on a net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of
a performance obligation is measured based on
input method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of a performance obligation relative
to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of
that performance obligation, that best depict the
Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or
after the date of initial application of HKFRS
16 or arising from business combinations, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains
a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16
at inception, modification date or acquisition
date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to leases of motor
vehicles, machinery and equipment and office
premises that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option. It also applies
the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group; and
o an estimate of costs to be incurred by

the Group in dismantling and removing
the underlying assets, restoring the site
on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZoMBHRRZEREEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EXEIHHE @
Leases (continued) fHE (#®)
The Group as a lessee (continued) TEBEAEBAAN @)
Right-of-use assets (continued) FREEE @)
Right-of-use assets in which the Group is HWAEETSEEENERG
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the RNESHEREREECHES
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease o REREEERBRB B
term are depreciated from commencement date EECBAFRERAIEFTIR
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of- ME- TR FRHEEELER
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis EEERGE A EREREN
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and HrBzBREESHRITE -

the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a KEEBRGEHBNRRIETAE
separate line item on the consolidated statement FTREEEZIAERIER-

of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits AROEERE

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted EXMNAREEEZEEHIR
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair BEBUVBREERNFIRAR
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial W2 A FENIRET 2 o NI 1aHE
recognition are considered as additional lease REZ A FERERIERIE
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use ENMFC AL ATRAEEEZR

assets. Ko
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid
at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on

an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement
date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising an option to terminate the lease.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3. RAOMBRRZGREBEREKX
BEtHER (B

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities
are adjusted by interest accretion and lease
payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and
makes a corresponding adjustment to the related
right-of-use assets) when the lease term has
changed, in which case the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of
the lease by adding the right to use one or
more underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases
by an amount commensurate with the
stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for
as a separate lease, the Group remeasures the
lease liability, less any lease incentives receivable,
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement
of lease liabilities by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset.

MEMBHRRZBREEREX
FEEER (&)
32 EAEFER @
fHE (&
FEBEREMEA (B
HERENR

T FHIER Bl EBEEE
ENBHRIEA—BEBNEES
EITARKR

. ZIBEEEBEMER
—ERNZHEREEN
BAEATHERLE; &

. HIBEEAE B8
THREENSEREAN
R EBEBER N L%R
BEGHNERBRSE
EEERETHNELSE

.

HRAARSEREENEE
o AEREEBETENA
HAR ST I IR R WK EFT
B RETITR  LURREES]
HENHREMGFEEESR
RAEAEREEEE-

AEEEBHANERREE
ST RMmIEE N EaME
TEFHE-



Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited

@

KEMERIERERAR
Annual Report 2022 —Z& — " FFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & BA 5 sR R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE - FE+-_H=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. When a
fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is also recognised
in profit or loss. When a fair value gain or loss
on a non-monetary item is recognised in other
comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group's operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’'s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement or an associate that includes a
foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests
and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all
other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of
associates or joint arrangements that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence
or joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified
to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on an
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Borrowing cost

All borrowing costs not eligible for capitalisation
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them and
that the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable.
Such grants are presented under “other income”.

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Shares/share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
and others who provide similar services are
measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (continued)

Shares/share options granted to employees

(continued)

The fair value of the equity-settled share-
based payments determined at the grant date
without taking into consideration all non-market
vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share option reserve). At the end of
each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to retained
profits.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (continued)

Shares/share options granted to employees

(continued)

When new ordinary shares are issued pursuant to
the award scheme, the fair value of the ordinary
shares granted that vest immediately or without
lock-up period is recognised as an expense in full
at the grant date with corresponding increase in
equity (share option reserve). When the ordinary
share awards are granted with lock-up period,
which has same meaning as vesting period, the
fair value of such amounts granted at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
lock-up period.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits
Retirement benefit cost

Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

For defined benefit pension plans, the cost
of providing benefits is determined using the
projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of each
annual reporting period. In determining the
present value of the Group’s defined benefit
obligations and the related current service cost
and, where applicable, past service cost, the
Group attributes benefit to periods of service
under the plan’s benefit formula. However, if
an employee’s service in later years will lead to
a materially higher level of benefit than earlier
years, the Group attributes the benefit on a
straight-line basis from:

(a) the date when service by the employee
first leads to benefits under the plan
(whether or not the benefits are
conditional on further service) until

(b) the date when further service by the
employee will lead to no material amount
of further benefits under the plan, other
than from further salary increases.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
Retirement benefit cost (continued)

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains
and losses, the effect of the changes to the
asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on
plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected
immediately in the consolidated statement
of financial position with a charge or credit
recognised in other comprehensive income in
the period in which they occur. Remeasurement
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reflected immediately in retained profits and will
not be reclassified to profit or loss.

Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in
the period of a plan amendment or curtailment
and a gain or loss on settlement is recognised
when settlement occurs. When determining past
service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, an
entity shall remeasure the net defined benefit
liability or asset using the current fair value of
plan assets and current actuarial assumptions,
reflecting the benefits offered under the plan
and the plan assets before and after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement, without
considering the effect of asset ceiling (i.e. the
present value of any economic benefits available
in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions
in future contributions to the plan).
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
Retirement benefit cost (continued)

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount
rate at the beginning of the period to the net
defined benefit liability or asset. However, if
the Group remeasures the net defined benefit
liability or asset before plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement, the Group determines
net interest for the remainder of the annual
reporting period after the plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement using the benefits
offered under the plan and the plan assets after
the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement
and the discount rate used to remeasure such
net defined benefit liability or asset, taking into
account any changes in the net defined benefit
liability or asset during the period resulting from
contributions or benefit payments.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

o service cost (including current service cost,
past service cost, as well as gains and
losses on curtailments and settlements);

° net interest expense or income; and

L4 remeasurement.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
Retirement benefit cost (continued)

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position
represents the actual deficit or surplus in the
Group's defined benefit pension plans. Any
surplus resulting from this calculation is limited
to the present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plans or
reductions in future contributions to the plans.

Discretionary contributions made by employees or
third parties reduce service cost upon payment of
these contributions to the plan.

When the formal terms of the plans specify that
there will be contributions from employees or
third parties, the accounting depends on whether
the contributions are linked to service, as follows:

o If the contributions are not linked to
services (for example contributions
are required to reduce a deficit arising
from losses on plan assets or from
actuarial losses), they are reflected in the
remeasurement of the net defined benefit
liability or asset.

MEMBRRZBREEREKX

Bt (@)

32 EXEFHEE#@
1ES#EF (&
BAENMRE &)

SR EMBRRRARDHER
REANEEARAERTER
FIRAREH B BREM AR
BRI 51 8 & 4 B 171 & 8RR (2
PR 5% LA 55 51 81 W Bl "R IE 3 =%
FEt BB R R RBRETE X B9
R EN mAYIRE -

EBEXF=FHEHBEEHRILE
5t 8 S AT 5% 35 £ 7R Bl OB AR %5
7S

i 5t BBV IE IR RETBRE B 5L
F=DRIELHR AEFTRE
BRI HRESEBRBER W
T

. 1 {4 =R B2 AR 75 4 R (1) 40
mELREFEEERB
BABEEBENBMM
ERMER) AHRNE
MABZEERNERE
HEEFERTRER



Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
KEMERKIZERERAE
Annual Report 2022 — 5~ —F4ELR

®

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & BA 5 sR R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE - FE+-_H=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZoMBHRRZEREEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EKXEIHHE #E

Employee benefits (continued) 1lES#E7 (&

Retirement benefit cost (continued) BRIAEFIRE (@)

. If contributions are linked to services, . e A AR 75 A R > B
they reduce service costs. For the amount A PR AR AR TS A A o LR
of contribution that is dependent on the R¥ FRRMBERNERE
number of years of service, the Group BEME AEBERES
reduces service cost by attributing the BEEERFI1IRES
contributions to periods of service using #8 F/ BB 70 R E B H R
the attribution method required by HKAS 75 IR AR 1B A A R
19 Employee Benefits paragraph 70 for & 7% AR 75 HA [ 44 TRk L
the gross benefits. For the amount of AR 75 8 7 o fie i Rk = 2R A
contribution that is independent of the RFFHAmES > AIAREE
number of years of service, the Group RiR 5 B AR 75 23 R
reduces service cost in the period in which D AR TS YA o

the related service is rendered.

Short-term employee benefits ZHAE S 1EF

Short-term employee benefits are recognised RHEERTNZRANEER
at the undiscounted amount of the benefits HRFBEPZMNRAM B RITIR
expected to be paid as and when employees SRR BN HEE R E
rendered the services. All short-term employee ReEZ S —EBEBMHER
benefits are recognised as an expense unless SRR EHATHEFAE
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion ERAWIF A BRI 0

of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to NEFERBEEZ NN EER BE
employees (such as wages and salaries and annual BESEN MIEKRFTEUAR

leave) after deducting any amount already paid. FR) EREE
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit (loss) before tax because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and an associate,
and interest in a joint venture, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interest are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale, except for
freehold land, which is always presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
for leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and the related
lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

REMBRRZGHNEBLEREKX

B5ER (3®)
32 BXEGHER @
P (1

BLEMBAEEREENGER
BT AEBEBRETRSARY
X EEREERGEREE
WAL AEENRBER -

R BURAFEREFEZR
EMEMEL ZIRERIE  FR3F
BRRBIER SHBEBEYEZIR
HENRRSIBEBHERZH
Wl e R B ER FITE I
NEERRBER MEEEE
B) HERBEYEEREDER
Moz EZBRARFTE BER
RAGRIER MR AER LM
(MMERBREZTEBBLENR
&) BRSh e

MstBEAEERICAREE
RERAEEERZAEXRSZH
FIEMEMNS AEEELEEE
MEREECHBNERES
EXHEEARE



Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited

®

KEMERIERERAR
Annual Report 2022 —Z& — " FFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & BA 5 sR R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE - FE+-_H=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities,
the Group applies HKAS 12 requirements to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences on initial recognition
of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised due to application
of the initial recognition exemption. Temporary
differences arising from subsequent revision to
the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement
of lease liabilities and lease modifications, that
are not subject to initial recognition exemption
are recognised on the date of remeasurement or
modification.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same
taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible
assets that are held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than freehold lands and
construction in progress as described below).
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Freehold lands are not depreciated and are
measured at cost less subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

Construction in progress represents a building
under construction, which is stated at cost less
any impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Costs include any costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management, including
costs of testing whether the related assets is
functioning properly and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with
the Group's accounting policy. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZoMBHRRZEREEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SR &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EKXEHE @)
Property, plant and equipment (continued) ¥ BEMRE (&
When the Group makes payments for ownership EXEEMOEHEE M RIE
interests of properties which includes both FRANMEEBEER(EL N
leasehold land and building elements, the entire PR REERYVAEREFZ
consideration is allocated between the leasehold HERFELEG REAE LA
land and the building elements in proportion to BFMD Z2BETHE - MER
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To NMoEEATREFER HE
the extent the allocation of the relevant payments THIEER G S MR RRIU
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land (MEREEE 27 - EREERE
is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the FEEMERAEE T MR EE
consolidated statement of financial position. FRARRDEERZBEISE
When the consideration cannot be allocated DEF BIEYESEEYE
reliably between non-lease building element and B o

undivided interest in the underlying leasehold
land, the entire properties are classified as
property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off MEDUEGEMEEERA
the cost of assets, other than freehold land (KAEXERLIHMRTEEIRR
and construction in progress, less their residual SN R EREBENGET A ERE
values over their estimated useful lives, using PR A FEED o (5T AI E A R ~ &
the straight-line method. The estimated useful BREERITERENEREH
lives, residual values and depreciation method Kigst > MRt EE 22 &
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, IR IREEED R -

with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is ME-BENREEERERH
derecognised upon disposal or when no future S HEHEETREETERE
economic benefits are expected to arise from ERRBER R FAL TSR o
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss ERNERYE BEMNREER
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item FREAX 2 ERFENEEET
of property, plant and equipment is determined ALEERMEEMSNELAR
as the difference between the sales proceeds HEZEZR > WEBRm PR

and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Investment property

Investment property is property held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
property is measured at fair value, adjusted to
exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease
income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment property is included in profit
or loss for the period in which they arise.

If a property becomes an owner-occupied
property because its use has been changed
as evidenced by commencement of owner-
occupation, the fair value of the property at
the date of change in use is considered as the
deemed cost for subsequent accounting.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZEMBHRRZGUEBERTFKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AR &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EKXEHE @)
Intangible assets BEEE
Intangible assets acquired separately BIWENETLEE
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that BUWENERBAFR &
are acquired separately are carried at costs less EE » AR R 5t iE e fF
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated MRFRESEEAKR - BRHERA
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible FROBEEE#REN G
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on FRFRREGEEERRD @
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful SRR FERAEEFENE
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation &S EAR T LU e o (R el 5t &
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting BN ELTEREEAR B
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate KWENTHREERFR &
being accounted for on a prospective basis. BE BRABEMBERSAE
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that BEFEBEAKR-

are acquired separately are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Internally-generated intangible assets — WNEIEE R EE AR
research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as M EE T HEREELENARMB
an expense in the period in which it is incurred. NER A —IERZ

An internally-generated intangible asset arising EEHEEMETIEEEES
from development activities (or from the B RBEEESE (NEIEE
development phase of an internal project) is ZHBREE EECARELRE
recognised if, and only if, all of the following EEER TURR

have been demonstrated:

. the technical feasibility of completing the . RETTR B EUHE
intangible asset so that it will be available R ENRMTa T ;

for use or sale;

. the intention to complete the intangible . EXREFEEELER
asset and use or sell it; HHEMNITE ;
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets -
research and development expenditure

(continued)

o the ability to use or sell the intangible
asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate

probable future economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical,
financial and other resources to complete
the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure attributable to the intangible
asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-
generated intangible asset is the sum of the
expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria
listed above. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-
generated intangible assets are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from
goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination with
finite useful lives are reported at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.
Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset,
measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss
(if any). Intangible assets not yet available for use
are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be
impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible
assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwill (continued)

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant CGU when
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be established, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount
is determined for the CGU or group of CGUs
to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the
relevant CGU or group of CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwill (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a CGU, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of CGUs,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of CGUs, with the recoverable
amount of the group of CGUs. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro-rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of CGUs.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwill (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU or
a group of CGUs) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a group of
CGUs) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the
consolidated statement of financial position
include:

(a) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and
demand deposits; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of
short-term (generally with original maturity
of three months or less), highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to
a known amount of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value. Cash equivalents are held for
the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments rather than for investment or
other purposes.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash and cash equivalents as defined above.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost of inventories are
determined on a first-in, first-out basis and, in
the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and cost necessary to make the
sale. Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the sale
and non-incremental costs which the Group must
incur to make the sale.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Provisions (continued)

The Group provides for warranties in relation to
the sale of certain products for general repairs
of defects occurring during the warranty period.
Provisions for these assurance-type warranties
granted by the Group are recognised based on
sales volume and past experience of the level of
repairs and returns, discounted to their present
values as appropriate.

Product claim provision is made when there are
present expected claims which challenge the
safety of the products. The Group has general
liability and other insurance policies to cover
product claims. Initial recognition is based on
historical experience. The initial estimate of
product claim costs is revised annually based on
current year's development of present expected
claims.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which
are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS
15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEEUBHRRZENEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SR &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EXEIHE @
Financial instruments (continued) ZHTAR (#E)
Financial assets MBEEE
Classification and subsequent measurement of MBEENDEREBENSE
financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following RETWNBRGENTBEEERR
conditions are subsequently measured at BEHEN A E

amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business . MBEBRENRERERH
model whose objective is to collect ENZEBEATHESR
contractual cash flows; and ZHBEE &

. the contractual terms give rise on specified . BRERNIETHBRE
dates to cash flows that are solely Y2REREEAIN
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI") rERKRKEEZATH
on the principal amount outstanding. B (MM2ALEHERE R

Bl) e

All other financial assets are subsequently AEBEPMEEMUBEERER

measured at FVTPL, except that at initial BAFE ARG 2 EEXE

recognition of a financial asset the Group may EoRmERMSEEH

irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes Aol et EENEMEE K

in fair value of an equity investment in other mEIMIEFEEENRAE

comprehensive income if that equity investment is BENAFEREBREE

not held for trading.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets (continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEEUBHRRZENEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SR &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EXEIHE @

Financial instruments (continued) 2HTA

Financial assets (continued) MBEE (@

Classification and subsequent measurement of VHEENDEREESE @)

financial assets (continued)

) Amortised cost and interest income (i) 5 Al AR R A B U A
Interest income is recognised using the HEeERBERATED
effective interest method for financial MHBEEENFMEWAT
assets measured subsequently at amortised ERERN S A - F
cost. Interest income is calculated by BWATHBHBEER
applying the effective interest rate to HEBERAEREMNXT
the gross carrying amount of a financial Uet8 HHEBEHREER
asset, except for financial assets that have RENTHEERN (R
subsequently become credit-impaired TX) o HREBHIRE
(see below). For financial assets that have ERENTHEE B
subsequently become credit-impaired, WABT—EHRS L
interest income is recognised by applying FERZMEEE#ER
the effective interest rate to the amortised FHERFZER - ERF
cost of the financial asset from the next ERESHIANEE
reporting period. If the credit risk on RlErE FHBEETR
the credit-impaired financial instrument BHREERE FIEK
improves so that the financial asset is no ATHEIEETHEE
longer credit-impaired, interest income BEENRSHALEER
is recognised by applying the effective ZM B EEREARERN
interest rate to the gross carrying amount FRMERER o

of the financial asset from the beginning
of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer
credit-impaired.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZEMBHRRZGUEBERTFKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TR (&)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EKXEIHHE #E
Financial instruments (continued) ZHTA &
Financial assets (continued) MBEEE (&)

Classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets (continued)

(i)

Equity instrument designated as at fair
value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI")

Investment in equity instrument at
FVTOCI is subsequently measured at fair
value with gains and losses arising from

MBEENDEREESNE (B

(i)

EERBATEFAH
themElm (TEAFE
stAHMEE K B
KRxTH

BAFEHARMRE
REMBATARER
BEATEMNE WHH

changes in fair value recognised in other teEmlmER R FE
comprehensive income and accumulated BHMELFNBREE

in the fair value reserve; and is not subject
to impairment assessment. The cumulative
gain or loss will not be reclassified to
profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investment, and will be transferred to
retained profits.

Dividends from the investment in equity
instrument is recognised in profit or
loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery
of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other
income” line item in profit or loss.

R AFEBERS B
BRETHEN G HE
RAEKRENREHHEH
EEARAGENORE
Bom MIRESEEREFE
Ffe

EXAEEETWRERRE
AR REATARSAE
Ry iR St iR R ER o BR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE-_“HF+_H=+—HIEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets (continued)

(iii)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI
are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss includes
any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the
“other gains and losses” line item.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit loss (“ECL") model on
financial assets (including loan to an associate,
loan to a joint venture, trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables, amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries, bank deposits and bank balances)
which are subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the expected
life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessments are
done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current conditions
at the reporting date as well as the forecast of
future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HFoUMBRRZGNEEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BEHEER (&)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EXEIHE @
Financial instruments (continued) ZHTA (&
Financial assets (continued) MBEEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

(continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the

loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when

there has been a significant increase in credit

risk since initial recognition, in which case the

Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment

of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is

based on significant increases in the likelihood or

risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk
of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE - FE+-_H=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

(continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.qg.
a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

(continued)
(i Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
o an actual or expected significant

adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in
the debtor's ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that
the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase
in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZoMBHRRZEREEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EXEIHHE @

Financial instruments (continued) 2HTA #)

Financial assets (continued) MBEE (@)

Impairment of financial assets subject to BRI E B R SR FTE

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 EITREEZ M EEERE

(continued) (#&)

(i) Definition of default (i) BOTER
For internal credit risk management, the MAEERMEEM
Group considers an event of default occurs = BAEBHIE S S E
when information developed internally or REESHNENERE
obtained from external sources indicates BATRKAIEmEHBEREA
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its (BIEAER) 2BER
creditors, including the Group, in full B (Rt RAEEFEN
(without taking into account any collaterals EREF @R »  AERER
held by the Group). ZRBEEBENE S
Irrespective of the above, the Group Toam LittE R REBER
considers that default has occurred when REBEUBEERIABSR
a financial asset is more than 90 days past QOKRBFF BIBELELN
due unless the Group has reasonable and RIEAEEECERE
supportable information to demonstrate NEKREZERRERNE
that a more lagging default criterion is WEEEABERURE

more appropriate. Al ©
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEEUBHRRZENEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SR &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) BEREHBER B
Financial instruments (continued) ZHTA (E)
Financial assets (continued) MEEE &)

Impairment of financial assets subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

(continued)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when

AIRBEEAMBREERFEI
ETRESHE 2 M B EERE
#)

(i) EEREMBEE

MBEEEEZRE—EH

one or more events that have a detrimental U EHZMBEENG
impact on the estimated future cash flows SFARRREMEHEK T
of that financial asset have occurred. MEENEHRFHIRE
Evidence that a financial asset is credit- BERE UBEEHRE

impaired includes observable data about

the following events:

(a)

significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower's financial
difficulty, having granted to the

ERENZEEEEEH
THEHR R BREHE

(@) BHETAZMBRA
BBREAMERE
b3

by EBREH WMED
HBBEM) ;

(0 BERABWERA
A K fa A #
I PR 3 B9 4507 3K
aMERMmAE

borrower a concession(s) that the FTAHEBEERA
lender(s) would not otherwise KAgEEMWNE
consider; or B

it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation.

(d) BERAR A BERK
AR E 3 H fth 7BF
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZoMBHRRZEREEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EXEIHHE @

Financial instruments (continued) 2HTA #)

Financial assets (continued) MBEE (@)

Impairment of financial assets subject to BRI E B R SR FTE

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 EITREEZ M EEERE

(continued) (#&)

(iv)  Write-off policy (iv)  HMEHEER
The Group writes off a financial asset EEEMNBETRRZHA
when there is information indicating that B 1% B B R IR B e 0
the counterparty is in severe financial EERWE TR (Hl03
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect SHBFEEBFEHER
of recovery, for example, when the ARERR B> AEHE
counterparty has been placed under EMHTBEE -RER
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy FEER%Z WER) B
proceedings. Financial assets written fit 35 B B1 #5 B E BJ BB D
off may still be subject to enforcement B A E B UWERE R R
activities under the Group's recovery ) B 32 o i 34 48 R BUH B
procedures, taking into account legal HEIFFREBIEE
advice where appropriate. A write-off B EER o

constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEEUBHRRZENEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SR &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EKXEHE @)
Financial instruments (continued) ZHTE #B)
Financial assets (continued) MHEEE &)

Impairment of financial assets subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

(continued)

)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function
of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at
default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based
on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective
risks of default occurring as the weights.
Trade receivables with significant balances/
credit-impaired are assessed for ECL
individually. For other trade receivables,
the Group uses a practical expedient in
estimating ECL using a provision matrix
taking into consideration historical credit
loss experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZoMBHRRZEREEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SR &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EKXEHE @)
Financial instruments (continued) IR @)
Financial assets (continued) MBEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets subject to BIRBEE BT EIRE ZEHFI5%
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 ETREMEZMBEERE
(continued) (&)
(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (v) ATERERTEREES

(continued) 18 (&)

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables are FEWE ZRFNEETE

considered on a collective basis taking HEERERER AR

into consideration past due information BEREEREEERNM
and relevant credit information such REEREER FWaE
as forward-looking macroeconomic EMRELKER
information.

For collective assessment, the Group AT ETERTE A

takes into consideration the following BETHEE2PEREZRT

characteristics when formulating the DUFHE:

grouping:

. an actual or expected significant . Erc: =
deterioration in the financial (mAE) XRNEE
instrument’s external (if available) or EFBANERR
internal credit rating; TEHREESIL

. Past-due status; . BHARKAE ;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; . BEEARNMEE IR
and BRITE &

. External credit ratings where . ARANINEEE
available. ST4R

The grouping is regularly reviewed by PHITEREERETH

management to ensure the constituents of T@at > U R & A R 17

each group continue to share similar credit EBEBEBEHEEMUEERR

risk characteristics. %o
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

(continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with
the exception of trade receivables and other
receivables where the corresponding adjustment
is recognised through a loss allowance account.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity
instrument which the Group has elected on initial
recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the fair
value reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss,
but is transferred to retained profits.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly
in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of
the Company’s own equity instruments.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables,
other payables, amount(s) due to intermediate
holding companies and a fellow subsidiary are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Impairment loss under ECL model on trade
receivables

The Group uses both provision matrix and individual
assessment to determine ECLs for trade receivables. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns. Trade receivables with significant balances are
assessed for ECL individually.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Impairment loss under ECL model on trade
receivables (continued)

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group calibrates
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e. gross domestic
products) are expected to deteriorate over the next year
which can lead to an increased number of defaults in
the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The
Group's historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information
about the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables is
disclosed in notes 5, 23 and 40(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

4.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated impairment loss of other intangible
assets, property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets

Other intangible assets, property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are stated at costs less
accumulated amortisation, accumulated depreciation
and impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset
is impaired, the Group has to exercise judgement and
make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether
an event has occurred or any indicators that may affect
the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of an
asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
in the case of value in use, the net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in estimating the recoverable
amounts including cash flow projections and an
appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
CGU to which the assets belongs, including allocation of
corporate assets when a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be established, otherwise recoverable
amount is determined at the smallest group of CGUs, for
which the relevant corporate assets have been allocated.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, a
full impairment loss of HK$101,142,000 (2021:
HK$6,428,000) was recognised on other intangible
assets which are impaired individually. Details are set out
in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of other
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets subject to impairment assessment
were HK$1,387,327,000 (2021: HK$1,564,078,000),
HK$602,498,000 (2021: HK$458,727,000) and
HK$264,010,000 (2021: HK$289,033,000), respectively.
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS 5.

AND LOSSES

An analysis of revenue, other income, other gains and

losses is as follows:

W ~ ELfthU A ~ EfthF ) R E548

Wra ~ WA s EtF B R EE D
mE:

2022 2021
—E-— T —F
HKS'000 HK$°000
FET FHET
Revenue from contracts with REEREHNZINE
customers
Sale of aircraft engines transferred RERERER 2
at a point in time iR I 2 HE 870,055 707,931
Sale of spare parts transferred at a RERE R SR 2
point in time BHEZIHE 707,352 580,191
Rendering of services transferred PERS B R 2 RS 2 IR
over time 88,108 128,287
1,665,515 1,416,409
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5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS
AND LOSSES (continued)

Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations
is summarised below:

Sale of aircraft engines and spare parts

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of
the products and payment is generally due within 30
days from delivery.

Provision of repair and maintenance services for
aircraft engines

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payment is generally due
within 30 days from completion of the services and
customer acceptance.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied
or partially unsatisfied) for provision of repair and
maintenance services for aircraft engines as at 31
December are as follows:

5.

W ~ EfthU A ~ B fthF) R g548
(#)

BHEE
AEBBNEEERBFRNT -

HEREZERER 1T

BHEERRYERBTH > BUM
BERNZEIORAEH -

TEHRME BB IE R EIRTS

BHNEEMEHRRSEEENL BN
TMEBRETHRRSERE R BEWE30
RAEIH -

R+ZA=+—HniR Rz
HERERBOIKEFHTERNEME R
ZER BN REMN) IR ZER TR
T

2022 2021
—T_C T —fF
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Amounts expected to be recognised ~ TEHRAG SRR DA ¢

as revenue:

Within one year —FR 9,679 8,139
After one year — 1% 36,127 29,253

45,806 37,392
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS 5.

AND LOSSES (continued)

Performance obligations (continued)

Provision of repair and maintenance services for

aircraft engines (continued)

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the

remaining performance obligations disclosed above

relate to repair and maintenance services for aircraft

engines, of which the performance obligations are to be

satisfied within five years. All the amounts of transaction

prices allocated to the remaining performance

obligations for sale of aircraft engines and spare parts

are expected to be recognised as revenue within one

year.

Wz ~ ELfthU A ~ EfthF) R E548

()
BHEE &)

TR BB IEIRBIRES (B

EXFRBENRZERT Y REN
AEREMPREESRECRER
BB TENET LS EIERE
RRFIAENB-FrB L E MK
BB DEER TEOEENR
DERTHEBARARN -—SRAEIRK

2%,
iy

2022 2021
—E=-= T —F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Other income Hthg A
Bank borrowings forgiven* RITEERR - 57,559
Bank interest income RITRIE WA 9,137 3,586
Distributorship fee income DEHEUWA 783 775
Government grant** S AT 68 Bl 143 =
Insurance claim RERE 1,078 =
Interest income on loan to an A ERBIRENERZ
associate FEWA 391 448
Interest income on loan to a joint AaEARIRENER
venture FEWA - 285
Management fee income BIEEIWA 1,265 =
Others HAth 833 697
13,630 63,350
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS
AND LOSSES (continued)

*

* %

During the year ended 31 December 2021, as part of the
US federal government’s PPP to support entities to continue
paying salary to their workers, the Group's bank borrowings
with a carrying amount of HK$57,559,000 were forgiven as
the Group had fulfilled the conditions as required by the US
federal government which includes, amongst other things,
maintaining employees and compensation at acquired
levels.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
received government grant of HK$143,000 in respect of
Covid-19-related subsidies from the Employment Support
Scheme provided by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region.

5. W EURA -~ BRI KR8

G-

*

**

HE_ T —HF+”"A=+—HLHE
ErAREBREDEZEHTBFER
NG CEEREEERMREKF
1B 8 & E ) 8 E A 5 BB FB
AR EEREESNTETIIEN
FEREFIN B0 AEEKRE
{857,559,000 8 THIRITEEESE
gao

HE_S__F+”"A=+—HLt=HE
B AEBMEBRRTERE BT
IR BiCovid-1952 15 #8 B8 8 B AU R 3k
¥t 8IS BT /RE143,00058 7T

2022 2021
—EIF —B”—
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Other gains and losses HthF B RkEE
Gain on deemed disposal of an BIEHEMERS ZFE
associate 3,852 11,790
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE—RB&aE R zfE 6,515 -
Gain on early termination of lease IRAIARIEFRE ZF) B 10 S
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - FE MR EZEE
equipment (315) (7,866)
Loss on disposal of other intangible  HEHMEREEEE
assets (326) -
Fair value gain on other financial Hinrmad s AT EFHE
liabilities (Note) (HtzE) - 12,525
Fair value gain (loss) on an investment &Y% > AT EF]H
property (E518) 700 (4,400)
Foreign exchange differences, net SNEE R A = BR R RR (2,457) (10,083)
7,979 1,966

Note:

In prior year, the Group’s bank borrowings have been
fully repaid and all interest rate swap contracts have been
settled. Fair value gain of HK$12,525,000 was recognised
and included in other gains and losses.

mat -

EF AEENRTEEB2EEER
FMEFEERGaNHEE S A FE
F)F812,525,0008 c EERBIM T AE
)R g8 o
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS 5. Uxizi~Hithyg A ~ EthFH R A8

AND LOSSES (continued) (#)

2022 2021
—g-C T —F
HKS’'000 HK$°000
FET FET

Impairment losses under expected FEHIEEBEER T

credit loss model, net of reversal:  H{EES1E > 0GR EE
— trade receivables — W E Z AR (1,347) (426)
— other receivables —H A FE AR R (4,600) 2,931
- loan to a joint venture —mAEEREREENER (7) 1,832
(5,954) 4,337
Details of impairment assessment are set out in notes BAETEFIBEHNMEE1923 24K

19, 23, 24 and 40 (b). 40 (b)e
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6.

OPERATING SEGMENT

Information reported to the chief executive officer of
the Group, being the chief operating decision maker
("CODM"), for the purpose of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance focuses on
type of goods or services delivered or provided. The
Group has only one reportable operating segment, the
general aviation aircraft piston engine business, which
is engaged in the design, development and production
of general aviation aircraft piston engines and spare
parts as well as the provision of aftermarket services and
support for piston engines.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segment separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit (loss) before tax, which is a
measure of adjusted profit (loss) before tax. The adjusted
profit (loss) before tax is measured consistently with
the Group's profit (loss) before tax except that certain
income, gains and losses, administrative expenses,
impairment losses under ECL model, net of reversal and
share of results of an associate are excluded from such
measurement.

The CODM makes decisions according to operating
results of the segment. No analysis of segment asset
and segment liability is presented as the CODM does
not regularly review such information for the purposes
of resources allocation and performance assessment.
Therefore, only segment revenue and segment results
are presented.

REE AR
mOEBERRFEDIMREMALE
BT BIEBEERERE (X2
MERRE))) REVERAIBRAR
TR E MmN ARFHRE - A EE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE - FE+-_H=+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENT (continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable operating segment for the year

ended 31 December.

6. ENER )
UTABE+-A=+—HLEEEXR
EENHEREFRAZRZGED S

fEHZ D4 o

General aviation
aircraft piston

engine business Total
BRAMEREEREDRER EL
2022 2021 2022 2021
g e - TZEIZE CT”-F
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue SEEE
Sales to external customers HOBERHEE 1,665,515 1,416,409 1,665,515 1,416,409
Segment results DEEE 34,012 (23,403) 34,012 (23,403)
Unallocated other income ROEAMUA 11,253 4,260
Unallocated other gains and ROEAMF BRER
losses 12,559 9,317
Unallocated administrative ROETEHERER
expenses (17,562) (15,597)
Unallocated impairment losses RO A TEHEEEE
under ECL model, BT ZRESE
net of reversal &R (4,607) 4,763
Share of results of an associate ~ D{GEE AT EE (8,390) (4,130)
Profit (loss) before tax BrivEad (518) 27,265 (24,790)
Other segment information HittpBER
Depreciation of property, plant ¥ ¥ -BEMNREZINE
and equipment 29,414 45,985 29,414 45,985
Unallocated depreciation XOECIE 3,578 30
32,992 46,015
Depreciation of right-of-use FHREBEZITE
assets 14,194 15,834 14,194 15,834
Amortisation of other intangible ~ EfEF & E 2 #i4
assets 83,807 87,094 83,807 87,094
Capital expenditure* BARRY* 77,419 68,587 77,419 68,587
Unallocated capital expenditure ~ RDEEARRZ 791 33
78,210 68,620
e Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant L EARTEEABENE BREMNLRE

and equipment and other intangible assets.

REMBTLEE-
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT (continued)

(a)

REDE (&

Geographical information MEER

Revenue from external customers (@ FKEIEEFLEKZ
2022 2021
-2 —E_—F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
USA EH 1,376,844 1,111,230
Europe B 179,005 188,490
Others HAth 109,666 116,689
1,665,515 1,416,409

(b)

The revenue information above is based on the

LRREER D RERERZ

location of the customers. FRTEME] 5 0
Non-current assets (b) FEREEE

2022 2021
—E-C =4
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
USA EH 1,642,047 1,785,853
Europe BRM 503,465 540,024
Hong Kong A 121,762 123,849
Mainland China R [ g 3t 14,409 20,446
2,281,683 2,470,172

The non-current assets information above is
based on the location of the assets and excludes
financial assets and deferred tax assets.

LHIFRBEEERNREE
ZFrEHE 5 WA BEMBE

EREIEREEE -
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OPERATING SEGMENT (continued) 6.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years,
which individually contributed to 10% or more of the
Group's revenue, is set out below:

REDNE (B

FERXRZEH

HEFEREZR ZWE&HIIWT
BESMERERRDZ10%IA L -

2022 2021

—E-C B —F

HKS'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Customer A ZEA 540,127 454,569

Customer B =FB 256,659 230,114

Customer C ZHRC 300,910 210,587

FINANCE COSTS 7. BHBEX

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MHERAZSRUT

2022 2021

== B —fF

HKS'000 HK$000

FET FET

Interest on bank borrowings RITEEZAE = 159

Interest on lease liabilities HEaeFEZFE 14,001 14,268

Other interest expenses HtF B2 H 75 133

14,076 14,560
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8.

INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE 8.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
as the Group did not generate any assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during both years. Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates
of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which
the Group operates.

FRISIR (B %) A%

REZEMEEE > BRAERTELEM
BRREBBZERRar B #FY
EEACGRNERF HMMERRR G
MZRBEAXBEAERCEMERR
S EBRRERZIREGH

2022 2021
—E—- B
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current — Elsewhere: BIE—H & -
Charge for the year AEME 15,326 10,386
(Over)under provision in prior years BEFEEZ GBZEHE)
BHETRE (816) 3,258
Deferred tax (note 35) RIERRIE (B73235) (38,077) 17,538

(23,567) 31,182
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INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE 8.
(continued)

A reconciliation of the tax (credit) expense applicable
to profit (loss) before tax at the statutory rates for the
countries/jurisdictions in which the Company and the
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax
expense at the effective rate for the year is as follows:

518 (B%) Bz (&

BAERRARETEMBLABMERR
SEBRHZEERXAEBERRRG
MATEF (B18) NIRIE (R %) X A
RERBEMERZMBERAIHIRMO T

2022 2021
—E-C T —F
HKS'000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Profit (loss) before tax BrIETR A (B518) 27,265 (24,790)
Tax at the statutory tax rates of BREEBBEIEMRETFEZ
respective entities MR8 6,816 (3,930)
Tax effect of share of results of an ﬁTﬁEﬁﬁﬁ@T%@
associate METE 2,097 1,032
Effect of withholding tax on interest ~ FEIN R ¥ 2 5?—55’]
income from the USA B WA B 2 28 7,204 7,040
(Over)under provision in respect of BEFEZ BZESB)
prior years BEHETE (816) 3,258
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERRMA ZRFFT L
tax purpose (18,214) (22,571)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible a1 EAZWRFE 2
for tax purpose 10,915 7,851
Tax effect of deductible temporary REED AN R Z XA
differences not recognised or Bl AT HE SR B T HN AR B
reversal of deductible temporary RFERBZMBEE
differences previously recognised (4,329) 16,032
Tax effect on utilisation of tax losses BB AR R RFEE B
previously not recognised or tax MEEE (ERR) &L
losses (recognised) or reversal of tax ~ cRIFEERHIRFEESIE 2
losses previously recognised METE (27,240) 22,470
Income tax (credit) expense for the REMBR ER) B2
year (23,567) 31,182
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9.

AR e M IR R MY EE

PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 9. ZAFiEf (5518)

The Group's profit (loss) for the year has been arrived at

after charging:

AEBAEEN (B8 S :

2022 2021
—T_C T —F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
€27
Cost of inventories recognised as BRARZZFERE

an expense (including write- (BIEFERET1,557,000

down of inventories amounting BT (CE-_—F:

to HK$11,557,000 (2021: 8,197,000 7T))

HK$8,197,000)) 1,085,381 1,016,720
Cost of services provided MR Z B2 71,646 77,038
Provisions: B

Additional provision, net (note 37)*  REIMNEFEIFEE (BYa231) * 72,258 76,906
Depreciation of property, plant and ME -BMERSEBZINE

equipment (note 13) (Bta£13) 32,992 46,015
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEREEEZINE

(note 14) (Htzt14) 14,194 15,834
Amortisation of other intangible HEMEmrEE 2 #iH

assets (note 17) (Hrat17) 83,807 87,094
Employee benefit expense BERMEX

(including directors’ remuneration) (B15 E F#H )

Wages and salaries TERF® 209,678 208,768

Retirement benefits and BRREN B+

contributions** 15,584 16,177
Defined benefit schemes (note 36) TEEE@AIFTE] (at36) 3,112 3,369
228,374 228,314

Auditor’s remuneration 12 B4 B i B 4,364 3,745
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9. PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (continued)

*

*k

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the total
estimated cost of HK$40,539,000 was for a legal case
which relates to product liabilities and included in product
claim provision. The legal case has been finalised and
settled in prior year.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the total
estimated cost of HK$23,400,000 was for a legal case
which relates to product claim liabilities and included in
product clam provision. The legal case is still undergoing
judicial procedures as at 31 December 2022.

Retirement benefits and contributions of the Group include
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme in Hong Kong, the
state-managed retirement benefits scheme in the PRC, and
the social security expenditure in Germany.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
pension scheme in future years (2021: Nil).

9. &FiEH (FH @

*

* %

R&EE_E-_—F+"A=+—H8L
FE st 440,539,000 T4
HERSTEBNERENG WA
ERREREHE ZLARZEGERESR
BIER SRR

BE_Z-__F+ZA=+—HI
FE st 423,400,000 84
HERRBEXEMNEIERSE I
FAERRBRE-HE_Z -
+ZB=+—H ZEREHNTE
TEERRF

FEBEZEBRRBHRERBEEEZ
IR E S8 PR Z EZOR KB G
BB HERES Y

R ZE_F+ZR=+—H %%
B 3 R AT e B 0% Wi =R B) A 1R OB D R
REEZERREFAEIHR (CTEZ—

==

%)
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10.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10.
REMUNERATIONS

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the applicable Listing Rules and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

EFRITHABRZME

REBEERLHRUKREBRIRGZ
RERBZREEEMEUT -

2022 2021
—EZCF S —F
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fees Be 1,420 1,300
Other emoluments: HpE -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in HEe R REYH @
kind 2,200 3,547
Retirement benefits scheme and BARBH B R R
contributions 90 174
2,290 3,721
3,710 5,021
(a) Independent Non-executive Directors (@ WIFRNITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive RELZNFEIENTESZ
directors during the year were as follows: \|EUWT -
2022 2021
—ECHF - —F
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Chu Yu Lin, David E)i 400 360
Li Ka Fai, David ERE 400 360
Zhang Ping iR 320 280
1,120 1,000
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10. DIRECTORS’' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10.
REMUNERATIONS (continued)

(a)

(b)

EFRITHERZME (&

Independent Non-executive Directors (@) BWILIEMITEE @&
(continued)
There were no other emoluments payable to the A E AR AT T B L IEH
independent non-executive directors during the TESENMNE (ZTEZ—%F .
year (2021: Nil). ®) o
The emoluments disclosed above were for their EXFiEENME L S EE
services as directors of the Company. BENCIEEMIZHMRBEE
Ho
Executive Directors and Non-executive b) BMITEFERIERNITEE
Director
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind contributions remuneration
e 2Bk BARESER
s BWHE BEGE [
2022 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
—E-CE FET FET FET FET
Executive Directors: HITEE:
Lai Weixuan (resigned BREER-_Z-__&

on 1 April 2022) A —BET) 9 - - 9
Li Peiyin (appointed on ~ FEE (RZEZ_&

1 April 2022) A —BHEZM) 27 - - 27
Huang Yongfeng HEIE 36 - - 36
Jiao Yan -1 36 - - 36
Yu Xiaodong TR 36 2,010 85 2,131
Zhao Yang 1 36 190 5 231

180 2,200 90 2,470

Non-executive Director:  FEHTEE !
Chow Wai Kam BE% 120 - - 120
300 2,200 90 2,590
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10.

(b)

FAFSER R MY 5E

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. EERITHAHZME &
REMUNERATIONS (continued)
Executive Directors and Non-executive (b) BITEFRIFRITESE &
Director (continued)
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind  contributions  remuneration
FEEME BARZEN
wE BEYia BRI M&4E%E
2021 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“ET-F FET FAET FET FET
Executive Directors: HITEE:
Lai Weixuan BEE 36 = = 36
Huang Yongfeng mEERZ2Z—
(appointed on —BZ+RREZD
25 January 2021) 33 - - 33
Fu Fangxing BHE (RS- —F
(resigned on —BZ+AB&HD
25 January 2021) 3 - - 3
Jiao Yan (appointed on  EF (RZZT_—F
30 August 2021) NE=+HEZD 12 = = 12
Yu Xiaodong FEX 36 2,037 156 2,229
Zhang Zhibiao BEER_BE—F
(resigned on NB=+HED)
30 August 2021) 24 - - 24
Zhao Yang ik 36 1,510 18 1,564
180 3,547 174 3,901
Non-executive Director:  JFHTESE !
Chow Wai Kam BE% 120 - - 120
300 3,547 174 4,021

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and
the Group.

The non-executive director's emolument shown
above was for his services as director of the
Company and the Group.

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year (2021: Nil).

ERFATBRITESTHEIMKER
EEARARTEBEHAEHHOR

BEL ©

ERFATHGERITEEME KA
WERBRAEBEERREHRE

Bt

rEREEONESETREARNEREE
mMEz2h (CEZ—F 1§ -



11.

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited

®

AEMERIZERARAT
Annual Report 2022 —2 = ZFF 3R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & BA 5 sR R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE - FE+-_H=+—HILFE

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 11.

The five highest paid employees of the Group during
the year included one (2021: one) director, details of
whose remuneration is set out in note 10 above. Details
of the remuneration for the year of the four (2021: four)
highest paid employees who are not a director of the
Company are as follows:

hamEHES

rEAEELAREMEERE—%
(Z2Z—F:—)EF HilEs
BHER EXHFI0-AF@NE (ZF
T—F R ReFHES WLIFERTE
EX) zMEsBaT

2022 2021
—E-= —E_—F
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Salaries, allowances and e 2R EEYM G
benefits in kind 7,846 8,133
Performance related bonuses T ERIFAERTEAL 5,140 2,900
12,986 11,033

The number of highest paid employees who are not the
director of the Company whose remuneration fell within
the following bands is as follows:

MEaE T BREZz RS ES (LIFFK
NEEE) ANH:

Number of employees

BEEAH

2022 2021
—E-- - —F

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 8T E
2,000,0007 75 1 1

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 TE
2,500,000 7 2 1

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 B TE
3,000,000 7T - 1

HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 T E
4,500,000% 7T = 1

HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 6,500,001 TE
7,000,000 7T 1 -

195



196

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
KEMERKIZERERAE
Annual Report 2022 — &~ —HF4FELR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & BA 78R RMisE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE-_“HF+_H=+—HIEE

12.

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 12.

The calculation of the basic earnings (loss) per share
amounts is based on the profit (loss) for the year
attributable to owners of the Company and the number
of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of basic earnings (loss) per share is based
on:

ZREH (&)

SREFRBRA (58 SBEHREEFA
AR ABEEERF (B8 REE
BRTEBRBEHNE -

T

BREAXEFN (BB NtEHRE

2022 2021
e - 2 TET—F
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Profit (loss) attributable to owners KABHEE ANELEHR (E518)
of the Company 50,832 (55,972)

Number of shares
K& 8

2022 and 2021

— B _FRIB_—F

mRHE

XIP(
—_\
i
HJH

Number of ordinary shares in KEBE
issue during the year

9,303,374,783

No diluted earnings (loss) per share for both 2022 and
2021 were presented as there were no potential ordinary
shares in issue for both 2022 and 2021.

EEB\_v__EEz_v_—Ei’jm

ZTEREET ALK
:gi—fﬁi’:ﬁ#\iﬁ'ﬁﬁﬂﬂiﬁ%%ﬂ (&5
18) o
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥E- -BEMRE
Furniture Machinery
Freehold Leasehold and and Motor  Construction
lands Buildings  improvements fixtures equipment vehicles in progress Total
KAR#LY gF HERE  GRREE  HENRE HE TRIR Eh
HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HK$ 000 HKS000 HK$ 000
AT FEr FEr FEr Fér FEr FET &7
COST A
At 1 January 2021 R-B--%-B-H 9,863 30,568 65,979 2,669 308,690 1,618 241,934 661,321
Additions RE = = = 33 3,140 - 40,202 43,375
Transfers & = = 2,400 = 86,225 - (88,887) (262)
Disposals e 2 5 () 5 (28,034) - (489) (28,350)
Exchange realignment ERBE (505) (1,809) S - (7,649) = (66) (10,029)
At 31 December 2021 and RIBZ-£+ZA=1+-Bk

1 January 2022 “E-2&-A-A 9,358 28763 68,352 2,702 362372 1618 192,694 665,859
Additions AE o o 265 791 5,370 © 47,204 53,630
Transfers & = = = = 4,943 = (4.943) -
Transfer from investment property BRENEER W 15)

(note 13) = 124,500 = = = = = 124,500
Disposals tE - - (1,851) - (4417) - - (6,328)
Exchange realignment EREE (479) (1,730) 674 - (3,683) - 1,073 (4,145)
At 31 December 2022 KZE-"#+-A=1+-A 8,879 151,533 67,440 3493 364,525 1,618 236,028 833,516
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND ~ EREHT& R fE

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2021 R -£-F-H - 3348 15,642 2,624 156,760 1,618 - 179,992
Charge for the year (note 9) RERR (9 = 1,198 7213 30 37,574 - - 46,015
Disposals tE - - (1) - (17,830) - 5 (17,857)
Impairment loss recognised in REGRINAESE

profit or loss - - - - 5,528 - - 5,528
Exchange realignment EREE - (466) - - (6,080) - S (6,546)
At 31 December 2021 and RIEZ-5+ZA=+-Bk

1 January 2022 “ZT"E-f-H - 4,080 22,828 2,654 175,952 1,618 = 207,132
Charge for the year (note 9) KERR (i) - 4,454 3,038 182 25,318 - - 32992
Disposals tE - - (1,544) - (4152) - - (5,696)
Exchange realignment EREE = (455) 368 = (3323) - - (3,410)
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZE+ZA=1+-H = 8,079 24,690 2,836 193,795 1,618 - 231,018
NET CARRYING AMOUNT FE3E
At 31 December 2022 RIEZIETIA=1-H 8,879 143,454 42,750 657 170,730 = 236,028 602,498
At 31 December 2021 R_E_—F+°A=+-H 9,358 24,683 45,504 48 186,420 - 192,694 458,727
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. YE-BENRE (&
(continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, PROKAER I RERITREN > Lt
except for freehold lands and construction in progress, ME - BEMZXEBEEEEEFGE
after taking into account the residual values, are B BUTFERUEREEESIR
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates e
per annum:
Buildings 3% - 3% BF 3% —3"3%
Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms THEHEE THHER
Furniture and fixtures 20% - 33% FAREE 20%—33%
Machinery and equipment 4% — 50% e B 4% —50%
Motor vehicles 20% - 25% AE 20%—25%
During the year ended 31 December 2021, impairment HE_Z_—F+ZHA=+—HIHF
loss was recognised to certain property, plant and ErAAERETEEFSEKIL &F
equipment with carrying value of HK$5,528,000 due to ME -BEREEBEDRESRE HIR
termination of certain production plans of the Group. No H{8735,528,0008 L B E LT -
impairment loss has been recognised on property, plant F+ZA=1+—HLEFE #BiEm}®Y
and equipment during the year ended 31 December (- BERFERDRERE-
2022.
14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 14. EREEE
Leasehold Motor
land Buildings vehicles Total
HELM 1BF RE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
As at 31 December 2022 RZE__%
+ZA=+-H
Carrying amount EIEN 7,843 255,539 628 264,010
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ—-&
+ZR=+-H
Carrying amount REE 7,920 280,153 960 289,033
For the year ended BE_T”-_"%+ZH
31 December 2022 =+—HLEE
Depreciation charge ERS 128 13,628 438 14,194
For the year ended BEz_Z”_—-&5+ZR8
31 December 2021 =+—HLEE
Depreciation charge mERY 127 15,353 354 15,834
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14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) 14. ERESE &

2022 2021

—E-= -

HKS'000 HK$000

FAET FET

Expense relating to short-term leases E2fGHATE S A RINE R 400 1,244
Expense relating to leases of low- HEEEEEHEERRAN

value assets, excluding short-term &R FEEREE

leases of low-value assets BEERPHEE 922 927

Total cash outflow for leases HERE ML 4EEE 21,512 23,656

Additions to right-of-use assets NEGHEEESE 158 3,387

For both years, the Group leases leasehold land,
buildings and motor vehicles for its operations. Lease
contracts are entered into for fixed term of 1 year to
75 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
has shortened the lease term for one of the buildings.
The reduction of the Company’s lease liabilities of
HK$12,326,000 and a corresponding adjustment to the
right-of-use assets of HK$12,326,000 were recognised.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
motor vehicles, machinery and equipment and office
premises. As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio
of short-term leases to which the short-term lease
expense disclosed above.

RWmEEE xEESHEEHEE M
BF REFEEZA -HEGUNE
ERRA1FEETSEF - HERRIZE R
EREER > 8B TRIRRR AR o 1
EHRERRLFENTHBEFRARE
FoAEERASMNERLHES
#IBIRHI BATRIHAMR o

BHE_Z-__f+-H=+—81
FE CAADEHEEET—HEFHN
M -EmIBEALATHESEBRD
12,326,0008 Tt K B E EHEH
#£12,326,000# 75 ©

AERBEDNE BEMAREUR
ALY SARVECE SN LY S —_—
FR-ZE-_—F+"RB=+—H'%&
HAEAGR EXMREZEHAR
ERNEREEEGHEE.
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14.

15.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) 14. EREEE (&
The Group estimates the recoverable amounts of each EREE G ERAEEENH G
CGU to which the right-of-use assets belong, when it SR ARG ZEEED AN
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of BREELFB NI KEIEEE HE
these assets individually. The recoverable amounts of the EEB TN KEISERBEFEREE
CGUs have been determined based on a value-in-use FEETE BMGE (BEEREES
calculation, details of which including key assumptions B RNEERR) SR 160
underlying the value-in-use calculation are set out in
note 16.
INVESTMENT PROPERTY 15. KREWE
2022 2021
—g_C T —F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—HZiREE 123,800 128,200
Increase (decrease) in fair value REHERAFEE N
recognised in profit or loss GRLZD 700 (4,400)
Transfer to property, plant and EBEFYX -BRENRE
equipment (note 13) (Htz£13) (124,500) -
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZB=+—HZKEE - 123,800

The Group’s investment property consisted of a
commercial property in Hong Kong. During the year
ended 31 December 2022, the Group's investment
property was transferred to property, plant and
equipment at the carrying amount of HK$124,500,000
on commencement of owner occupation. The Group's
investment property was revalued based on valuation
performed by LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited,
an independent professionally qualified valuer. As at
the date of transfer and as at 31 December 2021,
the Group's deputy chief financial officer appoints an
external valuer to be responsible for the valuation of the
Group’s investment property. Selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and
qualification of external valuer.

FEENLEMECEEANEAY
¥oHE_EB__H#+-_HB=+—H
IEFEE AEBMNKBENEREETH
15145 BB RF LABREI1E124,500,00078 o 8%
BEYX BEMRB AEENKE
MERBHMBITAZMBERAR (&
UEXESERGEM) ETHNGHES
HoRBEHBARN _E-_—F+=
B=+—HB AEBEZHMEIRES
B EMEBEHAERREYE
ETEE-RESECQEMBENA B
B BRI EEMER -
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 15. KREME @)
The fair value is within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. NFERRFEERFE=HRA-
During both years, there were no transfers into or out of RREFEFER HEEAGEBEHE =
Level 3. 4 o
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used MFARZE-_—F+"HA=+—H
and the key inputs to the valuation of investment SCEMEGLEMRANEES EREE
property as at 31 December 2021: BMABBZHME
Significant
Valuation unobservable
Investment property technique Key input inputs
KEME B 1l FERARIE BEAFTHE
B8 A B
Commercial property Market comparison Adjusted unit price HK$25,063 -
approach HK$35,579
per square
foot
[k ES MIF LB KREEB FEHER
25,0634 7T
Z35,5798 7T

Under the market comparison approach, the property
is valued on the market basis assuming sales in its
existing state with the benefit of vacant possession and
by making reference to comparable sales evidence as
available in the relevant markets. Comparison is based
on prices realised in actual transactions or asking prices
of comparable properties. Appropriate adjustments are
then made to account for the differences between such
properties in terms of age, floor level and other relevant
factors.

A significant increase (decrease) in the adjusted unit
price would result in a significant increase (decrease) in
the fair value of the investment property.

RETSLEBE PERTHEEREE
TRHE EPRRUBAREHE I
SREBTEIESZAULREER
BB EREBERRSZHZERE
BRI LEBEPEZ WM EB 2B EF
MEZRR BESEBEREMBERE
FZERFHBERE-

RRBEBEXEREM (B RERR
BEMENRTEAREEM R
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16.

GOODWILL

The Group's goodwill acquired through business
combination has been allocated to the following CGUs
for impairment testing:

J General aviation aircraft piston engine business in
USA CGU ("USA CGU"); and

o General aviation aircraft piston engine business in
Germany CGU (“Germany CGU")

Management performed the impairment assessment of
USA CGU and Germany CGU with the support of an
independent professional valuer, Kroll, LLC (formerly
known as Duff & Phelps, LLC).

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the entire amount
of goodwill was related to the Germany CGU. The
goodwill related to USA CGU has been fully impaired
in previous year. During the year ended 31 December
2022, the directors of the Company determines that
there is no impairment on Germany CGU.

16.

]
AEMEBEBAHREZEEES
BT THREEEETLUETREN
5

Iig

BRAMEREIEZLZIRES
REENREELEET (TXE
REEEET) ;&

. ERAMTERES T ESFEET
RERMNREEESE T (ER
HEESXET))

TEIH I F ¥ (L {EETKroll, LLC (BIFBDuUff
& Phelps, LLC) BB T BIEEH =
BEREELEBTRERREELE T
ETREF S

RZEZZHFRZZEZ—F+ZAH
=t+—HB BAENEPEREAEEIR
TELSEAER - BEEARTELE
TENBEERBEEERZHHE
B RBE_E_—_F#+-_B=+—
HEFER AR BEFTECEHR
EELEETIBRME
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16. GOODWILL (continued) 16. BHE &)
USA Germany
CGU CGU Total
EEiEES EERE
EE8x EX8x a5t
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
COST R s
At 1 January 2021 R_Z_—%—H—H 385,770 14,927 400,697
Exchange realignment b R sR R = (764) (764)
At 31 December 2021 N B —4F
+=B=+—H 385,770 14,163 399,933
Exchange realignment P& 2 A %L - (724) (724)
At 31 December 2022 R
+—-HA=+—H 385,770 13,439 399,209
IMPAIRMENT HE
At 1 January 2021, 31 December AT —F
2021 and 2022 —A—H-
—ETFRK
s
+-—HA=+—H (385,770) - (385,770)
CARRYING VALUES IRmEE
At 31 December 2022 AT
+=B=+—H - 13,439 13,439
At 31 December 2021 R _E - —4F
+=B=+—H = 14,163 14,163

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations

are as follows:

SAEERABEMEANEERRUT:

USA Germany
CGU CGU
EJEEE EERE
EXErx EXE8rx
Long-term growth rate R RE
31 December 2022 —E-—F+-B=+—QH N/A A% B 2.5%
31 December 2021 —E-—F+-"H=+—H 2.5% 2.5%
Discount rate FrIRE
31 December 2022 TS+ -"H=+—H N/A % H 14.9%
31 December 2021 S —&#+_"_HB=+—H 14.1% 14.9%
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16.

GOODWILL (continued)

In addition to goodwill above, other intangible assets,
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
disclosed in notes 17, 13 and 14, that generate cash
flows together with the related goodwill are also
included in the respective CGU for the purpose of
impairment assessment.

The recoverable amounts of both CGUs have been
determined based on a value-in-use calculation using
cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period
for both CGUs. The budgeted gross margins and annual
revenue growth rates during the forecasted period
are determined based on past performance and the
expectations of market development. The discount rates
used are before tax and reflect specific risks relating to
the relevant units. The cash flows beyond the forecast
period are extrapolated using the rates stated above.
These long-term growth rates are based on relevant
industry growth forecasts and does not exceed the
average growth rate after the forecast period of the
industry in which the units operate.

Based on the above impairment assessment, no
impairment loss has been recognised on other assets
of the USA CGU or the goodwill of the Germany CGU
for both years since the estimated recoverable amount
for each of USA CGU and Germany CGU is above the
respective carrying amount of its assets. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any of
these assumptions would not result in any impairment
loss.

16.

BmE #E)

A EFHENMmE bk XX
BN W17V 13RIVAFTBEEESRE
MENEMEEEE - WE -BREMR
EUREHAEEEERMBAEEI st
ABSHREEEETo

WEREEEB TR WEIEEETR
BRARERERARAEZERE
EMEE ZRSRER/AUEERE
HERNTEH iMmEREELETM
B)VMBEREAER -BARANESR
EMERFWRAERRTZBERR
kTG ERENTAREE -FRERZ
REHIRNA K I MR A B BB o 8
ZHERB -BARBERNREERE
DBDEREXFEZARERE - RZEFR
HERXDERERTEZERER
BETrBBAAMEERERMETEEMN
EITERZFHERR

ERN EHBENGE BRNERRSE
TETNBEEAREELE TR BNMG
st EIEESENHEEENBRIK
HEE MEFE ERRTELET
NEMEENBEREELEE TG
BImmEslHNESE EEERA F
HZERRNEFNSETEEZ(HF
CEREMRMERRE-



Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
KEMERKIZERERAE
@ - ' Annual Report 2022 —% — — F 4R 205

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 452 & BA T8 $R R Mt sE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E-_E_"_F+_A=+—HLFE

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. HihEEEE
Product
technology,
Development licence and
programs completed Customer
in progress  Trademarks programs  relationships Others Total

Emif
i MR R

ZRetdl #E  ERmHE ERAR Hith CH

HKS$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
T T T FET TE7T TE7T

COST 1%
At 1 January 2021 RZE_—-F—-F-H 241,127 264,568 918,004 553,845 13,217 1,990,761
Additions //JE 25,051 - 49 - 145 25,245
Disposals HE - - (165) = = (165)
Transfers Ei = = 262 = = 262
Exchange realignment ERAEE (3,594) (1,837) (18,722) (6,557) 6 (30,704)
At 31 December 2021 and RZE_-E+"B=+-HEk

1 January 2022 —E-"#-A-H 262,584 262,731 899,428 547,288 13,368 1,985,399
Additions "E 18,580 4,125 1,875 = = 24,580
Disposals HE (277) - - - (657) (934)
Transfers 8y (10,522) - 10,522 - - -
Exchange realignment ERAR (2,295) 11 (13,203) (3,274) 145 (18,616)
At 31 December 2022 KIE-ZH+-B=+-A 268070 266,867 898622 544,014 12856 1990429
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND Ef&i$# R E

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2021 RZE_-F—-A—H 58,753 28,150 126,437 112,450 7,905 333,695
Charge for the year (note 9) RERS (H3#9) = 9,718 36,431 38,451 2,494 87,004
Disposals HE = = (165) = = (165)
Impairment loss recognised REEEINAESR

in profit or loss - 1,307 - 5,121 - 6,428
Exchange realignment ERHEE - (798) (3,258) (1,678) 3 (5,731)
At 31 December 2021 and RIBZ—-4+ZF=1+-Hk

1 January 2022 —E-"#-A-H 58,753 38,377 159,445 154,344 10,402 421,321
Charge for the year (note 9) RERS (W3#9) - 9,596 35,516 37,473 1,222 83,807
Disposals HE = = - - (608) (608)
Impairment loss recognised REGEINAESR

in profit or loss 101,142 - - - = 101,142
Exchange realignment ERBR 9 (395) (1,591) (679) 114 (2,560)
At 31 December 2022 RIEZZFE+-RB=1+—H 159,886 47,578 193,370 191,138 11,130 603,102
NET CARRYING AMOUNT REFE
At 31 December 2022 RIEZZF+-B=+-H 108,184 219,289 705,252 352,876 1,726 1,387,327

At 31 December 2021 RIEZ-F+-F=+-H 203,831 224,354 739,983 392,944 2,966 1,564,078
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17.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The above intangible assets have finite useful
lives amounted to HK$1,279,143,000 (2021:
HK$1,360,247,000). Such intangible assets are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the following
periods:
Trademarks 30 years
Product technology, licence and

completed programs 10 to 30 years
Customer relationships
Others

15 years
1 to 5 years

During the year ended 31 December 2021, impairment
loss of HK$1,307,000 and HK$5,121,000 were
recognised for trademarks and customer relationships,
respectively, as the Group has suspended one of its
production line and the respective trademarks and
customer relationships are considered no longer had any
economic benefit.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group estimated the
recoverable amounts of respective CGUs to which the
other intangible assets belonged, when it was not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of these
assets individually. The recoverable amounts of the
CGUs have been determined based on a value-in-use
calculation, details of which including key assumptions
underlying the value-in-use calculation are set out in
note 16.

17.

HthEEE (&

T ERFRERNERLEESS
#1,279,143,0008 5 (ZE - —4F :
1,360,247,000%87T) ° LR EER
THHARR E AR A EEEY

(g 304
EmEM- - BREE

SEALET &) 10E 304
ERR® 154
Hih 1E54

BE_ T _—&F+-HB=+—HILHE
E - BRAEBEEEEP—KREE
moMAMAERREFRBAGREREASAL
BEEEAKEMN G HABEERE
F A& D B FESE R EE5381,307,00078
T R%5,121,0005 7T °

A _E_—F+_"_HA=+—H ' EXK
EEELENGEMEREENT
WElIEEF AEBEHEIAZEEE
FFENEREESB WKL %
BoRESELEB N IKREIEEELIR
BEEREESTEMET  BRFE (8
EHREACABESENETERS #81
MsE160
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OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 17. Ht1BREE (&
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group BE_T_"_F+-HA=+—HI*F
has suspended a development program in progress, and ErAEBCEEEFE—BETHERE
the management assessed the other intangible assets 2oMmMEEEBENTIEEMELEE
belong to the program individually and recognised a full BRZetE TEEmPmR 2R
impairment loss of HK$101,142,000 in profit or loss. fEE518101,142,0008 7T °
For the remaining development programs in progress of T ER108,184,000548 T Ay 1T &2
HK$108,184,000, the management has carried out an BstE  BEEBEN S __fﬁ‘f—_
impairment assessment as at 31 December 2022 and B=+—BETRENMG LRAR
concluded there is no impairment required. BMESRE
The management also concluded there is no impairment BEETRAERFRBERMNHEM
of the other intangible assets with finite useful lives BEEERBE_ZT-"+=AH
during the year ended 31 December 2022. =+ —HIEFELRBIE-
INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. MEEQRZH#E=
2022 2021
HKS'000 HK$°000
FET FHET
Cost of investment in associate REVERB 2 RE A 10,808 10,808
Share of post-acquisition profits and 1L UREE % F) B &
other comprehensive income Hh 2> mW 4,792 9,330
Exchange realignment bE 52 o £ (1,191) 233
14,409 20,371
Loan to an associate included in SFARBBEZABE AT
current assets RHENER 6,937 7,121

The principal of the loan to an associate is RMB8,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$9,412,000), and is
interest bearing at 6% per annum. During the year
ended 31 December 2021, the principal amount of
RMB2,400,000 was repaid. The maturity date of loan was
30 June 2022. During the year, the maturity of loan has
been extended to 30 June 2023.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021,
was assessed to be minimal.

the loss allowance

BEREATRENERZEAEH AR
8,000,000t (B 12499,412,000%
7o) MR EBE6%F B - HE_T - —
F+A=+—HLEFE - BEER
£ AR 2,400,000 0 ZEFERZ
T THEANA=THIB - ARFEZE
HERH -BR_E_=ZFXB=+
HEHE7-

NW_EFRZIZEZ—F+ZAH
=t+—H A CEEEEBRERE-
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18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 18. MEtZATIZIER &)

Particulars of the associate are as follows: BEABZEEBWMT

ol

Percentage of ownership

Place of incorporation/ interest attributable
Name registration and business to the Group Principal activity
By ] AMML EMREENY FEREGEEREZEAL TBER
2022 2021
-%-Z “E-F
TRECHHNERHERA PRC/Mainland China 19.7 21.1 Research and development of
("IEREER")* (Note) engineering technology and
(H1zt) electronics communication
technology
BREGHRHERMERA R/ HElR IREMREFBERIN
(T RERER) B 25 e B 3
* Not audited by Deloitte’s members firm. * WELEH > B ASIBZ
Note: The management considers it is able to exercise significant Mist: SEERAHENHIEREESREMN
influence over 65 ZE{S % because it has the power to BEAXE AARBIERESHENR
appoint two out of the seven directors of 6 RZEE5 % under BEE HARZEILREGHR LS
the articles of association of 3t RZE(S5R. BEEFMBES-
During the year, the Group’s equity interest in JER%E KE> ARHREERILREEGESRT
{5 %= was diluted as a result of capital injection by new B AEERIIREGERZREIER
investors to 6 EE{S %=, Accordingly, a gain on deemed EwEg - HIb WHEAHEHES AT
disposal of an associate of HK$3,852,000 (2021: Z #]H3,852,0008 T (ZEZ—4F:
HK$11,790,000) was recognised in the consolidated 11,790,000/ 7T0) ERNAELESERER
statement of profit or loss for the year. FRAESY
19. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 19. REEQAT)2H#EHE
2022 2021
—E-CfF —S-
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Share of net assets DEBEE - -
Loan to a joint venture included in SFARBBEEZASE AT

current assets REHNER - 7
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INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE
(continued)

The interest in a joint venture includes the Group’s right
to enjoy certain economic benefits derived from a 69.4%
equity interest in CATIC Siwei Co., Ltd. (“CATIC Siwei")
held by third parties through trust arrangements. CATIC
Siwei is registered as a co-operative joint venture under
PRC law and is holding an investment in PRC which
operates in the aero-technology business and is an
investment holding company.

In the opinion of the directors, notwithstanding that
the Group has the right to enjoy certain economic
benefits from the 69.4% equity interest in CATIC Siwei,
none of the shareholders of CATIC Siwei has unilateral
control over the economic activity of CATIC Siwei
pursuant to the provisions in the articles of association
of CATIC Siwei. Since the decisions about the relevant
activities of CATIC Siwei require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control, the directors consider
it is appropriate to account for the investment as an
interest in a joint venture using the equity method of
accounting.

The loan to CATIC Siwei of HK$7,000 is unsecured,
interest bearing at 5% per year and repayable on
demand. Details of impairment assessment are set out in
note 40 (b).

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share
of losses of CATIC Siwei because the share of losses
of CATIC Siwei exceeded the Group's interest and the
Group has no obligation to take up further losses. CATIC
Siwei was inactive during the year ended 31 December
2022 and 2021.

19.

REERB 2w (&

REERBZRDEEFIERERESR
EHSE=-HZEESZHRFAZN
MEMZEERBERAD (THEZBR)
69.4% MR A m 2 B T HEHEF o o T4
ERREBETEAAEMBEELRE
m—EEPEFAERE  KLEFEEM
ERMEFIREERAT

EXZRR BARATEBRHEENEER
69.4%RAEmMAVE TEK U= B
REBENEZRNABEERTE  BE
PO M8 R IR SR U M B R 2 B R
VA B 75 T 4 AR o |R P PO A B RR AR
AN RREERFERNSS —
REAR EFRARAREFRETE
AENEERBEDEARBSE-

[ PO 4 38 BRI BV B RR7, 0008 7T JH 5
W REF KSRt B R BARERE
32 o R BT S B E I EE40(b) °

NREBEAKR LI DGO ZERNE
B AAShLNEERNBEEBE
AEEAYE T o A& B A & K
BEE—PEFEB - BE_TE-__EK_
T —F+_RB=+—HBLEEE-@
HEREEEE
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19.

20.

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 19.

(continued)

On 30 November 2020, the Group entered into a share
purchase agreement with a purchaser, an independent
third-party, pursuant to which the purchaser agreed to
acquire the 69.4% of the total issued capital of CATIC
Siwei at a consideration of RMB11,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$13,529,000) which was received
during the year ended 31 December 2020. The disposal
was completed on 28 April 2022. A gain on disposal of
a joint venture of HK$6,515,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year.

CATIC Siwei was not audited by Deloitte’s members firm.

REEARZER (&)
R-B-ZTE&+-—B=+H +%H

BBy E=ZFB A LBRGE
BRiEZHE BFRERREBARKE
11,500,0007¢ (HHZE 2 #4913,529,00078
T WEOHEREHEBRTREAZ

69.4% BRARBERHE_Z -5
+Z_RA=+—BLEEEKREN -ZLHE

R_E__F#NHAB -+ /N \H=EMK H
EE&E N T Z2HH6,515,0008 T E R
KEFEEERTRED

TUAEsE R RSB 2 B AR EZ

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20. EAFEAABHEZMBEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Unlisted investment, at fair value FELEMRE  HATE
Non-current asset: ERFEE :
VerdeGo Aero, Inc.’s convertible VerdeGo Aero, Inc.Z
bonds AR ES 1,950 1,938

The above investment is classified as financial assets at
FVTPL as the contractual cash flows are not SPPI.

The maturity date of the convertible bonds issued by
VerdeGo Aero, Inc. is 28 February 2028.

HRENRENBLFEREINES
RHE At EAREDERE AT
Bt A\B@mMBEE-

VerdeGo Aero, Inc.B{72 ol ES
ZHEHAAE_NE_B_+/\H-
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EQUITY INVESTMENT DESIGNATED 21. BRRTESFAHMEEKZZR
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER TKE
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
2022 2021
e - 2 T —F
HKS’'000 HK$°000
FAET FAET
Unlisted equity investment, at fair value JE EHRRARE » B AFE
Ampaire, Inc. Ampaire, Inc. 390 389
The above equity investment was irrevocably designated HRAEBERAZELEBER L
at FVTOCI as the Group considers this investment to be B E A M AR E
strategic in nature. IEEABATEFAEMEEEE -
INVENTORIES 22. #H
2022 2021
- BT —fF
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Raw materials R 369,503 351,857
Work in progress ey 134,332 123,280
Finished goods BUAY oh 18,348 17,835
522,183 492,972
TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. FEWREZIR™
2022 2021
-z BT —fF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Trade receivables FEWE 5 IR 103,114 123,190
Impairment losses under ECL model  FEHREEEEER T2
AN SE=! (6,375) (5,755)
96,739 117,435
As at 1 January 2021, trade receivables from contracts N2 —F—A—H > kBEFRA

with customers amounted to HK$122,955,000. HNZEWE ZIR™A122,955,000%8

ﬁ:o
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23.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, where partial advanced payment is required
for certain customers. The credit period is generally 30
days and each customer has been assigned a specified
credit limit by the Group.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. As at 31 December
2022, the Group had certain concentrations of credit risk
as 35% (2021: 50%) of the Group’'s trade receivables
were due from one of the Group’s key customers. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and
net of loss allowance, is as follows:

23.

PR B Z R (2

FAEREEFPZEEGRMEERR
ROPMMETERMES ARG BMHMRIE
EEH—RA30H AF-EENES
UEFPIEEEERE-

REBBRERBEZBRERNER
BREES -SESECHMA ARG
oM ZEZF+ZHA=+—8 %K
EEEETEEEHRRE RAEXR
EENEREZRTZ35% (T —
F:50%) BAERKAEE—RETERFR
ZHRE-AEBUTEMEBNRESE
MZEBTETAERRIEMEE
RB - EWE ZERAL A o

REBESHR BREZRRIZEREA
HARMREEERZREDNINT

2022 2021

—E-C —EC—4F

HKS’'000 HK$000

FET FET

Within 1 month —M@ARN 66,918 88,666
1 to 2 months —EWEA 15,469 14,509
2 to 3 months “E={@A 4,041 3,923
Over 3 months BE=1EA 10,311 10,337
96,739 117,435
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. FEWESZRIM &

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
the trade receivables are as follows:

BB Z R BEBEEEZEN
T

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
SHATEHA

EEBIE SHATEH
(GEfEE EEBIRE

wE) (EERE) a5t
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FAET FET FHET
At 1 January 2021 N ZEZ—F—HF—H 8,437 - 8,437
Changes due to trade receivables ' —HB—HBEREEH
recognised as at 1 January: FEWE ZARMESE
R
— Transfer to credit-impaired —EBEEFERE (422) 422 -
— Impairment losses recognised —BHERREBE = 2,686 2,686
— Impairment losses reversed —HERBlIRERE (8,015) = (8,015)
— Write-off — i3 — (3,108) (3,108)
New trade receivables originated HMEAXMEWE Z IR 5,755 = 5,755
At 31 December 2021 A TE T
+ZB=+—H 5,755 = 5,755
Changes due to trade receivables PN —HB—HBRIH
recognised as at 1 January: FEUWL B 5 BR AR E £ Y
— Transfer to credit-impaired —EBEEFEERE (449) 449 -
— Impairment losses recognised —BERBERIE - 313 313
— Impairment losses reversed —ELIRERE (5,306) - (5,306)
— Write-off — A - (762) (762)
New trade receivables originated MEANEWRE SR 6,340 - 6,340
Exchange realignment PE R sR % 35 - 35
At 31 December 2022 R-ZE——
+=A=+—H 6,375 S 6,375

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix and individually assessment
to measure ECLs. Except for debtors with significant
balances and credit-impaired, the Group determines the
ECLs on trade receivables by using a provision matrix.
The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss
patterns.

P& RS B 3 MR e 8 B 5F
HETRESN  UStERBEES
B-FRAEEREHRMNESERERN
FEUWBR RSN REEEREFHIEREE
ERWEZRRNAMEERR &
BEDEFABEUBERENNZAE
ERDBENNBRABEE -
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23.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. RKEZERWR (E
As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group's trade R-E__&#+-B=+—H K&
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying ERWEZERREHRAN RS BHE
amount of HK$20,943,000 (2021: HK$17,952,000) BHAN 4R BRE 120,943,000 7T (=
which are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the T —4 17,952,000 7T) HIFEWER
past due balances, HK$8,310,000 (2021: HK$9,203,000) Mo fEpmERAE R 8,310,000/ T (=
has been past due 90 days or more and is not T —£ 19,203,000 7t) EEHF0
considered as in default because the debtors have good XU L ARZEEHEANEND
repayment record. The impairment of HK$5,689,000 HREF WA EEAREN - RBEEZE
(2021: HK$4,571,000) has been provided based on the __F+-_HA=t+t—HLEEFE 2R
provision matrix during the year ended 31 December B B PEET 125,689,000 T (&
2022. ——% 14,571,000 7T) BB EEE
Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due —EmE BREZERNARBS
for more than one year. The trade receivables with gross —FRFLUME BAEBE —F4E
amount of HK$762,000 (2021: HK$3,108,000), which TEAR762,0008 T (ZEZ—F :
are past due over one year are fully impaired and written 3,108,000/ 7) WEWE ZERFXER
off during the year ended 31 December 2022. BT _F+"A=+—HIL*F
FE B BUR B R i34 o
Set out below is the information about the credit risk TREFIERABEEELTHNERAEA
exposure on the Group's trade receivables using a EEEWEBEZRFNEERBNER
provision matrix:
As at 31 December 2022 RZE__#+"HB=+—H
Past due
bkt
Less than 1to3 Over
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
B LR—@ER —E=@EA Z@AUL EL

ECL rate BHREERER 0.7% 8.7% 27.9% 49.2% 13.2%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) EREE(E (F&7T) 22,068 10,831 1,802 8,310 43,011
ECL (HK$'000) RHEEEE (F471) 152 944 503 4,090 5,689

21,916 9,887 1,299 4220 37,322
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 23.

As at 31 December 2021

FEEH&,%% E:TA CHE
WZE-—%+=-A=+—H

Past due
B
Less than 1103 Over

Current 1 month months 3 months Total

g OR—ER —E=EF =@AMUL =L

ECL rate JEEEEEEX 0.5% 4.4% 19.7% 37.1% 10.5%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) ERE4EE (FE71) 25,425 4,600 4,149 9,203 43,377
ECL (HK$'000) RHEEHE (FE7T) 135 203 818 3,415 4,571
25,290 4,397 3,331 5,788 38,806

The remaining trade receivables with an aggregated
gross carrying amount of HK$60,103,000 (2021:
HK$79,813,000) were assessed individually due to
the significant balances involved and the ECLs of
HK$686,000 (2021: HK$1,184,000) were recognised as
at 31 December 2022.

HRPRERBEER UEEES
60,103, 000%75(_ Z—fF
79,813,000 7T) BIER N EUN B 5 iR
EEBTE TR _SE__F+_8
=+ —BERFEHAE EE8686,000/4E
TT(CE - —4 :1,184,00057T) °

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24. FAFIE RS REMEUWERR
RECEIVABLES

2022 2021
—E-C B —F
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Prepayments TEfIRIR 23,560 15,245
Deposits and other receivables & R EMBEWERER 21,600 19,591
Impairment allowance HEREE (14,159) (10,554)

31,001 24,282
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24.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24.
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental
deposits and deposits with suppliers. An impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting date by applying
a loss rate approach with reference to the historical
loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to
reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions, as appropriate. The gross amount
of other receivables under lifetime ECL (credit-impaired)
is HK$14,159,000 (2021: HK$10,554,000) because
the receivables are in default or there is information
indicating that the debtors are in severe financial
difficulty.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
other receivables which are assessed under lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired) are as follows:

FRITRIE ~ & B H thFEURARTR
(#)

RehHEMEWRRETELABER
EREEFRS - NEREAH &
EERBAEEXZUZ2EAERDN
BEBBERETRHES M -AEE
B EE S IE I D RS AT AR R R R 2R
OB TER () - BN
RAREXTBENBERNEBATER
EMBRE Fib 2HRBEHEERE
(BEEERE) B EMEKRERR
4R %14,159,0008 7 (ZEZ—£F:
10,554,000 7T) ©

2HBEMEEER CEERE BT
ST {5 B9 L 0 8 U B 3R 2 R 1 A R 18
BT

2022 2021

- BT —fF

HKS'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

At 1 January »—B—H 10,554 12,289
Impairment losses recognised BB ERIE (&0 *

(reversed)* 4,600 (2,931)
Exchange realignment bE 52 5 (995) 1,196
At 31 December K+ZB=+—=H 14,159 10,554
& During the year ended 31 December 2022, the impairment G BE_Z”__F#+-A=+—81Lt

loss of HK$4,600,000 relates to a loan to a third party,
which the related gross amount of HK$13,026,000 is fully
impaired.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the reversal
of impairment loss of HK$2,931,000 relates to a loan to
a third party, which the related gross amount was fully
impaired in previous years. Reversal was made due to
settlements received.

FEHMERE4,600,0008 T H B
EZHRMHMNERBR > HAMRHE
13,026,000 70 B B HURE ©

REE_Z-_—F+"A=+—H81
FE RERER[E2,931,0008 T4
ME=—HFRENERER /MR
ERBAFERHRE BLOBHRAS
W B4 S RIEFTEL



24.

25.

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited

@

KEMERIERERAR
Annual Report 2022 —Z& — " FFHR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & BA 5 sR R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE - FE+-_H=+—HILFE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

The ECL of remaining deposits and other receivables
were assessed under 12-month ECL. These relate to
debtors for which there was no history of default
and the amounts have not been past due. As at 31
December 2022 and 2021, the loss allowance on
deposits and other receivables under 12-month ECL was
assessed to be minimal.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM FELLOW
SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are unsecured,
non-interest-bearing and within the credit term. The
following is an aged analysis presented based on the
invoice date.

24,

25.

FAITRIAE ~ & R H thFE U ARTR
(&)

FTIREMHEMBWERNEREE
BERT _ERBRMAEEEEN G-
ZERUTEBNCSHNEFZABRKR
ZETRIRBHA - R_T__FK
- —F+"RA=+—H '+
AREAEEGERNRS RHME R
MR EBEREET GRS

FEUR R %t B A B 7R IR

BUERBATREDERE T
SAERREGENARN - TXRRERER
HZ2 5B ERE DA -

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—fF

HKS'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Within 1 month 1ME8 ™A 21,769 13,818
1 to 2 months 1ZE2{88 4,917 11,719
2 to 3 months 2E3@ER 135 12
Over 3 months 3@ B Lk 777 274
27,598 25,823

No allowance for impairment was made since the
management consider that the probability of default
is minimal after assessing the counterparties’ financial
background and creditability.

HREEBETLXSHANMBEE
SMERRRERSENNAEER
N IR B EHRBER M
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26. BANK DEPOSITS/CASH AND CASH 26. RITEMR BRERREEE
EQUIVALENTS
2022 2021
—=-- —s-—F
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash and demand deposits REREHRER 324,013 429,369
Bank deposits with original maturity REEAA=@EA LT
of three months or less RITER 254,890 193,750
Cash and cash equivalents BEKRIEEEE 578,903 623,119

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the
Group and short-term bank deposits that are interest-
bearing at market interest rates ranging from 0% to
5.34% (2021: 0% to 2.0115%) per annum and have
maturity of three months or less.

As as 31 December 2022, bank deposits of
HK$245,849,000 (2021: Nil) have original maturity of
over three months and carry interest at market rates
ranging from 2.15% to 5.56% (2021: N/A) per annum.

Bank balances and bank deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

27. TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

27.

BeEMRESEEEEAEBRFTEZ
BEURBETBEMNENFRO%E
534% (CE _—F 1 0%=E2.0115%)
SEREAHA=ZBRENLU TG
IRITER

R_E__&#+_RA=+—H> 817
F#245,849,0008 7 (&S _—&F :
&) REPAABRA=@R > mFEF
KNAF215%FE5.56% (T - —F .
REA) o

IRITEFERIBRTEREERRELR
HRESEBEEREZIRITC

FEf & 5 BRTR

RREMAR BNEZRNLEEA
HZEREDFMT !

2022 2021

—E-C B —4F

HKS'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within 1 month —EAR 114,706 99,589
1 to 2 months —Zm1EA 12,861 16,146
2 to 3 months —E={@EAR 4,479 1,999
Over 3 months BiB=1E 6,187 15,688
138,233 133,422

The trade payables are normally settled on 45 days
terms.

ZERNEZRR—RIEASEARE
2o
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OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28. HfthFE{IERFRFEStER
2022 2021
- —ET—F
HKS'000 HK$000
FAET FET
Other payables* H A& T AR AR 38,682 48,972
Accruals FEst &R 93,169 51,008
131,851 99,980
3 Other payables are non-interest-bearing, and included e HMEMERRARSFERE @FR

the consideration received for the disposal of CATIC
Siwei of RMB11,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$14,025,000) as at 31 December 2021 (2022: Nil).

AMOUNT(S) DUE TO A FELLOW 29.
SUBSIDIARY/INTERMEDIATE HOLDING
COMPANIES

TEC—F+ZA=+—HHRHED
#E U ER Y /B AR 511,500,000
7t (FBERR£14,025,00087T) (ZF
TTF ) o

FEARRMBAR,HREERA
BRI

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and ZEMARBRF THERARE
repayable on demand. KIEE -
CONTRACT LIABILITIES 30. AHAR
2022 2021
g —E-—4F
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Repair and maintenance service for I M ERE
aircraft engines AR 75 45,806 37,392
Sale of aircraft engines and spare parts  §5 8 FR 14 3% Bh 4 & 1 7,262 -
53,068 37,392
Current TRE) 16,941 8,139
Non-current SRR EN 36,127 29,253

53,068 37,392
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30.

31.

4 A
g ==

FAFSER R MY 5E

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued) 30. aNEafRE
As at 1 January 2021, contract liabilities amounted to A ZE_—F—HA—H &8 EA
HK$46,883,000. 46,883,000/ 7T ©
The current portion of the contract liabilities at the FYNEHNEENREE D ERFERED
beginning of the year are recognised as revenue in the AU o
following year.
PROVISIONS 31.
Warranty
and Service Product
Bulletin claim Other
provision provision provisions Total
RIER R ERRE
NERRE e H i At
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET
31 December 2022 —E-C
+ZB=+—H
At 1 January 2022 RW_Z2__"#H—HA—H 53,371 13,432 40,882 107,685
(Reversal of) addition in (Bi[o) BBOMEE B
provision (note 9) (H1E9) (9,826) 69,524 12,560 72,258
Utilised during the year FREHA (14,608) (49,598) (6,155) (70,361)
Exchange realignment FERRE (1,533) 10 (1,393) (2,916)
At 31 December 2022 AR
+ZA=+—H 27,404 33,368 45,894 106,666
Portion classified as NEARBEBHNEGR
current liabilities (14,791) (15,600) (20,450) (50,841)
Non-current portion FERENEDD 12,613 17,768 25,444 55,825
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PROVISIONS (continued) 31. #E @
Warranty
and Service Product
Bulletin claim Other
provision provision provisions Total
RERR e
NERE e H 3 a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FAET FET
31 December 2021 ZEZ—F
+ZR=+—-H
At 1 January 2021 RIZE-—F—HF—H 80,676 20,104 36,367 137,147
Additional provision (note 9)  2E4MNEHE (F1329) 5,861 56,775 14,270 76,906
Utilised during the year FREFA (28,915) (63,447) (8,862) (101,224)
Others Hh (2,558) - 739 (1,819)
Exchange realignment BE (1,693) - (1,632) (3,325)
At 31 December 2021 A BT
+ZRA=+—H 53,371 13,432 40,882 107,685
Portion classified as NEARSEENEHD
current liabilities (52,898) (6,457) (15,936) (75,291)
Non-current portion JERB IR 473 6,975 24,946 32,394

The Group provides warranties mainly for one year to its
customers on certain of its engines. The amount of the
provision for the warranties is estimated based on sales
volumes and past experience of the level of repairs and
returns. The estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing
basis and revised where appropriate.

In previous years, the Group released a Service Bulletin
to replace certain of its products due to safety concerns.
An estimate for the probable costs has been made for
these claims and is included in warranty and Service
Bulletin provision. This estimate has been developed in
consultation with the Group’s insurers, legal counsels
and historical experience and is based upon an analysis
of potential results.

AEBREFDEHEOAETATE
RE—FHNREH - RERESER
BHERBENEBREREKEZR
BHE AEEFERIZHERELE
A6 FA 8 B B R S HE 1T (85T o

RBEEFE HRNRE2EE > AEEE
ﬁﬁﬂlﬁ“”ib(%@ﬂ%:ﬁ%uuoeﬂ
ERBAEMFETMS > W5
)\T?ﬂ’z&ﬁﬁk’\iﬂfﬂ o B% Al 5t
DAEBRTEAERNREBABRE
rEEHBE RESEAR  LER
HEBEERNDIIFL -
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31. PROVISIONS (continued) 31. #E#@
The product claim provision is made for any present EmEEEELHEREARTHN
expected product claims liability as a result of the FRERBRERSEEREMEL-
assessment at the end of the reporting period. The FEEFERNZEEREE  UIRNE
estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis and EREHEETE
revised where appropriate.
32. LEASE LIABILITIES 32. HE&R
2022 2021
—®-= B
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Lease liabilities payable: FENHEEaR !
Within one year —FRN 7,398 6,533
In the second year ReE _—F 6,632 6,569
In the third to fifth years, inclusive NEZEFHE
(BEEEWME) 18,874 19,182
Beyond five years BiEHF 261,195 278,734
294,099 311,018
Less: Amount due for settlement B ORBAaRIET
within 12 months shown Fream 1218 B M E)HR
under current liabilities ENzEE (7,398) (6,533)
Amount due for settlement after 12 JERENEMEIET
months shown under non-current Frea it 1218 B %
liabilities FHE M 2 £ 4R 286,701 304,485

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates
applied to lease liabilities range from 4.14% to 5.25%
(2021: from 4.14% to 5.25%).

ERFEERRZMETHEERSR
FIENFRA14%E525% (ZF=—
F 1 414%E525%) °
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SHARE CAPITAL 33. K#&
Number of
ordinary Nominal
shares amount
HERHE EfE
HK$'000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each SREME0I0EBTZZER
Authorised: EE -
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 RZZ_—F—H—H-
and 31 December 2022 B —%+°AH
=+—HBHKRZZEZZ
+ZB=+—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHRE
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 6:7_—?:& A—A-
and 31 December 2022 BT —HF4Z ﬁ
=+t—BKRZZ2=Z
+ZB=+—H 9,303,374,783 930,337
RESERVE FUND 34. fHE=E

The reserve fund represents the statutory reserve
of certain subsidiaries operating as foreign-owned
enterprises in Mainland China. Pursuant to the articles
of association of these subsidiaries and the relevant PRC
Company Law, the subsidiaries shall make an allocation
from their profit after tax at the rate of 10% to the
statutory surplus reserve fund, until such reserve reaches
50% of the registered capital of the subsidiaries. Part
of the statutory surplus reserve may be capitalised as
provided that the
remaining balance after the capitalisation is not less than

the subsidiaries’ registered capital,
25% of the registered capital of the subsidiaries. The
statutory reserve will be reclassified to retained profits
upon the disposal of the subsidiaries.

FEHEEZERPERAMUSIERES N
MEZETHBRARZ ZERBE R
BZEWMBRAEMNATERKRMERHEF
Bl ARE %FWEBARREEEKRR
BIEFIZ10% B KRB X TE R ERE
B BEEERRFBEEZSIHNER
BEMEERZS0% BMEEREESR
RERRZSHE A TZ.EH%%”:ZK’
EREERECBZHF FEHADR
#Fﬁ%@ﬂaiﬂﬂéﬁ$225%o/££ﬁ%
W E M B QB W E R’ EM D
BEBFEF -
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35. DEFERRED TAX 35. REWRIE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and RAFEERBFFERRI 2 FEIRIE
assets recognised and movements thereon during the MEEEREERHEEHUWT .
current and prior years:
Losses
available for
Fair value offsetting
adjustments  Accelerated against
arising from  depreciation future
acquisition of and taxable Provisions
subsidiaries amortisation profits and others Total
W AT 8
REEEM MEAE  RRERR B
ATERE R#HE  ENZEE REA Aaf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FHT FHT FET FET
At 1 January 2021 KB —£-B-8 (226,902)  (103,388) 69,305 62,203 (198,782)
Credit (charge) to profit or loss ST (0B B (1528)
(note 8) 19,205 (4,465) (33,524) 1,246 (17,538)
Charge to other comprehensive NREME2ERE
income - - - (179) (179)
Exchange realignment ERAE 4,743 2,409 (2,019) (152) 4,981
At 31 December 2021 RIZ-—E+"A=+—H  (202,954)  (105444) 33,762 63,118 (211,518)
Credit (charge) to profit or loss S (0BR) B (B728)
(note 8) 26,806 (9,922) 16,777 4,416 38,077
Exchange realignment ERAE 3,551 1,918 (1,523) 219 4,165
At 31 December 2022 RIZ--E+"A=+—A (172597)  (113,448) 49,016 67,753 (169,276)
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DEFERRED TAX (continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset in the consolidated

35.

IRIEIRIA ()

ORI ETEERBEERE
BERGEMBIRRRPIED LT

statement of financial position. The following is an ARERZRIERMIBAGRUNMBRE
analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group for FRPRIE DA
financial reporting purposes:
2022 2021
—T_C T —F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Net deferred tax assets recognised AR E B AR RS
in the consolidated statement of RIETRIEE = R R
financial position 6,615 -
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised 74z & BAF5 ik R R AE ST
in the consolidated statement of RIERIEBEFER
financial position (175,891) (211,518)
(169,276) (211,518)

At 31 December 2022, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses
amounted to HK$640,452,000 (2021: HK$639,513,000)
that would expire in one to five years, HK$213,093,000
(2021: HK$158,650,000) that would expire in more
than five years to twelve years for offsetting against
future taxable profits and HK$633,380,000 (2021:
HK$792,593,000) that may be carried forward
indefinitely. The above deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as it is not probable
that future taxable profits against which the tax losses
can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdiction and entity.

RZIEZZHF+ZA=+—H "=
EETWEREEHERAKREFREF
FESR—ERFRIBHRSFTR
THK518640,452,0008 0 (&~ —
& 1639,513,0008m) “AE+ZF
NEIBA R 10 1EE518213,093,000
BTt (ZTEZ—4% 158,650,000
7t) 52633,380,0008 T (ZE - —£:
792,593,000/ 7T) A EIRHAAEHH R
AREEEEREERBEEE BN
ERERBEE A EE KRB EE N AT AE

AEAREREBENRRERREN
W ZEHERED L URERIE
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35.

36.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
People’s Republic of China, a 10% withholding tax is
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from
the foreign investment enterprises established in PRC.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rates range
from 5% to 10%.
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those

The Group is therefore liable for

subsidiaries established in PRC in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2022 and 2021,
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be

no deferred tax has

payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group's subsidiaries, joint
venture and associate established in PRC. In the opinion
of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries,
joint venture and associate will distribute such earnings
in the foreseeable future.

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN OBLIGATIONS

Continental Motors United Auto Workers Pension
Plan (“"UAW Pension Plan”)

The Group has a defined benefit pension plan. It is a
pension plan for the United States employees which
require contributions to be made to a separately
administered fund. This benefit pension plan is funded.
Under the plan, the employees are entitled to monthly
retirement benefits or early or postponed retirement
benefits when they have early or postponed retirements

subject to certain conditions.
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DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN OBLIGATIONS
(continued)

Continental Motors Post-retirement Life & Health
Plan (“Life & Health Plan”)

The Group provides certain additional post-employment
medical and life benefits to employees in the United
States. These benefits are unfunded. Under the plan,
the employees are entitled to receive post-employment
medical benefits.

The actuarial valuations of the present value of the
defined benefit plan obligations were carried out as
at the end of the reporting period by Newport Group,
Inc., a qualified actuary, using the projected unit credit
actuarial valuation method.

The principal assumptions used at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

36.

EFEFFEIRE (2

RELRBHBARASEES
(TAS= RS EL)
rEBAXEARERME TERINERIK
BEBERMASEHN HEBIRRE
& o RIFZAETE BEAEWEBCRKE
EREMN-

EHEENFAHECRENBEGED
ENewport Group, Inc. (& & &5 E M)
RS ARERBEMNEERER
iR T

RBREMREANTIZ/RHIIWT:

2022 2021
—EZC TET—fF
% %

Discount rate WX
UAW Pension Plan UAWR R & 5t 2 4.96 2.63
Life & Health Plan ANSRERsE 4.83 2.34
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36. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN OBLIGATIONS 36.
(continued)

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant
assumptions at the end of the reporting period is shown

EFEFFEIRE (2

RBREMAEBMBEARRRKOEE B
EDHHmaT

below:
Decrease Increase
in defined in defined
benefit benefit
Increase plan Decrease plan
inrate  obligations inrate  obligations
EHEEF EFEEF
FEIEME TEIEE
X EH L v 10
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
FEr FET
As at 31 December 2022 T
+=ZA=+—H
Discount rate IRE 1 (4,591) (1) 5,472
As at 31 December 2021 RZB-—%§
+ZB=+—H
Discount rate FIRE 1 (6,958) (1 8,333

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined
based on a method that extrapolates the impact on
defined benefit plan obligations as a result of reasonable
changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period. The sensitivity analysis is based on a
change in a significant assumption, keeping all other
assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis may not
be representative of an actual change in the defined
benefit plan obligations as it is unlikely that changes in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another.

The total expenses recognised as administrative expenses
in the Group’s profit or loss in respect of the plans are as
follows:

FRBRED MDD RERREHRE
ERRVEEZCEEHHTEEBN G
AEECREFHEMET - BRE
DRBER-—BHERRBRKOLE FrE
HithR®RFEFAE) MIFL - BRED
MARCRRERBHNFEEEMHER
e AZERRNEBELEE
BE#E -

MARENAERETRBERRIT
HEEERNMRAZIT

2022 2021

—E-Z —ET—F

HKS'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Current service cost BPHR AR 78 B 2= 2,896 3,050
Net interest expense M ERZFEE 216 319
Net benefit expenses (note 9) BRI HEE (M13E9) 3,112 3,369
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DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN OBLIGATIONS 36. TEE@BHEIEE @)
(continued)
The movements of the defined benefit plan obligations EEEMNFTEEERSTEEENLQF
and the fair value of plan assets are as follows: BEEEBWT !
Defined benefit Fair value of
plan obligations plan assets Total
EHEEFGHAER HEEENATE Eh
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
“E-ZE BT -F CZEIZE "EZ°-F IEIZE B°-F
HKS000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January ®—A—H 58,774 59,114 (48,490) (42,341) 10,284 16,773
Pension cost charged to HARBHBARERE
profit or loss
Current service cost BE R A A 2,896 3,050 - = 2,896 3,050
Net interest expense (income) FIEHZ (KA 38 1,525 1,287 (1,309) (968) 216 319
Sub-total included in profit or loss 5t A#BZ /N5t 4,421 4,337 (1,309) (968) 3,112 3,369
Remeasurement losses REM2EKEAHEIH
(gains) recognised in other EMHESE @B
comprehensive income
Returns on plan assets (excluding ~ stEIEERIR (RAEA
amounts included in net interest RSB FENEE)
expense) - - 8,172 (3,674) 8,172 (3,674)
Actuarial changes arising from AOBEEDHELN
changes in demographic RFEEH)
assumptions = 149 = - = 149
Actuarial changes arising from IBRREDELN
changes in financial assumptions 5B & H) (14,765) (3,032) - = (14,765) (3,032)
Actuarial changes arising from CHRBYELNEREE
experience adjustments (496) (457) = - (496) (457)
Sub-total included in other STAHMZEKE NG
comprehensive income (15,261) (3,340) 8,172 (3,674) (7,089) (7,014)
Others Heth
Contribution by employer EEHEN - - (2,769) (2,844) (2,769) (2,844)
Benefits paid B (1,482) (1,337) 1,482 1,337 - -
Exchange realignment EREE 426 - (334) - 92 -
At 31 December R+ZB=+—H 46,878 58,774 (43,248) (48,490) 3,630 10,284
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36.

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN OBLIGATIONS
(continued)

The major categories of the fair value of plan assets of
the UAW Pension Plan are as follows:

EEEMAREE (2

UAWRAKZ BN S BEERN A TE
ZEEZJ/HWMT -

2022 2021

—E-C —B_—F

HKS'000 HK$°000

FET FET

Equity instruments AT A 21,187 26,335
Debt instruments (=5 m=t 20,380 19,903
Others Hh 1,681 2,252
43,248 48,490

The Group expects to contribute HK$3,126,000 (2021:
HK$3,195,000 for the year ending 31 December 2022)
to pension plans for the year ending 31 December 2023.

Since Life & Health Plan is unfunded, there are no plan
assets for the disclosure for the Life & Health Plan for
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The average duration of the UAW Pension Plan as at
31 December 2022 is 11 (2021: 14) years. The average
duration of the Life & Health Plan as at 31 December
2022 is 9 (2021: 8) years.

rEBBEFNREE_SE_=Z5+_H4
=t+—HIEEERZSRKESFEIH
73,126,000 7T (CEZ—F [ ®HEZ
ETF+ZR=t+—HBLEFEMHR
3,195,000 7T) ©

HRASREFIRARES  HE

EE_EFERIZEZ—F+ZA
—t+t—BHIEETERMAS@EES
BB EERE-

RIEZZHF+ZA=+—H UAW
BHREBHBVEFHHERAIIE (S
—F I 4E) RN B _F+_A
=+—H>  ASBRESINFEHEHR
AIOFE (CE - —F 1 85F) o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting held on 28 May 2014,
the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme"”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants to contribute to the
business development and growth of the Group and
to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre employees
and attract or retain human resources that are valuable
to the Group. Since the adoption of the Scheme, no
options have been granted, exercised, lapsed, cancelled
or outstanding thereunder as at 31 December 2022.

Major terms of the Scheme include:

1. The purpose of the Scheme is to provide
incentives to the participants.

2. The participants of the Scheme are any individual
being employees, officers or consultants of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries including
any executive or non-executive directors thereof
whether employed in Hong Kong or any part of
the world.

37.

fBReREETEY
A_E—MERB_+N\BRT2R
RBEFAG L AQBEMT —1BE
feHEst a8l (MZst3) > BENAYHEAEE
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SHERBEIBRER UERER
BEAIBIBEFE T RS HIEBH K
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BEBEZEEEH TE KB 5
HEERITEZ BRI
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1. =EtEEEm2HEERENE-
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

3.

The total number of shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme,
together with all options to be granted under
any other share option schemes of any member
of the Group, must not in aggregate represent
more than 10% of the total number of the
Shares in issue as at the date of adoption of the
Scheme. The Company may refresh this 10%
limit at any time subject to prior approval given
by its shareholders at a general meeting. The
overall limit on the total number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme, together with all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under any other
share option schemes of any member of the
Group, must not exceed 30% of the total number
of the Shares in issue from time to time. No
options may be granted under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes of any member
of the Group if such grant will result in the said
30% limit being exceeded. As at the date of
this annual report, the total number of securities
available for issue under the Scheme was
461,959,100 Shares, representing approximately
4.97% of the total number of the Shares in issue
as at the date of this annual report.

37.

Rl E (2
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

4.

The total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options (whether
exercised, cancelled or outstanding) granted or to
be granted under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company to each eligible
participant under the Scheme in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number
of the Shares in issue as at the proposed grant
date.

An option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Scheme at any time during a
period of 10 years commencing on the date
which the Board may determine at its discretion
but such date shall not be earlier than three
months after the date of the grant of such option
is made.

An option granted shall remain open for
acceptance by eligible participants for a period
of 28 days from the date of the grant of such
option together with a non-refundable payment
of HK$1.00.

37. REkRHEstE 2

4.

REA+ZEBHBERTER
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

7.

The exercise price of an option shall be the

highest of:

(a)

(@

the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of the grant of the option,
which must be a business day;

the average of the closing prices of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of
the grant (subject to acceptance) of the
option; and

the nominal value of the Shares.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a

period of 10 years commencing on 28 May

2014 and thereafter for as long as there are

outstanding options granted and accepted

pursuant thereto prior to the expiration of the

said 10-year period and in order to give effect to

the exercise of any such options.

Share options did not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

At the end of the reporting period and at the date of

approval of these consolidated financial statements,

there were no (2021: Nil) share options outstanding.

37.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 38. BEAKIE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the KEBNRREPARBEUATERKIE !
end of the reporting period:
2022 2021
- —ET—F
HKS'000 HK$000
FAET FET
Contracted, but not provided for: BN ERRERE .
Plant and machinery % BB R 14 25 46,048 54,347
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39. BFREEERE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

FEEREFEENEEZER HERF
AEBEREHERBERNESD BHER
REONBEARLER UZHHEBEF
PRRBERAEE

FERRBEEBRNESH REME
ENEREE EEHEAGEBILF
HEE DEFNRABELER £&
B gRERARRKENRE M
RRBOEANBTHR ~EBF
ERHNERMIBRMZEERT K-
BE_Z__FRIB-_—F+ZA
=t+—HLEFER - BEXAEEZER
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 40. TRITH
40a. Financial instruments by category 40a. ERMTHESHE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories REEHAR SRz EmMITA
of financial instruments as at the end of the REBEWT :

reporting period are as follows:

Financial
assets at Financial Financial
amortised assets at assets at
cost FVTPL FVTOCI Total
BATE
REHE A BATE AHRMZE
FIBRE)  StAMBEZ -
MEEE MBEE HBEE CH
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
2022 —E”-C
Financial assets MHBEE
Equity investment BATEstARMtZE
designated at FVTOCI Wtz AR E = - 390 390
Financial assets at FVTPL B AFEt ABEZ
BHEE = 1,950 - 1,950
Trade receivables EWE 7R 96,739 - - 96,739
Amounts due from fellow EWREZITEARFE
subsidiaries 27,598 = = 27,598
Loan to an associate A#HERRRMNER 6,937 - - 6,937
Deposits and other BeEREMBYER
receivables 7,441 = - 7,441
Bank deposits RITE™ 245,849 - - 245,849
Cash and cash equivalents & RIFEEE 578,903 - - 578,903

963,467 1,950 390 965,807
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 4. TMTITHE &
40a. Financial instruments by category 40a. £MTHESHE @)
(continued)
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
SR A
FERZ
BHam
HKS$'000
FET
2022 —E-C
Financial liabilities MEaRE
Trade payables FEfT B Z RN 138,233
Other payables HAFE IR 38,682
Amounts due to FEAT FR R 2R A B R IE
intermediate holding
companies 25,739
Amount due to a fellow EREIRKB AR RIE
subsidiary 5,580

208,234




238

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
KEMERKIZERERAE
Annual Report 2022 — &~ —HFELR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4= & B #5 SR &R Mf =%
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE-_“HF+_H=+—HIEE
40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 4. TMTIH &
40a. Financial instruments by category 40a. TRTADEE @)
(continued)
Financial Financial Financial
assets at assets at assets at
amortised cost FVTPL FVTOCI Total
BRTE
BEHEMA BATE stARMZE
FIEREY  EtABHEZ 16
IHBEE MHBEE MBEE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
2021 ZEZ-%
Financial assets MEEE
Equity investment BATEStARMZE
designated at FVTOC| Wtz AR E - - 389 389
Financial assets at FVTPL B AF{EF AR
MHEE - 1,938 - 1,938
Trade receivables B ZER 117,435 - - 117,435
Amounts due from fellow EWREZITBARFE
subsidiaries 25,823 - - 25,823
Loan to an associate n#ERRRMNER 7,121 = = 7,121
Loan to a joint venture W& EAERENER 7 = - 7
Deposits and other BEREMBYERR
receivables 9,037 - - 9,037
Cash and cash equivalents BR&RIFLEE 623,119 - - 623,119
782,542 1,938 389 784,869
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 40. E£FTH #@
40a. Financial instruments by category 40a. £MTHESHE @)
(continued)
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
REHEM A
FiRZ
HHBAE
HK$000
T
2021 —EZ—F
Financial liabilities MEaE
Trade payables FET B Z BRFN 133,422
Other payables H it fE(J AR =X 48,972
Amounts due to FEAS R B E G A Bl FRIE
intermediate holding
companies 27,495

209,889

239



240

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
KEMERKIZERERAE
Annual Report 2022 — &~ —HFELR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & BA 78R RMisE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE-_“HF+_H=+—HIEE

40.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

40b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s financial instruments include equity
investment designated at FVTOCI, financial assets
at FVTPL, trade receivables, amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries, loan to an associate, loan to
a joint venture, deposits and other receivables,
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade
payables, other payables, lease liabilities and
amount(s) due to intermediate holding companies
and a fellow subsidiary. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for
the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities, such as
trade receivables and trade payables, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk.
The directors of the Company reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised below.

40.

EMTIA &
40b. B EMREEBRREER

FEENETRIESERAT
Bt A\ HthEERER AR
BE-BATESFABaNMBSR
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40.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

40b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign

currency denominated monetary assets and intra-

40. £RTI A &

A F5 e TR B 5E

40b. MAFHEMREZEBRREE (B

SHE B

FEBLIIMNESHENEREE
REBRABBEERNRSH

group balances at the end of the reporting period FHVEREMENT -
are as follows:
Assets
BE
2022 2021
—E- —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
United States dollar (“US$") x5t (MEm)) 338,320 250,806
Renminbi (“RMB") ARE TARE]) 28,815 31,191
Euro (“EUR") Brot (TEkTy) 4,508 14,817
Intra-group balances EERRQ B BT
us$ E7T 991,349 1,065,098
RMB AR 15,596 11,581
EUR % 155,993 168,300
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40.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

40b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% (2021: 5%) increase and decrease in
HK$ against the relevant foreign currencies.
5% (2021: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis also includes intra-group
balances where the denomination of the balance
is in a currency other than the functional currency
of the lender or the borrower. A positive number
below indicates a decrease (2021: increase) in
post-tax profit (2021: post-tax loss) where HK$
strengthen 5% (2021: 5%) against the relevant
currency. For a 5% (2021: 5%) weakening of HK$
against the relevant currency, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the profit (2021:
loss) and the amounts below would be negative.

40. ERTIH &
40b. HAFEEIGEIEEHZEREE #)

SHEREE ()
BREDH

TREAMKEBRR BT ZAERM
INEAEREZESR (ZEZ—
FI5%) 2HHEE5% (ZF
T—F5%)AARHETEE
BABERIERBERERZ
BRELE  LEEEHEXY
BIRA]REE BT IE 2 571l o SR
AT EREFEEETEIEE
MAHERATNEEKNER
NAB B4R T3 E#ERT
BITEEREEAE% (TF
T—%F 15%) BEREBEA (T
EI-F I REEBER AL (S
T M) o mAET R
BEEES% (ZE - —F
5%) Bl gHEMN (ZFZ—
F BB ERNESEEEERE
Z2RE - BTIEGRERAE
o

RMB EUR
AR Bt
2022 2021 2022 2021
b St ZRT-F b e 2T -F
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Profit or loss  J&FIFEE 1,854 1,786 6,701 7,646
The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuations FAEBITERZET  ARBR

in US$, RMB and EUR. The foreign currency risk
of US$ is not significant as the US$ is pegged to
HK$.

BT R AR AR ETEE T
#E5 ERTTHISME RBET K o
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 40. &MTH #)
40b. BIEEMETERERKE &)

40b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

In addition, as most of the Group’s business
transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of the
operating units, the Group’s other exposure to
foreign currency risk is minimal.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to loan to an associate and lease
liabilities.

Cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-
rate bank balances is considered insignificant
as most of them are short-term in nature.
Accordingly, no interest rate sensitivity analysis is
presented.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk on its
equity investments which are classified at FVTPL
and FVTOCI (notes 20 and 21).

The directors consider that the Group's exposure
to equity price risk is insignificant and accordingly
no sensitivity analysis is presented.

SHERE (5
BREDIT (&

ESh > B A B By KRB0 55
R BEREBRHTEUEE
Bz E%sHE Fit4 %
B P 7 2 BY ELfth 1 BE JR B A g o

FUE E B

FEEEEEDBE LT RM
NERKEEEREBIQF
BEFRER -

BYRIRTHEEFEERAMNIREER
ENERBEREAMIN BaHE
FRRES D BRI E o Atk 1
mE2HF GRS o

BR1E/m

AEEFTDREREAKLENKE
BREER  ZEREEZERATF
Bt A Ba R AFEFAHE
2w (M 5E205221) D48

%% %ﬁ%.ﬁﬁuuﬂ’]ﬂi*%'ﬁf
& R B I S X R I I 2 51 8
RUE D o
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40.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

40b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy
that all customers who wish to trade on credit
terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad
debts is not significant.

A summary of the Group’s exposure to credit risk
and impairment assessment is as follows:

40. ERTIH &
40b. HAFEEIGEIEEHZEREE #)

FEEEE

FEBEFERERAUINREER
FHE=ZRETRZ AEEN
HREFMBERETEERS
WERHFEBBE SR IEN -
BE AEBRFESRBUERMR
BIAS R > R IRERBY B R I A B
7 o

A& B S & R B O K E 51
fEBan T -

External Internal 12m or
credit credit lifetime Gross
rating rating ECL carrying amounts
5D wE 128R52H
=8:TR F8:Th BHEEHSE BEREE
2022 2021
ZEICZE ZT-F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 FET FET
Financial assets at amortised cost  REFERATIRNHHEEE
Bank deposits RITER 26 A+ N/A 12m ECL 245,849 =
TER 128888
EEE
Bank balances BT 2 AA - AA+ NA  12mECL 578,893 623,119
AER 1288 EH8
EEE#E
Amounts due from related companies  FE W B /A B 7B (note a) N/A (note a) 12m ECL 6,937 7,128
(Hizta) ~ER (Hfita) 12{8BTEER
ZEE#E
Deposits and other receivables BeREMERERR 24 N/A (note b) (note b) 21,600 19,591
TEH (Wtz2b) (Hztb)
Trade receivables W E Z IR 23 N/A (note ¢) (note ¢ 103,114 123,190
T (Hiztc) (Hiztc)
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries  FEWL[E [ B A B 2018 25 N/A (note d) (note d) 27,598 25,823
TEH (Wfztd) (Hfzta)



@

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited

KEMERIERERAR
Annual Report 2022 —Z& — " FFHR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & BA 5 sR R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE - FE+-_H=+—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

40b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Notes:

(a)

The gross amounts of amounts due from related
companies include loan to an associate of
HK$6,937,000 (2021: HK$7,121,000) and loan
to a joint venture of nil (2021: HK$7,000), details
of which are set out in notes 18 and 19 to the
consolidated financial statements. The management
believes that there are no significant increase in
credit risk of these amounts since initial recognition
and the Group provided impairment based on
12m ECL. For the year ended 31 December 2022
and 2021, the Group assessed the ECL for these
balances to insignificant and thus no loss allowance
is recognised.

The gross amount of other receivables under
lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) is HK$14,159,000
(2021: HK$10,554,000) because the receivables
are in default or there is information indicating
that the debtors are in severe financial difficulty.
The remaining balances of HK$7,441,000 (2021:
HK$9,037,000) were assessed under 12m ECL.
These relate to debtors for which there was no
history of default and the amounts have not been
past due. Details of the Group's ECL on deposits
and other receivables are set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

40. £RTI A &
40b. HAFEEIGEIEEHEZEREE @)

FEEE (&
Hiat -

(a) FEWR A MIBELES
FEaEE A RENER
6,937,000 (ZEZ—4:
7,121,000 70) KB &E AT
RENEHZ (T2 —%F:
7,000%7T) BN RS M
BHREMF18K19- BEEER
%> BYUAHRE ZETEE
MEERBITEFZEM &
EERIN2EAEHREEFE
HFRAE-BHE_ET - _EK
I —FE+ZH=Z+—H
IEFE AEBTFEZEGEH
HEHREEBET A BT
HESR AT IR o

(b) 2HEHEEFRE (EER
B) BTHHEMEWIR AL
#14,159,0008 T (ZE = —
£ 110,554,000 7T) » RAR
WA EENRBEENEE
TMEBABABRERERE
BR N 458R7,441,0008 7T (2
——% 19,037,000 7T) R
12EEBHEEEIBETT
oz ENBRLHFEBOESE
HEFSAEMBESERAR-
rEBESRHEMERER
NEREEGEFBEHNLE
G B IRKRME24 0
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40.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

40b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Notes. (continued)

(0)

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the
simplified approach under HKFRS 9 to measure
the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Details of the
Group's ECL on trade receivables are set out in note
23 to the consolidated financial statements.

For amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, the
Group has applied the simplified approach under
HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL. Details of the Group’s ECL on amounts due
from fellow subsidiaries are set out in note 25 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of

funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool.

This tool considers the maturity of both its

financial instruments and financial assets (e.g.,

trade receivables) and projected cash flows from

operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance

between continuity of funding and flexibility

through the use of loans from intermediate

holding companies.

40.

EMTIA &
40b. MFEMREZEBRREE (@)

FEERE (&)
Hist (&

(c) HIRNEWE Z R AEEK
AEBMBREERBIRT
WEER At B2 REEIE
ERBENERER AEEE
WEZERRNEREERE
FHEHEN G BRERWN T
230

(d) HREBWRRINE AR RE
FEECRERBEBMBRS
ERFIE T EE
EHENEERENBERE
BorEBBWRRARNBEAR
MENRBEEBREFBER
KRR B BRERMEE25-

TREYIE R

FEEMNBEEERSRE T
AGEEETERAR -ZITAE
BEMTIAMMBEE WEYK
BZRM NIMAREEESE
Rt RERE

FEENERDEZEBF AR
BREEZERABZER RS
RENEEMEMEZENTE-
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 4. E£RTH #E
40b. Financial risk management objectives and 40b. MEEBEEEERERK &)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) TENEEE (B
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial REAR AEBERBETN
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, EBRTBEATRZTHEEEIH
based on the contractual undiscounted payments, BRAOT
is as follows:
Weighted Total Carrying
average Lessthan  3to less than 1t05 Over  undiscounted amount at
interest rate On demand 3 months 12 months years 5 years cash flows 31.12.2022
RZEZZE
=E R +ZB=t+-H
METHE REXE  ORZEB  OR+ZfA -E1f BENE  RERELE ZIREE
% HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HK$000
&7 &7 &7 &7 &7 FEr FET
2022 k- S
Amounts due to intermediate holding companies EEfrEERATTEA = 25,739 - - - - 25,739 25,739
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary ERARBATTE - 5,580 - - - - 5,580 5,580
Trade payables ERBRER - - 138,233 - - - 138,233 138,233
Other payables EfEAER - - 38,682 - - - 38,682 38,682
Lease liabilities HEEE 457 o 5119 15,492 75,410 393,045 489,066 294,099
31,319 182,034 15,492 75,410 393,045 697,300 502,333
Weighted Total Carrying
average Lessthan 3 to less than Tto5 Over  undiscounted amount at
interest rate On demand 3 months 12 months years 5 years cash flows 31122001
[ Quk Ja:2
= AR T2AZT-B
METFE REXE  ORZBA  OR+ZEA -1 RENE RERBEE 1
% HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS'000
&% FET &% &% lZ:43 \Z:43 Wz
2021 I3T-f
Amounts due to intermediate holding companies EfrEERATTE - 27,495 - - - - 27,495 27,495
Trade payables EERES - - 133,422 - - - 133,422 133,422
Other payables Rt TR - - 48,972 - - - 48,972 48,972
Lease liabilities fEEE 4.56 0 5,555 16,164 78,934 425,546 526,199 311,018
27,495 187,949 16,164 78,934 425,546 736,088 520,907
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40.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

40c.

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of
financial instruments

Management has assessed that the fair values
of its financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost approximates to their
fair values.

Certain of the Group’s financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of these
financial assets are determined (in particular,
the valuation technique(s) and inputs used), as
well as different levels of the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (level 1 to 3) based on the degree to
which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs
to the fair value measurements.

40.

TMIH &
40c. TRITRZATERATFES

AR I E

BI2E B 5T 15 EL LU 85 P A B
ECMBEAERMBABZA
FEARAFEEE-

FEBETHHEEEDRESR
SHRBRATEE TRIEH
MAEELEYBEEATE
BB R 2P ERMMGER
M Rm AR  URBEAF
B ENBABBENIRERRZE
EkATEFAENHABIEN
EERERATEFENE (B
—REF=M) NFARFESE
LGNS
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40.

financial instruments (continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

40c. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of

40. £RTI A &
PRTEZATFERATESE

40c.

AR MR R M

REIE (&

Fair value Key unobservable inputs
Financial instruments Fair values as at hierarchy Valuation techniques sensitivity analysis
EXFABRRBARRE
EMIR RUTABZATE ATEER EERN HRER M
31.12.2022 31.12.2021
ZEIZE 3%
+ZR=+-A +ZR=+-H
Unlisted equity Assets— Assets-  Level 3 Market approach using issued Recent transaction prices 1%
investment HK$390,000 HK$389,000 prices of transactions (2021: 1%) increase/decrease
in issued prices of transactions
would result in increase/
decrease in fair value by
HK$4,000 (2021: HK$4,000)
FLETRARSE BE- BE- $3M FERRZETENTSE BIEHARZBRT SN
390,000 7T 389,000 7% BTEEM/ A%
(CEZ—F:1%) BB
ATFEEM/F 04,0005 7T
(ZBZ—£:4,00087)
Unlisted debt investment Assets— Assets-  Level 3 Discounted cash flow method Yield rate at 7% (2021: 7%)
HK$1,950,000 HK$1,938,000 was used to capture the 1% (2021: 1%) increase/
present value based on the decrease in yield rate would
expected yield rate result in decrease/increase in
fair value by HK$104,000/
HK$110,000 (2021:
HK$115,000/HK$123,000)
FLEHEHRSE BE- BE- B3 EANTRRERELREBHN WaXAT% CEZI—F7%)
1,950,0007  1,938,000% 7T HEXERRE a0 %

During both years, there were no transfers into or

out of Level 3.

(CBEZ—F:1%) BEx
ATERD /H0104,000E7T
/10,0007 (ZBZ—#
115,000 7T,/123,0007T) °

KWEFERN > TEEANED

B4R
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40.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 40.

40c. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of
financial instruments (continued)

The movements in fair value measurements within
Level 3 during the year are as follows:

EMTIA &)

40c. TRITRZATERATFES

REIE (&)

AEE=RATEABHED

mE

2022 2021
S H - —F
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET

Equity investment designated at #AFEF AHMEE

FVTOCI - unlisted: Wz RAERE
—JELm:
At 1 January n—HB—H 389 389
Exchange realignment PE 50 S 2 1 =
At 31 December R+-ZA=+—H 390 389
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABHEZ

At 1 January w—B—H 1,938 1,938
Exchange realignment bE 50 S 2 12 =
At 31 December r+ZB=+—H 1,950 1,938
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RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 41. MEIFBELEZEGEZHIR
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRFAJNAEBEREETHEELEZAE
arising from financing activities, including both cash 5 AERASKIFRSEH MEE
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing BEF 2 EBEAHEREREHRKIR
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future SRERAEBEZFEREREXRD
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated BAMEB IEZIRERE
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.
2022 T
Amounts
due to Amount
intermediate due to
Lease holding a fellow
liabilities ~ companies subsidiary Total
FE{F RS EfRZR
ERAR HEAE
HEafE I I Eh
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FAT FHT FHET FET
At 1 January 2022 RZE--_%—F—H 311,018 27,495 - 338,513
Changes from financing cash flows RERERELD (6,189) (522) 5,580 (1,131)
New leases/lease modified/ early WHRE/HERT/RAKLEEE
termination of lease (12,748) = = (12,748)
Exchange realignment EREE 2,018 (1,234) - 784
Interest expense FIEXH 14,001 - - 14,001
Interest paid classified as operating cash flow DEALERERENBEAFE (14,001) - - (14,001)
At 31 December 2022 RIEZZHF+-HA=+—H 294,099 25,739 5,580 325,418
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41.

42.

RE 75 ¥R R Bt sE

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 41. MEFHELEZERZHIRGE
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(continued)
2021 B
Amounts
due to
intermediate Other
Bank Lease holding financial
borrowings liabilities ~ companies liabilities Total
FEft i
ERAT Hthbr 5
HRITEE HERR A =L a%
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2021 R_E_—&—HF—H 252,902 314,897 26,456 47,897 642,152
Changes from financing cash flows ~ REREREL (195,502) (7,217) 1,039 (35,372) (237,052)
New leases g 3,387 - 3,387
Exchange realignment ERAE (49) = = (49)
Interest expense FEZH 14,268 - = 14,427
Interest paid classified as NEARERTREN
operating cash flow BREFHE (14,268) = = (14,268)
Bank borrowings forgiven RITEERR (57,559) S S = (57,559)
Fair value adjustment NTERE - - (12,525) (12,525)
At 31 December 2021 R-B-—4+ZA=+—H 311,018 27,495 - 338513
MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 42. FEFRERH

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$158,000
(2021: HK$3,387,000) in respect of lease arrangements
for motor vehicles (2021: motor vehicles).

During the year, the Group had non-cash reductions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$12,326,000
(2021: Nil) in respect of lease modification of buildings
(2021: N/A). In addition, non-cash reductions to right-
of-use assets of HK$570,000 (2021: Nil) and lease
liabilities of HK$580,000 (2021: Nil) in respect of early
termination of lease for buildings (2021: N/A).

KE>AEFEBRAE (T _—E
AE) HETHZFAREEKRES
BERIEREIEMA158,0008 7T (_7
——4 3,387,000 T) °

rE - AEBEBETA

B (ZF

T—E I ABER) ZEREEERES
E\F?Ffﬁﬁﬁmi’%u 326,000 75 (Z

—T—%EE

“—F I

o tlb5h > B RALE AT
TECFINBR ZERRE

A& B8

BEEIIFESHE LD A570,00087T (ZF

——f%:
580,000 7T (Z&

——fF:

%) &%ﬂ‘*ﬁf*%fﬁﬁﬁ"\%
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 43. RABAERS
(a) In addition to the transactions described (a) MGZEEEMBEREREME D
elsewhere in these consolidated financial itz RB o REBAFGE
statements, the Group had the following TUTREB SRS
transactions with related parties during the year:
2022 2021
== BT —fF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest income on loan to an B EABRENERZ
associate* A E WA 391 448
Interest income on loan to a joint M&EAGIREHNERZ
venture* M E WA+ - 825
Sales to fellow subsidiaries mERMEABHEE 256,659 230,114
Purchases from a fellow BREZRMB AT KE
subsidiary 1,300 824
Short-term lease payment to m R E R A B EH Y
immediate holding company MHAMEE N 400 1,244
Management fee income from B AR 2 B WA
immediate holding company BEEWRA 1,265 =
* Details of the loan to an associate and loan to a k m#ERABRENERIAEG

joint venture are set out in notes 18 and 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of

ENBRENER ZFBEEHN
FEMBHRRMF185K190

by FEBRTEEERNEZRIN:

the Group:

2022 2021
== B —fF
HKS’000 HK$000
FAET FET
Short-term employee benefits HHEEER 2,522 2,420
Post-employment benefits EREER 70 36

Total compensation paid to key ZNFEBIEERE ZRIE
management personnel 28 2,592 2,456

Further details of directors’ emoluments are
included in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EREEME 2 E—DFBH
MR G MBIWRMEI0
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44.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the principal subsidiaries directly and indirectly

held by the Company at the end of the reporting period

are set out below.

Issued ordinary/

44,

FAREEMB AR ZFE

ARBRKREPRERRBEFTEZ
EMBATZHBHRNTX

Percentage of equity attributable

Place of incorporation/ registered share to the Company
Name registration and business capital 2022 and 2021 Principal activities
By BETEER/ HRFEMERET AL
A FRRE R HRE “E_CERIBC-E TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# M
Billirich Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands/ US$1,000 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong 1,000% 7T REER
BERYLHE /B
Motto Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands/ US$68,200,000 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong 68,200,000% 7T REER
HERUME /B
Continental Motors British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 = 100 Investment holding
Deutschland Limited* Hong Kong (ES REER
EBEYHE/BH
Continental Aerospace USA Uss4 - 100  Design, development and
Technologies, Inc. E35] 4ET production of general aviation
aircraft piston engines and
spare parts and provision
of aftermarket services and
support for piston engines
Rat BERLEBBMERRK
EEEBRREAURAEE
EHBREERRBRIS
Continental Aerospace Germany EUR25,000 - 100  Design, development and
Technologies GmbH &E 25,0008 7T production of general aviation
aircraft piston engines and
spare parts and provision
of aftermarket services and
support for piston engines
Rt BERLERBMERRK
EEREBRRBAURAEE
EPRRHERRBRXS
Continental Motors PRC/Mainland China US$4,000,000 100 - Sale of aircraft engines and parts
(Beijing) Co., Ltd.* HE/ RERH 4,000,000% 7% HEMTEDRRBHE
AEEHR OtR) BRETAT
Kingspot Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands/ HK$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong 187 REER
BERLHE /B
CATIC Helicopter (H.K.) Limited* British Virgin Islands/ Uss$2 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong 2ET REER
HERUME /B
* The statutory financial statements of these subsidiaries were * ILE 55 BT /B8 A B B 08 TE A 7S R 3R 9 A

not audited by Deloitte’s members firm.

BB zHEREEL-
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

The above tables list the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of
the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
during both years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A
majority of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The
principal activities of these subsidiaries are summarised
as follows:

Principal activities

44,

Principal place of business

FARTEMBARTZHE (&

ERIHAERRNEEIAHETERN
AEERBEIEFENEAEEEE
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ERXRR HREAMKBRASDNERS
tgLREBRAK

RWmEEER SEERNE QR
TREEEEES-
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BREREBOEEBEE - 2ZENE
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Number of subsidiaries

FEEH FESEME MEBAEBE
31.12.2022 31.12.2021
—T_C T —F
+ZA=+—H8 +ZA=+—H
Investment holding Hong Kong 3 3
KREER o
Mainland China 1 1
A Py
4 4

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Yipon
Investment Limited, Wahman Investment Limited and
CATIC General Aviation Holdings Limited, all were
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, were
deregistered.

RBEE_T_—F+-H=+—H
IEEFE > Yipon Investment Limited s
Wahman Investment LimitedszCATIC
General Aviation Holdings Limited¥J%
AREN2ERBATI RIEBEFEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &;

45.

ES. S —

E+-A=+—ALEE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF  45.

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position

AR e M IR R MY EE

AT BIRAR

ERARTRKRSHRNYHTRIE

of the Company at the end of the reporting period is as HEREIUWT :
follows:
2022 2021
ZEZCF TET—F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - -BEMZE 121,762 49
Investment property S=—EY/ES - 123,800
Investments in subsidiaries RB AT ZKRE 2,140,696 2,206,152
2,262,458 2,330,001
CURRENT ASSETS MEBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other BNRE - EER
receivables HMEUWERR 3,633 1,260
Amounts due from subsidiaries LN ENGIE /S ] 263,105 297,307
Bank deposits RITEMR 174,485 =
Cash and cash equivalents BEhkREEE 214,649 290,054
655,872 588,621
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAE
Other payables and accruals HtEN IR R B & A 3,848 3,149
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE A S B8 B FR 1B 3,609 3,609
Amount due a fellow subsidiary NIEEN N PNEIE e 5,580 =
13,037 6,758
Net assets BERE 2,905,293 2,911,864
EQUITY R
Share capital A& 930,337 930,337
Reserves* e 1,974,956 1,981,527
Total equity @ AEE 2,905,293 2,911,864
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE - FE+-_H=+—HILFE

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 45. ZAFRMBRRARER 2
THE COMPANY (continued)
3 A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: &3 KABEEBROT -
Share Asset
premium revaluation Contributed Accumulated
account reserve surplus losses Total
5 BE
HERR BEEHE BAEER REEE =
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FAET FET FAET FET FET
At 1 January 2021 RZIBZT—%
—B—8 1,857,729 130,615 5,243 (588,096) 1,405,491
Profit and total AN RAEE2E
comprehensive W s 4B 58
income for the year - - - 576,036 576,036
At 31 December 2021 WRIZZ—%F
+-B=+—H 1,857,729 130,615 5,243 (12,060) 1,981,527
Loss and total BEEAFEE2AE
comprehensive X HAERE
expense for the year - - - (6,571) (6,571)
At 31 December 2022 N B F
+-BA=+—H 1,857,729 130,615 5,243 (18,631) 1,974,956
The contributed surplus of the Company represents KANBIZBABBABERBDREER
the excess of the consolidated net asset value of a BEAZHERATEERE—RBREBEL
subsidiary at the date of its acquisition by the Company AR ZNBARRKEERZRS
in a previous year pursuant to a group reorganisation, EEFEBAFAKRBREMETZ
over the nominal amount of the Shares issued in KhEEzEE TEHNRRATSF
consideration for such acquisition, net of accumulated ERHEZ AR RBEHEE -REER
losses of the Company set off in the prior years. Under E—NAN—FRBZE KRB ZHA
the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed BHRTETERTAEDIKFERE-
surplus of the Company is distributable to shareholders
under certain circumstances.
COMPARATIVE FIGURES 46. LEBEF
Certain comparative financial information has been ETIERBBFERCENDLE > UFK
reclassified in order to conform with current period’s EAXRBHNEINF K

presentation.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY F F 15l E

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-

controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial

years, as extracted from the published audited financial

statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set

out below. This summary is not part of the audited financial

FERBELEMBEENXBEREE &
BMIFEREGMANT  HEEE ST #
REZVMBREZ LEFEEES ENS
Bt EMBLIFE BRI BIRERAIERD o

statements.
Year ended 31 December
HE+-A=1+—HLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E-C R IZERIZF ZEZ-NF ZEN\F
HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET FHET
(Restated)
(E5)
RESULTS ES
CONTINUING OPERATIONS REREER
Revenue g 1,665,515 1,416,409 1,246,809 1,458,003 1,341,223
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX bRig AT ER (8518) 27,265 (24,790)  (808,530) (83,833)  (159,025)
Income tax credit (expense) FERiEE FD) 23,567 (31,182) 51,792 29,817 31,893
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FROM REHELEEEY
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FERT (§1E) 50,832 (55,972)  (756,738) (54,016)  (127,132)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRIEREER
Profit for the year from REERITELE
a discontinued operation KERF = - - - 507,569
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR EEHR (58) 50,832 (55,972)  (756,738) (54,016) 380,437
Attributable to: TN LE
Owners of the Company ERBFEE 50,832 (55,972) (756,738 (54,016) 398,968
Non-controlling interests E|SAPIT - - - - (18,531)
50,832 (55,972)  (756,738) (54,016) 380,437
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets BELE 3,799,848 3,763,258 4,178,556 4,772,624 4,514,263
Total liabilities aEeE (980,957)  (978,797) (1,332,416)  (1,198,930)  (895,095)
2,818,891 2,784,461 2,846,140 3,573,694 3,619,168




DIRECTORS

Huang Yongfeng (Chairman)

Yu Xiaodong (Chief Executive Officer)

Jiao Yan

Zhao Yang (resigned on 3 April 2023)
Zhang Zhibiao (appointed on 3 April 2023)
Li Peiyin

Chow Wai Kam*

Chu Yu Lin, David**

Li Ka Fai, David**

Zhang Ping**

* Non-executive Director
** Independent Non-executive Directors

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chu Yu Lin, David (Chairman)
Li Ka Fai, David
Zhang Ping

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Chu Yu Lin, David (Chairman)
Yu Xiaodong
Li Ka Fai, David

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Zhang Ping (Chairman)
Huang Yongfeng
Chu Yu Lin, David

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditors

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
KEMERKIZERERAE
Annual Report 2022 —% — "R 259

CORPORATE INFORMATION
AEEH
-3
=5& (£/E)
TR (TTEAE %)
Wi (R E - =ZF/YH = HEFT)
REE (R _E_=ZFHH=HEZT)
)
BEe
E ]
ZREE*
§§ \[Z % %

* FRITEE

e BIUIFRITEE
B%EZ8g
KB (2
FRE

T

WESE

R (L)
TR
=5 E

REZET
R (Z/®)

=]

FERT

hEIERTT
BEHELEEEIRITARAT

Y% BB

B« MBS (T
CES-
5 A TR 2 B B BT



260

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
KEMERKIZERERAE
Annual Report 2022 — &~ —HF4FELR

CORPORATE INFORMATION
ATER
LEGAL ADVISER

Michael Li & Co.

19/F., Prosperity Tower

No. 39 Queen’s Road Central
Central, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Victoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF

BUSINESS

Unit B, 15th Floor, United Centre
95 Queensway, Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRARS
Principal registrars

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th Floor North

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda

Hong Kong registrars

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.cath.com.hk

STOCK CODE
232

JE1EEERS

Michael Li & Co.
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